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As a world-class racing club,
we act continuously for the
betterment of our society
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World-class Leadership | S£ifi%E8E
Uncompromising Integrity | BR<F&3HE
Continuous Development | &%

Serving the Community | BR#& 8
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INTEGRATED BUSINESS MODEL
mEEERN

Through its integrated business model, the Club generates EEEAREGAEERR  AIEKER
economic and social value for our society. HEEE-

In 2019/20, the Club returned 73.8% of its betting and lottery 2019/20F[E » FEEBHAREZIER
revenue directly to Hong Kong in the form of tax payments 1% 73.8% NEXRRBS WA EZLOEEE -
and charitable donations.

Racing &
Racecourse
Entertainment

BEERBHRY

By continually developing the quality

of our world-class racing, we bring pride

to Hong Kong and provide a racecourse

spectacle filled with entertainment
and sporting energy.

FRBERATEURGESNEE
ERRRREE T N RENEE
SEHBIBH -

Membership Club

BERf Charities &
Through their ownership of top-class Community
thoroughbreds, and despite Hong Kong'’s ZERHE

small horse population, our Members
make Hong Kong’s racing success
globally possible.

TEEMBEHATS  B2EEE
SESIATEREN - SERES
HERIRESR -

Through our tax contribution,
charitable donations and proactive
community engagement, we work to
improve Hong Kong’s quality of life.
RMBEBBRN - BEBRREBRA
HERY  BORESEBETRMN

EEEER -

Responsible
Sports Wagering
& Lottery
BEHFIREEERES

Through our responsible and best-in-class
sports wagering and lottery services,
we help meet public demand, channelling
it away from illegal operators.
BEMREFHHEEEY  #E RN
BEEERESREREARN
=R - LA BIRS EfbifI2
FETRBREET) o




PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
REBE

Amounts Bet HK$ Betting and

by Customers 21 8_7 billion Lottery Revenue
BRI +EE T BERESWA

Football Betting
ERIEX Revenue

by Business

92.6
EBWA

HK$ billion
+EE T

HKS$ billion
+EET

Horse Racing

'S
. Horse Racing
121.0 Mark Six Lottery ==
A= P
5.1 ‘ Football Betting
) BHEE
Amounts wagered by
local customers Mark Six Lotte
AR R 97.7 @ v
/NAa N
Non-local bets
commingled with * Horse race betting revenue does not include fees
the Club’s pOO|S from commingling partners and royalty income
B A S St 32 15 T 458 233 ﬁfﬁig%k*@%@%%?&%ﬁ%iﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ&5;

of the amounts bet locally are returned
as dividends, rebates and lottery prizes

BN TSR 83.9% BERTHIER
¥& ENREZRE



Club Contributions
HK$ to Hong Kong

31.5 villion EENEENEM

TRET

Tax Contribution B ERE
Revenue
Distribution
WA DB
HK$ billion
+EBT ) _
Donations B

Lotteries Fund
Contribution SR

Betting Duty & Profits Tax to
HKSAR Government Employment Created gli&mEMeE

& BB TREBFSME
EE B R FEB

Approved Donations to
Charities Trust

BEEETESERNEBR

Lotteries Fund
#EES

Club Operations
FERERE

Operating Surplus after
Donations to Charities Trust
BREREETESRNCERR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

| am greatly honoured to take up the
chairmanship of the Club as its twenty-fifth
Chairman. | take up this role with an
overwhelming sense of duty and deeply
conscious of the many great Chairmen
who have gone before me and whom it
was my pleasure to serve over many years
on the Board. Each Chairman builds on the
foundation laid by his predecessors and
| hope that my own term of office will
prove as productive and as impactful.

MEFEBEFTEEE  AARBEE -

NEREEER FREFFEESRDZ  REG

EEZF BEeRESNHENEERS

tMASEET TRENER ; HAMEE

BAHEERTHEREASTSELERER
REEFRENER
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| became Chairman just three weeks before the end of the racing
season at a time of great challenge for the Club and for the
community we serve. Over the past year we have had to contend
with both the social disturbances and the COVID-19 pandemic,

with the effects still unfolding. Although the Club has been tested as
never before, | believe we will look back on the last twelve months
as some of the finest in our history.

THE RACE GOES ON
RO AL SRR

In December, we staged a highly successful LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races week, featuring the LONGINES International
Jockeys’ Championship, the crowning of the LONGINES World’s
Best Jockey, and the finale LONGINES Hong Kong International
Races, one of the world’s greatest international racing events.
Millions of racing fans across the globe joined with fans at Happy
Valley and Sha Tin to cheer on the world’s top jockeys and 21
international Group 1 horses in a wonderful showcase of our city
and its world-class racing. Then came COVID-19 and the race
stands at both Sha Tin and Happy Valley fell silent.

Yet this was not the end of Hong Kong racing. At a time when many
other sports around the world closed down, including most horse
racing, Hong Kong raced on. Not a single race was lost throughout
the pandemic, including such highlights as the BMW Hong Kong
Derby and FWD Champions Day.

It was an extraordinary achievement, earning the Club praise and
accolades around the world. And it was only possible thanks to the
support of the Government, horse owners, trainers and jockeys, and
above all through the exceptional efforts of the Club’s management
and staff, which under the guidance of the Government implemented
measures to ensure the safety and continuity of racing. Moreover,
with the support of Mainland and Hong Kong authorities the Club
maintained full operations at Conghua Racecourse, including the
movement of horses to and from Hong Kong, meaning that our
horses could continue benefiting from Conghua’s superb facilities.
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Although unfortunately these measures meant that, at the height of
the pandemic, racing fans were unable to attend the races in person,
or visit Off-Course Betting Branches, or use most Telebet services,
the very fact that racing continued was highly appreciated.
Moreover, thanks to the Club’s longstanding investment in digital
technology, fans were able to watch and wager on every race via
online and mobile channels. Some 70% of turnover is already
generated via these channels, and this rose to over 90% at the
height of the closure period.

The continuation of racing also had significant benefits for
commingling. For with much of racing around the world closed
down, ours became even more attractive to the growing number of
overseas fans who wager on it via overseas partners. As a result,
commingling turnover increased by 25.3% to HK$23.6 billion,
constituting some 19.4% of total turnover for the season. Again this
success must be ascribed to the far-sightedness of the Club, which
has almost single-handedly pioneered commingling and is the
acknowledged leader in the field.

So although overall wagering turnover was down this year, this
primarily reflected the cessation of overseas football leagues during
the pandemic and the Club’s prudent decision to close the Mark Six
lottery in the interests of public health. Racing turnover for the
season by contrast was down just 2.6% to HK$121.6 billion. Overall
the Club returned HK$25.2 billion to the community in betting duty,
profits tax, Lotteries Fund contributions and approved Charities
Trust donations. Indeed, at HK$4.5 billion, Trust donations set a new
record for the Club.

STANDING STRONG TOGETHER
M | BRI

This speaks to the Club’s deep commitment to the betterment of
society, which is our ultimate purpose. This year we once again
rallied in support, committing some HK$346 million to tackle the
impact of COVID-19. This included funding the purchase of over
14 million face masks and almost half a million care packs, the
establishment of a HK$100 million emergency fund to provide
fast-track grants to NGOs providing essential services, and the
provision of free mobile internet data bandwidth to over 100,000
underprivileged students during the school closure period.

/ Chairman’s Statement / E£JERE /
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The Club was no less concerned to protect its members,
implementing a wide range of precautionary measures. Although
these caused some inconvenience, members showed great
forbearance and were very considerate of the needs of fellow
members. Indeed, many have said how appreciative they were of
the Club’s efforts and how they found in the clubhouses a welcome
and safe retreat.

Making all of this possible were the Club’s employees, and | believe
it is very important to acknowledge and thank them for their efforts.
| am also pleased to say that the Club made extra efforts to look
after their health and welfare during this difficult time.

So looking back over this extraordinary year, | believe we have every
reason to be proud of the Club. We maintained our core racing,
wagering and membership operations. We kept our customers,
members, employees and licensed personnel safe and protected.
Above all we stayed true to our purpose. In short we did what was
right for the Club and what was best for Hong Kong.

MAKING PROGRESS
SHEED

Nor should we forget that in the midst of all these challenges the
work of the Club continued, with many achievements to celebrate.

Alongside its work during the pandemic, the Charities Trust
maintained its full support for a wide range of community needs,
with 210 projects benefiting from its HK$4.5 billion in approved
donations. This included HK$535.3 million for Haven of Hope
Christian Service to construct an integrated end-of-life care services
complex. Meanwhile one of the Trust’s largest projects, Tai Kwun —
Centre for Heritage and Arts, was honoured with the highest Award
of Excellence in the 2019 UNESCO Asia-Pacific Awards for Cultural
Heritage Conservation.

Hong Kong’s races and horses once again impressed on the world
stage, with ten of our 12 Group 1 races among the World’s Top 100
Group 1 Races and 20 horses in the World’s Best Racehorse
Rankings, including Beauty Generation, rated the best miler in

the world.
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Conghua Racecourse, which as | have noted functioned throughout
the pandemic, continued to deliver outstanding results. Horses
training there produced no less than 139 winners this season,
including such big race wins as the FWD Champions Mile. Aside
from Conghua’s support for Hong Kong racing, the Club remains
keen to showcase its potential contribution towards the development
of a world-class equine industry in the Greater Bay Area.

Commingling, as mentioned, is one of the Club’s great success
stories, enabling us to tap the rich potential of overseas markets and
in so doing earn additional revenue for Hong Kong. This year we
further expanded our network, with the Club now having more than
50 partners in 27 countries and jurisdictions. Even more encouraging
was the continued success of commingled World Pools, which aim
to combine the best in world racing with a truly international
wagering pool. Pioneered by the Club and overseas partners at last
year’s Royal Ascot, this year World Pools were offered for the first
time on Dubai Super Saturday and again at Royal Ascot, where
turnover was up 33% to HK$1.4 billion. Clearly there is a strong
global appetite for international wagering pools, and the Club is very
well positioned to benefit. Indeed, this represents an area of
considerable growth potential.
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Underpinning commingling, and making possible the remarkable
performance of our digital wagering this year, is the Club’s
technology strength. Under its Smart Channel 2.0 strategy, the Club
is now moving to the next stage, aiming to digitalise the entire
customer journey. Work also proceeds on a next generation
customer information and wagering system, which will transform our
ability to roll out new products and services and to customise them
for individual market segments.

Finally, there was some excellent news for our members. After many
years of planning, the New Clubhouse at Happy Valley will soon
begin welcoming members. Owing to some last minute obstacles
on account of the pandemic this will be a little later than anticipated,
with a full opening towards the end of 2020. | have no doubt
members will be duly impressed. Indeed, it is just part of a new
membership experience being progressively rolled out, which aims
to better serve the needs of both present members and the future
members we need to carry forward the Club’s world-class racing
and its commitment to the betterment of society.

TURBULENCE AHEAD
BERRAARR

Even though so much has been achieved over the past year, and
quite rightly we should congratulate ourselves on navigating its
many challenges, | do not believe we should rest easy. Indeed,

| have to sound a note of warning.

For the fact is that the pandemic has dealt a significant blow to our
finances. Despite an outstanding effort by our racing and wagering
teams, there is no disguising the decline in betting and lottery
revenue, which at HK$31.5 billion dropped back to 2014/15 levels.
EBITDA, at HK$5.2 billion, was back to 2013/14 levels, while our
operating surplus after tax, at HK$2.7 billion, was down 41% on last
year and 45% down on the HK$4.8 billion surplus we reported in
2017/18. The volatility in the financial markets also impacted
significantly on our investment portfolio, where our return this year
was essentially flat. Although these results are largely the product of
circumstances beyond the Club’s control, and we have done an
excellent job in saving the situation, the truth is that we have not
faced such a financial setback for many years.
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Furthermore, while it is tempting to regard these results as a one off,
quite clearly COVID-19 has brought huge instability to the social and
economic environment. How long and how deep the global
recession will be is much debated, as is the impact of potential
future waves of the pandemic. What shape the ‘new normal’ will
ultimately take is very hard to predict. What is crystal clear is that
the uncertainty we face is unprecedented.

All of which carries implications not just for the Club’s business
performance but for its support for the community. This, after all, is
what makes the Club wholly different from a commercial enterprise.
Our purpose is not to return dividends to shareholders but long-
lasting benefits to the community. Yet we can only achieve this by
maintaining healthy business growth. To put it bluntly, our ability to
donate depends on our business results.

This ability is already being impacted. Whereas last year, the
Charities Trust’s approved donations of HK$4.3 billion were
matched by the Club’s HK$4.3 billion donation to the Trust, the
Club’s reduced surplus this year as a result of COVID-19 meant it
was only able to donate HK$2.55 billion to the Trust. Whilst this year
the Trust can tap into its accumulated reserve, ultimately the Club’s
donations to the Trust depend on its underlying business results.

In this respect we need to be very mindful that uncertainties in the
global economic and political environment, combined with the
ongoing effects of COVID-19, will likely have significant impacts on
our operating surplus and financial income.

Bringing added urgency to the situation is the onslaught from illegal
gambling. While illegal gambling has always been part of the
landscape, what is new and alarming is the sophistication and scale
of operators, many of them based overseas and many armed with
the latest technology. They also offer betting on many sports for
which there is currently no legal and regulated channel. Seventeen
years ago, faced with a similar problem with respect to football, the
Government licensed the Club to provide a football betting service.
Not only did this address a major area of criminality, but over the
years it has brought significant tax benefits to the community and
revenue benefits to the Club, which in turn have enabled us to
substantially increase our charity donations. This was only possible
because the Government took such swift and decisive action. Had it
waited it would have been far more difficult to defend ourselves.

| would argue that Hong Kong is facing a similar situation with
respect to other sports and it is timely to consider expanding
regulated betting to them.

/ Chairman’s Statement / E£JERE /
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THE WAY FORWARD
RERR

So where do we go from here? At root the Club’s purpose must,
and will, remain the same. We will continue to enhance our much
admired position by doing the right things and doing them right.
We will strive hard to improve our business results so that we can
maintain our charity donations.

In the turbulent times ahead this means the Club will have to
manage its costs and resources with great prudence. At the same
time it also needs to invest strategically for long-term growth.

We must continue to lead in our IT capabilities, notably via the new
customer information and wagering system | have mentioned.

We will also proceed with the ongoing racecourse redevelopment
programme, including the much needed redevelopment of Sha Tin
stables, which are over 40 years old. Next season this will involve
work to improve the arrival experience at Sha Tin Racecourse and to
expand members’ car parking there. We should also continue to
develop the potential of Conghua Racecourse in support of both
Hong Kong racing and the Greater Bay Area.

We also need to be constantly alert for new opportunities. Here
commingling has significant growth potential, with World Pools
presenting new opportunities to benefit from the very best overseas
racing in addition to our own. To this | would add simulcasting,
which has long attracted the wagering interest of local fans, and
which also offers significant opportunities when combined with
World Pools hosted by the Club.

Ultimately everything comes back to the Club’s purpose —

the betterment of our society. Through careful management of our
resources and through continuing to invest in the Club’s
development, our aim is to ensure that we can sustain our support
for the community long into the future. Judging by our track record,
which has seen Charities Trust donations more than quadruple over
the last 12 years, with the Trust now ranked among the top ten
donors in the world, | have no doubt we will succeed.
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None of this would be possible, however, without our members.
Members make the Club. As its custodians they have ultimate
responsibility for upholding its values, standing up for its interests
and carrying forward its purpose. It is therefore beholden upon us to
recruit members of the highest calibre, and as members to maintain
the very highest standards and the most uncompromising integrity.
This is what has sustained the Club through the last 135 years, and
it is what will carry us through the present challenging times. By
steadfastly adhering to our values and by always keeping our
purpose in mind, we will win through.

| am very conscious that the achievements of the past year owe a lot
to my predecessor Dr Anthony Chow. | would therefore like to offer
my sincere thanks to Dr Chow for his remarkable efforts on behalf of
the Club over almost two years as Chairman, including during such
trying times. | would also like to thank Mr Lester Kwok, who retired
as Deputy Chairman in April, and to welcome Mr Lester Huang, who
joined the Board of Stewards at the same time. | have already
greatly benefited from the kind and generous support of our new
Deputy Chairman, Mr Michael Lee. My sincere thanks to him and to
all my fellow Stewards.

My final word of thanks must go to the Club’s management and
staff. During one of the most difficult years in the Club’s history
they have shown extraordinary commitment to the Club, displaying
exceptional agility and resilience. Much of this is due to the

capable and inspirational leadership of our Chief Executive Officer,
Mr Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges. Only testing times can show the
true colours and great capabilities of people. | would also like to
recognise the efforts of staff at every level who each, in their own
way, have contributed to the Club’s sterling performance. With their
support, and with the support of all our members, | look forward to a
very successful year ahead.

Philip N L Chen
Chairman

24 July 2020
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Chief Executive Officer —
Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
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Audit; Risk Management; Property; Security and
Integrity; Corporate Programme Management Office
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Executive Director, Charities and
Community — Leong Cheung
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Charities; Tai Kwun - Centre for Heritage and Arts
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Executive Director, Corporate Affairs —
Raymond C Y Tam
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Public Affairs (Racing, Wagering Communications and
Issue Management); Public Affairs (Corporate and
Charities Communications); External Affairs;

Mainland Affairs
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Executive Director, Corporate Planning,
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Business Performance Improvement; Branding and
Programme Services; Corporate Branding — Sports
and Community Programmes; Web Solutions and
Services; Market Intelligence; Corporate Planning
Office — Mainland China; Strategy Projects;
Membership Hospitality Services & Operations;
Membership Services; Membership Administration;
Retail and Event; Membership Analytics
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Football Trading and Marketing; Lottery Marketing;
Racing Event Marketing; Customer Segments;
Customer Digital Experience; Betting Control and
Customer Operations; Broadcasting Operations;
Mainland Co-operation (Sports Lottery, National
Fitness and Guangzhou HKJC Event Management
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Telebet Services
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Finance; Investment Office; Treasury; Strategic
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Executive Director, People and
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Management; Learning and Development; Business
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Executive Director, Racing -
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Dual Site Stables Operations & Owners Services;
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THRAERRS

The past year will undoubtedly be remembered as one of the
most challenging in the Club’s history. Nonetheless through
tremendous dedication, resilience and agility we continued to
fulfil our purpose, as a world-class racing club, to act
continuously for the betterment of our society.
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We have created, through our Integrated Business Model, significant
economic and social value for our society despite the negative
impact of COVID-19 both in Hong Kong and globally.

We have led by example, and through our decisive actions
world-class racing has continued throughout this difficult season,
which was crucial to ensuring the employment of our full-time and
part-time employees. Through our wagering services we generated
HK$19.7 billion in tax revenues this season, with racing alone
contributing HK$12.1 billion. Last but not least we have increased
our approved donations to HK$4.5 billion, including establishing
relief funds to address the immediate needs of the community.

RISING TO THE CHALLENGE
FEDRE A

The Club’s response to COVID-19 was fast and immediate. As early
as December 2019, when the virus first emerged, we activated our
Pandemic Management Committee, later expanding it into a
Business Continuity Committee responsible for identifying and
assessing risks as well as recommending and managing mitigation
measures. Two guiding principles were established: “No activities
shall create any public health risks” and “No activities shall put the
health and safety of our employees and customers at risk.” Under
these guiding principles, as early as February we planned out
different raceday scenarios, from the restricted attendance we
implemented at the Chinese New Year race meeting, which had a
booking only attendance of 9,700, to the extreme of having only
owners with starters attending in addition to racing officials.

At the same time we were very aware of the importance of racing to
our million plus fans and of the significant contribution it makes to
the community through betting duty and charity donations. Indeed
racing is an important symbol of Hong Kong and its can-do spirit.

It therefore became our goal to do everything we could to keep
racing going. This commitment was no less strong among horse
owners, trainers and jockeys, backed up by the Club’s employees,
who made a substantial effort to maintain operations.

Government support was crucial. Early on it recognised that
maintaining racing was in the public interest, in particular to provide
essential stay-at-home entertainment. It also fully supported the
continued cross-boundary movement of horses to and from
Conghua Racecourse, which is vital to maintaining the quality of
Hong Kong racing.
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With this support, we created a protective ‘racing bubble’ which
enabled us to keep racing going until the very end of the season.
Temperature checks, face masks, health declaration forms, stringent
social distancing and regular testing of jockeys all became
mandatory, with racecourse attendance limits adjusted in line with
planned scenarios to comply with Government requirements. The
deepest impact was in March-April, which saw attendance reduced
from an average of 22,000 before the outbreak to around 300.

None of this would have been possible without our unsung heroes,
namely our employees, who banded together to safeguard the
well-being of our customers, members and the wider

community. These included the thousands of front-line staff at
racecourses, Off-Course Betting Branches and clubhouses; our
stables staff in both Hong Kong and Conghua Racecourse,
especially secondees who have been stationed at Conghua since
Chinese New Year; as well as our cross-boundary horse movement
team, from travelling grooms to drivers.

Of course it was disappointing that fans were unable to enjoy the
live action on course, but it was very satisfying to know that our
racing was providing stay-at-home entertainment to hundreds of
thousands of fans in Hong Kong and around the world. Moreover,
despite the closure of Off-Course Betting Branches and most
Telebet services, customers were able to watch and wager on racing
via the Club’s online and mobile channels. In support we launched
the Faster Payment System (FPS) to facilitate instant funds transfer.
The application, which was developed using the latest Fintech,

was utilised by over 240,000 customers, making it Hong Kong’s top
FPS app.

The Club’s strategy of globalising Hong Kong racing via
commingling also continued to bring significant benefits. With
inbound commingling income up 21.9% to HK$1 billion this almost
compensated for the decline of local income as a result of the
closure of Off-Course Betting Branches.

Contributing to the success of commingling was the further
expansion of our overseas network through a new partnership with
Pari Mutuel Urbain (PMU), one of the world’s largest wagering
operators. The Club now has more than 50 partners in 27 countries
and jurisdictions, with overseas customers increasingly attracted by
the liquidity, quality and competitiveness of our racing product.
With the relaunch next season of Forecast, a bet type well known
overseas, there is the possibility of further strong growth.
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/ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TERABE R /

Further commingling growth can be achieved by designing a new
protocol to cover exotic bet types. The new World Tote Association,
of which Mr Richard Cheung, the Club’s Executive Director,
Customer and International Business, is a co-chair, will undoubtedly
help accelerate this process. Certainly the Club, with its extensive
expertise and world-class technology, is ideally positioned to play a
leading role.

With the global success of Hong Kong racing has come a parallel
interest among Hong Kong customers in international racing.
This was reflected in the 14.5% increase in simulcast income to
HK$184 million and most especially by the success of our World
Pools offered on Royal Ascot, which consolidated betting from
20 nations into a single pool. We are planning to further expand
our coverage of overseas racing events next year.

As a result of these efforts, and despite the loss of one race
meeting, racing turnover for the season was down just 2.6% to
HK$121.6 billion, with betting duty returned to the Government for
the season being HK$12.1 billion. Of particular note is that over
HK$6.2 billion of this duty was generated after Chinese New Year
when COVID-19 restrictions started coming into force, with racing
permitted to continue with the Government’s exemption. Racing
income before betting duty for the season was HK$17.6 billion,
down 5.3%, while due to commingling the Club’s share after tax
was down just 2.2% on last season to HK$5.4 billion. In the
circumstances, and given the experience of other racing jurisdictions
and other sports, this was an exceptional achievement.

The impact of COVID-19 on football betting income however was
massive, with 3,273 football matches being postponed or cancelled.
The gross margin loss was HK$2.8 billion, with the Club’s share
dropping by HK$1.4 billion or 18.2% to HK$6.3 billion compared to
last season. This was despite encouraging results following the
resumption of regular football fixtures in mid-May.

To protect public health the Club suspended the Mark Six lottery on
2 February. With approximately 70% of our four million Mark Six
customers using Off-Course Betting Branches to buy lottery tickets
we considered this the most responsible course of action. The result
was a turnover drop of 39% on last year to HK$5.1 billion. This
yielded betting and lottery revenue of HK$2.4 billion, with the Club’s
net commission being HK$0.3 billion.
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In total the Club’s wagering gross margin for the financial year

(1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020) was HK$31.5 billion, down 14.9%
on last financial year. For the racing season (1 September 2019 —
15 July 2020) total wagering gross margin was HK$31.6 billion,
down 14.8% on last season, with total gross margin before
betting duty, commingling and simulcast royalty income being
HK$32.5 billion, down 14.0%.

This nonetheless enabled the Club to contribute HK$25.2 billion
to the community in betting duty, profits tax, Lotteries Fund
contributions and approved charity donations.

CARING FOR OUR COMMUNITY
AND OUR EMPLOYEES
BEEHE REET

For many people in Hong Kong, the outbreak of COVID-19 brought
back strong memories of SARS in 2003. Then, as now, the Club’s
response was rigorous, providing emergency support to those
hard-hit by the crisis and in the aftermath funding the construction
of the Centre for Health Protection, which is playing a vital role in the
current pandemic.

Faced with the much greater challenge of COVID-19, the Club has
been no less responsive. As the Chairman has mentioned, this
included the provision of 14 million face masks and half a million
care packs, as well as free mobile data bandwidth to 100,000
underprivileged school students during the school closure period.
A HK$100 million COVID-19 Emergency Fund is also providing
fast-track grants to community agencies helping those in need.

As of 30 June, 219 agencies had received grants for 241 initiatives.
With the crisis far from over, the Club will do everything it can to
support the community through this difficult and distressing time.

The Club has been equally concerned to protect employee health
and welfare, implementing a wide range of measures including
temperature screening, provision of face masks, deep cleaning of
facilities, social distancing, special transport arrangement, and
flexible work practices. The Club keeps a close watch on the health
situation, adjusting measures as necessary. It also maintains active
communication with employees.
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/ Chief Executive Officer’s Statement / {TERABE R /

Mindful of the economic impact on livelihoods, the Club has
undertaken not to lay off any full-time employees on account of the
pandemic. Furthermore, despite the closure of many betting and
racecourse facilities, where most of our 13,000 plus part-time staff
work, the Club paid eligible part-time employees 50% of their
average weekly earnings until the end of the season. Such support
for part-time employees is rare, indeed exceptional, in the market.
Likewise the Club has not applied for support under the
Government’s Employment Support Scheme, freeing up these
resources for other companies with pressing needs.

WORLD-CLASS RACING
CONTINUES TO PROGRESS
REBEEE L—FBE

If the very continuity of Hong Kong racing is remarkabile in itself,
no less remarkable this year has been the continued progress of
our world-class racing.

This included all 12 of the Club’s international Group 1 races, of
which not a single one was lost. Most notably, and despite the
global media coverage of demonstrations in Hong Kong and the
severe transport disruption in the latter part of 2019, December’s
LONGINES Hong Kong International Races week went ahead as
planned, with the Club enlisting the support of top owners, trainers
and jockeys from around the world. The result was a highly
successful LONGINES International Jockeys’ Championship,

a spectacular Gala Dinner featuring the LONGINES World’s Best
Jockey Award, and the patrticipation of no less than 21 international
Group 1 winners in the LONGINES Hong Kong International Races.

All of this after a very difficult start to the season, where on a daily
basis our Incident Management Task Force had to manage traffic
disruption outside racecourses and Off-Course Betting Branches

and look after the safety of employees and customers.

Yes, despite all of this, Hong Kong horses continued to produce
outstanding results, with no less than 20 featuring in the LONGINES
World’s Best Racehorse Rankings for 2019. Beauty Generation,
rated the world’s top miler on turf, became the first horse in Hong
Kong history to pass HK$100 million in prize money. Golden Sixty
became only the second horse to complete a clean sweep of the
Four-Year-Old Classic Series, making him a worthy winner of the
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inaugural Champion Four-Year-Old award. And Horse of the
Year Exultant took the FWD QEIl Cup and for a second time the
Group 1 Standard Chartered Champions & Chater Cup.

Fundamental to the Club’s success is its ability to attract, develop
and retain world-class racing talent. This includes both the best
overseas trainers and jockeys and outstanding homegrown talent.
This year the trainers’ championship went down to the wire in a
three-way battle between Tony Cruz, Francis Lui and Ricky Yiu, with
Yiu finally taking the honours. We also bid farewell to John Moore, a
training legend in Hong Kong, who was honoured with a Lifetime
Achievement Award. Meanwhile Vincent Ho enjoyed another
sensational season, partnering Golden Sixty to victory in all three
legs of the Four-Year-Old Classic Series and winning his first
international race aboard Southern Legend in the FWD Champions
Mile. Ultimately the jockeys’ championship came down to a contest
between two old rivals, Joao Moreira and Zac Purton, with Purton
finally prevailing.

The maintenance of a full racing schedule was no less important to
owners, who were able to campaign their horses across the whole
season, with the opportunity to compete for some of the best prize
money in world racing. Indeed the Club worked hard to ensure they
had every opportunity, adding additional races to the card where
necessary. Responding to concerns about the cancellation of
international flights, we also arranged special charter flights to bring
in horse imports, as well as to take retired horses to Australia.

To ensure the world class quality of Hong Kong racing, the Board
of Stewards has decided to increase total prize money for the

88 meetings next season by approximately 4.9%, with a special
increase for Group 1 races. This is in contrast to other jurisdictions
which have already cut prize money. As a result, next season will
see total prize money in Hong Kong rise to a record HK1.4 billion,
with Hong Kong once again home to the world’s richest turf races
over 1400 metres, 1600 metres and 2000 metres. It will also have
the world’s richest turf sprint and second richest Derby, with the
latter offering HK$24 million in prize money.
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CONGHUA RACECOURSE
LB 5

This was the second full year of operations at Conghua Racecourse.
Thanks to the support of Mainland and Hong Kong authorities, and
especially the dedication of staff, Conghua functioned seamlessly
throughout the pandemic, including the cross-boundary transport
of horses.

As a result, Hong Kong horses were able to benefit from Conghua’s
superb training, veterinary and rehabilitation facilities. No less than
139 winners this season, or approximately 17%, received training at
Conghua, including winners of the Premier Bowl, the Sprint Cup,

the Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup and the FWD Champions Mile. With an
additional four trainers using Conghua next season, taking the total
to 16, this impressive trend seems set to continue.

Building on this success, we are planning further investment in
Conguha. The aim is to leverage it even further as we start the
significant improvement work needed at Sha Tin stables.

The Club believes that Conghua Racecourse can contribute

to the development of a world-class equine industry in the
Greater Bay Area. A significant advantage is Conghua’s equine
disease-free zone, which is internationally recognised by every
major authority, including from this year by Australia. This paves
the way for the establishment of a quarantine station, facilitating
the international import and export of horses with internationally
recognised health status.

MEMBERSHIP
ZEER

Club members are the foundation of the Club. It is vitally important
to create a membership experience which can both maintain

and develop a healthy membership base. With this in mind | am
delighted to report that, despite the challenges this year, work is
now complete on Happy Valley New Clubhouse. With an Olympic
size swimming pool, the largest gym in Hong Kong, and completely
new dining and lifestyle experiences, the New Clubhouse will
surely enhance our reputation as one of the world’s finest
membership clubs.

Alongside this we have recruited, trained and onboarded around 400
new staff to offer a new dimension to the membership experience.
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We have also completely revamped all Membership IT systems.
While the New Clubhouse was ready to open in mid-July, this was
unfortunately delayed due to Government restrictions in response to
COVID-19. The aim is for it to be fully open by the end of 2020.

CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY
BERHERIEHR

In a year which tested the community as never before, the Club’s
ultimate purpose — the betterment of our society — was never more
important. This was why, despite the significant drop in the Club’s
operating surplus, the Charities Trust actually increased its approved
charity donations this year to a record HK$4.5 billion. Much of this
increase was in response to the pandemic, but it was also to ensure
that the Trust could continue providing its full support to the broad
range of community needs.

In particular, the Trust continued to pursue its charities strategy,
embarked on seven years ago, which aims to enrich and increase
the impact of the Club’s community support. Specifically the Trust
seeks to take a more proactive role in addressing new and emerging
community needs, to develop a closer relationship with service
agencies, and to contribute to and foster the development of the
social sector.

We have made significant progress in all areas. Our strategic

focus on four areas - youth, the elderly, sports, and arts, culture

and heritage - is yielding real benefits, in particular through

our 14 Trust-initiated projects (TIPs). Examples include

CLAP for Youth@JC, a holistic career and life planning initiative for
young people; the Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project,

a preventive healthcare programme in support of active ageing;
CoolThink@JC, which aims to inspire the digital creativity of primary
school students; and our newest TIP, LevelMind@JC, which
addresses the mental health needs of young people. TIPs will benefit
many thousands of people, but their main impact will come through
the new approaches and service models they are helping to pioneer.

One of the most encouraging results of our new strategy is the
closer relationship we have developed with the social sector. This
was key to our fast response to COVID-19, the Club reaching out to
agencies to understand needs and then fast-tracking funds to them.
It was experience we were pleased to share as part of an
international dialogue on the response to the pandemic.
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Indeed, | believe there is growing recognition both locally and
internationally that the Charities Trust is not just a go-to provider of
funding but a voice that has knowledge, expertise and insight that
can bring real value to the social sector.

LOOKING FORWARD
R

Last year in concluding my report | wrote that the coming year would
be challenging for the Club. What | could never have imagined was a
crisis such as COVID-19, or that the Club and the community would
be tested as never before.

| believe we have stood that test well, showing both great resilience
and great agility. But as the Chairman has stated, our financial
results have been significantly impacted. Our strong balance sheet
has helped us weather the storm, but this year the Club was only
able to donate HK$2.55 billion to the Trust instead of the HK$4.3
billion it donated last year. Going forward we must be prepared for a
much more volatile environment in the months and even years to
come. Fortunately we have built up reserves which enable us to take
a longer term view.

These reserves are invested in a global and well-diversified portfolio
of financial assets where the aim is to preserve the long-term
purchasing power of the portfolio and grow the portfolio prudently
over time. While short-term mark-to-market volatility is inevitable,
and there was significant volatility during the past year, the Club has
strong governance and processes in place, which have enabled us
to be successful in achieving our investment objectives over the
long term.

With this in mind | believe the Club is well positioned to support the
strategy outlined by the Chairman. Namely to keep on investing in
our strategic development while seizing every opportunity to
develop our business. This means continuing to develop the
potential of Conghua Racecourse, including in support of the
Greater Bay Area, while moving forward with the redevelopment of
Sha Tin stables and with phase four of racecourse revitalisation.
Drawing on our technology strength we will continue to make
progress on our new customer information and wagering system,
which will provide a platform for a whole new generation of services
and products. Above all we will pursue the rich potential of
commingling, not least through the new opportunities opening up
through World Pools.
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If there is one important learning of the last year it is that we need to
maintain a diversity of revenue streams. Commingling is proof of
this. One obvious area for development is the expansion of
simulcasting, where there is considerable demand during our closed
summer season, which also coincides with the peak racing season
in Europe. | believe now is an opportune time to explore this
possibility.

Everything, | must stress, comes back to the Club’s ultimate
purpose - the betterment of our society. If the Club cannot grow and
develop it cannot continue to invest for the future or provide the
same high level of contribution to the community, with our Charities
Trust now being one of the top ten charity donors in the world. As
the last year has shown, this support has never been more
important. And with the support of our friends and partners in the
community, it is our determination never to give up.

My deepest thanks to the Board of Stewards for its support during
this most difficult year. In particular | would like to express my
gratitude to our outgoing Chairman Dr Anthony Chow and outgoing
Deputy Chairman Mr Lester Kwok for their leadership and guidance
over much of the past year. It is also my great pleasure to welcome
our new Chairman, Mr Philip Chen, new Deputy Chairman,

Mr Michael Lee, and new Steward, Mr Lester Huang.

Finally, I would like once again to express my heartfelt thanks to
the Club’s employees and to our management team. Without their
dedication, or their commitment to “One Club, One Team, One
Vision”, we would not have been able to overcome the many
challenges of this extraordinary year. My sincerest thanks to

them all.

Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges

Chief Executive Officer

24 July 2020
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The 2019/20 season will undoubtedly go down as one of the most challenging in the
Club’s history. But it will also be remembered for the strength and resilience of its
world-class racing. With the pandemic closing down sporting events across the globe,
Hong Kong raced on, safe behind its protective screen of stringent health measures.
Indeed with no shortage of racing action, including 12 international Group 1s,

the eyes of the world were on Hong Kong as never before.
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The Club faced significant tests in 2019/20, not least from the EERN2019/20 FEEZEGERZER
COQOVID-19 pandemic. But through responsible risk management, RERHAEBRESEE EMEZEA
and thanks to the outstanding support of horse owners, licensed EEENEKBERIE  BRESEEZSD
personnel and the Club’s employees, racing continued until the very T MEBRET  -BREETIERE N
end of the season. fie  2FBEEBUERSET

One impact was the cancellation of two Happy Valley race meetings, Zp > ESSZEECEMAEEHES o
one subsequently being rescheduled, with the Happy Valley meeting B2t AHE+dh—-XEESZHEHE 2R

on 15 July being the finale of the season. 7RB15AEHEMET  ERASKEES
BRIA o

In response to the pandemic, the Club moved quickly to introduce

measures aimed both at protecting public health and the health of EYEIERE  EerEEEREkRES

racing fans, employees and licensed personnel. i WREARGERER - BETH
FRARAERRRER -

Social distancing measures at Sha Tin Parade Ring.
DHES BT AE B R IERENE




The Club applied attendance limits from the Chinese New Year
meeting in late January onwards, these subsequently being adjusted
in line with Government requirements. The deepest impact of these
limits was in March-April, which saw attendance reduced from an
average of 22,000 before the outbreak to around 300, with only
trainers, jockeys, essential officials and owners with starters
permitted to attend. Temperature checks, face masks, health
declaration forms and stringent social distancing all became
mandatory.

The resulting “racing bubble”, endorsed by the Government,
enabled racing to continue without interruption. Over one million
fans in Hong Kong and around the world were thus able to enjoy
the best of Hong Kong racing, including such highlights as the BMW
Hong Kong Derby and FWD Champions Day. Just as importantly,
racing provided valuable stay-at-home entertainment at a time when
residents were being advised to avoid public gatherings.
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CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges holds a
racecourse press briefing (above). Racecourse
catering facilities operated in full compliance with
Government requirements (left).
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TE—IEE
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HONG KONG
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BEEERRE
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HONG KONG
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TOP 100 GROUP 1 RACES
EREA-KE

Hong Kong excelled on the global stage in 2019, with ten of its 12
Group 1 races amongst the World’s Top 100 Group 1 races.

20195  BBBEFEETEARESRN
B2 12BEBR-RBEPETEBIIZR

BARA—REFRHESE -
Seven Hong Kong Group 1 races appeared in the top 40, headed by

the FWD QEIl Cup, while the LONGINES Hong Kong Vase was rated BEEEELE—REMNIFI40E 0 EF
the world’s third best 2400m race. UEARBZEENHRES  MRER

BBMR 2P AL =M 2400KES -
Also in the top 40 was the Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup, which was =

the world’s highest-ranked 1400m race, as well as the world’s two
highest-rated 1200m contests: the LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint
and the Chairman’s Sprint Prize.

LERBLE - REXRTBERHER
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The other Hong Kong races to earn a place in the top 40 were the _
9 ong P P EWRLHI 1200 KBS o

LONGINES Hong Kong Mile and the Stewards’ Cup. Race rankings
are determined by the average of the year-end ratings of the first
four finishers in each Group 1 contest.

HEBMIERSIA 40 BN BB ESBITRE
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International Rating

R 127 121
Beauty Generation Beat The Clock
Horse 5 EEERE FELED

120 120 120

Aethero Exultant Hot King Prawn
BOBEL BB RS AR FEIRE

WORLD’S BEST RACEHORSE RANKINGS

HRBTFLRES

Hong Kong has achieved 20 or more horses in the LONGINES
World’s Best Racehorse Rankings every year since 2013 and did so
once more in 2019.

Beauty Generation excelled again, matching his 2018 rating of 127
to rank fourth on the overall list. Victory under a huge weight in the
Group 3 Celebration Cup, completing a winning streak of ten,
earned Beauty Generation his peak rating. That figure saw him
honoured as the world’s highest-rated miler and top horse outside
Europe, behind only Enable, Waldgeist and Crystal Ocean.

Beat The Clock emerged as one of the world’s elite sprinters with
a rating of 121 — co-29th overall - for his thrilling victory in the
LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint. Hong Kong’s champion middle
distance stayer Exultant and high-class sprinters Aethero and
Hot King Prawn were rated 120 to rank equal-35th.

Hong Kong was responsible for five of only 56 horses rated 120 or
higher in the Rankings. With 20 thoroughbreds rated 115 or higher,
Hong Kong remains the jurisdiction with the highest number of
horses in the Rankings relative to the size of its horse population.
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LEADERSHIP IN INTERNATIONAL
RACING
AEEIFREE

The Club has progressively expanded its leadership role in global
racing in recent years, notably within the Asian Racing Federation
(ARF) and the International Federation of Horseracing Authorities
(IFHA). Eight of the Club’s executives hold senior leadership positions
within the two organisations, with the Club’s CEO being Chairman of
the ARF and a Vice-Chairman of the IFHA.

Through its leadership role, the Club contributes to the progress and
development of racing worldwide. For example, it has pioneered
international commingling, whose benefits for global racing were
outlined by the CEO at this year’s Asian Racing Conference (ARC) in
Cape Town.

Likewise the Club has been instrumental in highlighting the
worldwide threat of illegal gambling. This includes providing research
and secretariat support to the ARF taskforce established to combat
illegal betting and financial crime in international horse racing.

Also in support of global racing, the Club is helping to fund a next-
generation vaccine to tackle African Horse Sickness, which has
restricted the movement and export of South African horses for many
years. Further progress on this was outlined at this year’s ARC.

gquth Africa | Cape Town |

Andrew Harding, the Club’s Executive Director of Racing and
Secretary General of the ARF, addresses the Asian Racing
Conference.
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OWNERSHIP
EFRE

The Club is fully committed to supporting horse owners in their
ambition to import and race quality thoroughbreds. Hence the
Club’s efforts to maintain racing this year were not least to ensure
that owners could campaign their horses across the full season,
including in all 12 international Group 1s. Likewise additional races
were added to the card where necessary, while the Club chartered
special flights to bring in owners’ horses. Furthermore, unlike some
jurisdictions where prize money has been cut, next season will see
an increase in overall prize money.

The Club’s support for owners includes the provision of world-class
training facilities, with Conghua Racecourse, now in its second year,
delivering outstanding results. Owners continue to respond
positively, with Conghua having an average population of 250
horses in the 2019/20 season, and more due to arrive as more
trainers take up stables there in 2020/21.

In addition to prize money, where next season the total pool will
increase to a record HK$1.4 billion, the Club incentivises owners
through the High Achievement Bonus. This season a total of 32
horses received the HK$1 million bonus for winning a Class 2 race
before the age of five while having a minimum rating of 80. Next
season the High Achievement Bonus will remain at HK$1 million,
with an additional HK$500,000 for any horse winning a Class 1 race
or higher during its period of eligibility.

Recognising the challenges owners face in purchasing quality
horses, the minimum rating for Private Purchases from the beginning
of the season was reduced from 70 to 68. From next season, there
will also be changes to equalise the ratings of unraced horses, with
all Privately Purchased Giriffins beginning their career from a rating
of 52. It is hoped these adjustments will give Hong Kong owners
more opportunities to import promising horses at a lower cost.
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The Hong Kong International Sale has long provided opportunities
for owners to purchase horses specifically selected to perform at
Hong Kong racecourses. This year’s sale, again split into two
sessions, saw a total of 30 lots go under the hammer. A Kodiac
gelding from the family of champion sprinter Lucky Nine was the top
lot of the first session at HK$6.5 million, while the leading lot at the
second session was an | Am Invincible gelding for HK$7.2 million.
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PRIZE MONEY

To maintain Hong Kong’s high standard of racing, and in particular AREAEBEEEEREIFSKT  HRIR
to incentivise owners to keep investing in high-quality horses, the SEEFISEREEEEN 2020215 E
2020/21 season will see overall prize money rise to HK$1.4 billion. ESEENAESERINE14EB T o

This includes a significant rise for the LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint, EeRERSREREBEREENES
which reclaims the mantle of the world’s most valuable Group 1 2H2,000 88 T AIEEINE2,20088
sprint with an increase from HK$20 million to HK$22 million. T BARARRESESNER—RE -
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Prize money
for group races,
2020/2

LONGINES Hong Kong Cup
REREARR

LONGINES Hong Kong Mile
REREB —ERE

FWD Queen Elizabeth Il Cup
EHRBLZER

BMW Hong Kong Derby
BESEBTHAE
LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint
RERBEBERBE
LONGINES Hong Kong Vase
REREBM

FWD Champions Mile
EARBRESE—EE
Chairman’s Sprint Prize

EFRRE

Stewards’ Cup
BEER

Centenary Sprint Cup
BRFLEERR

Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup
EERTERER
Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup
ZERELEZE

Standard Chartered Champions

& Chater Cup
B BEREITR

HK$28,000,000
HK$25,000,000
HK$25,000,000
HK$24,000,000
HK$22,000,000

HK$20,000,000

HK$20,000,000

HK$18,000,000
HK$12,000,000
HK$12,000,000
HK$12,000,000
HK$12,000,000

HK$12,000,000
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Prize money for class-level
handicap races, 2020/21 season

202021 FEEZEREBEMAEE(EB)RS

lass 4 5931
Class 5 I

Meanwhile, the Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup (HK$12 million), the
LONGINES Hong Kong Mile (HK$25 million) and the LONGINES
Hong Kong Cup (HK$28 million) remain the world’s richest Group 1
turf contests over 1400m, 1600m and 2000m.

Hong Kong’s two main international racedays, the LONGINES Hong
Kong International Races and FWD Champions Day, continue to
rank among the world’s top five race meetings in prize money, while
the FWD Champions Mile (HK$20 million) and Chairman’s Sprint
Prize (HK$18 million) rank among the richest Group 1 contests over
1600m and 1200m.

In a significant development, the BMW Hong Kong Derby is now the
second most valuable Derby in the world, behind only its Japanese
equivalent, with prize money raised from HK$20 million to

HK$24 million.

The Hong Kong Classic Mile and Hong Kong Classic Cup have also
seen significant increases, rising from HK$10 million to HK$12
million, reflecting the importance of the Four-Year-Old Classic
Series. Similar increases apply to the Centenary Sprint Cup,
Stewards’ Cup, Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup, Citi Hong Kong Gold
Cup and Standard Chartered Champions & Chater Cup.

NGINES
-

500,000
HK$1,000,000
HK$750,000

bboh » ZE2RBLSEMNESIE1,2008
B MRERBE—ERERREER
BEBRNES D BIRIF2,5008 % 2,800 8
BT ZEBEIFNREEHRBRSREEN
14003K + 1600 3K % 2000 K E tth — 4K EE o

RERBBERESREARREEES
HREEMABEMESH  WMEEENY
HRESREMNAEAEER 5+ BF
FRIBEE 1B EWIRSIEZR2,0008 BT
MEFEELEAE1,8008BT » 2BB
2HHE—REHES16003K K& 1200K
— ' o

S—BRER  RESEBITHAEN
REKH2,0008E T IRAZE2,4008E
BT RERRBARITM - RBRH
REF_SWITHES -

BBCH-—BERBBLCHATNESY
F1,000EE 7T KIRIRAZE1,2008%8
7T ERNRSEABERINEE MY ;
MABELSERE BEEK - UE2HRE
Lk THERITEBEEREHEEE
BEITRMES FHRARML -

Owner Merrick Chung Wai Lik
celebrates Beat The Clock’s
victory in the LONGINES Hong
Kong Sprint with jockey Joao
Moreira and trainer John Size.
[FHEW | B EREERLM
HENRREMENHENEHN
BHREREBERRE o
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Vincent Ho
fEs

Victor Wong Matthew Poon
EE AR

Alfred Chan
FREEER

Jerry Chau
)2

APPRENTICE JOCKEY DEVELOPMENT

A Sl

The 2019/20 season was another significant one for the Club’s
Apprentice Jockeys’ School, part of the Racing Development Board,
as past and present pupils prospered.

Vincent Ho continued to act as a powerful role model for younger
colleagues. Returning from a successful summer spell in the UK -
where he rode a winner at Ascot’s Shergar Cup as part of the
winning Rest of the World team - he recorded another career best of
67 winners. His victory aboard Golden Sixty in the BMW Hong Kong
Derby made him the first homegrown rider to land the cherished
prize since Tony Cruz in 1995, while Southern Legend’s narrow
defeat of Beauty Generation in the FWD Champions Mile gave him a
first win at international Group 1 level.

Recent Apprentice School graduate Matthew Poon and current
apprentice Alfred Chan both finished in the top half of the jockeys’
table, with 29 and 22 winners respectively. Victor Wong came back
from a long injury absence in late October, and new apprentice Jerry
Chau returned from a successful spell in Australia for the last two
months of the season, partnering seven winners under the tutelage
of Douglas Whyte.
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et E5

In its second full season, the Club’s state-of-the-art training centre
and racecourse, situated in the Mainland’s only large-scale equine
disease-free zone, scaled new heights in the face of considerable
logistical issues caused by coronavirus.

This was in no small measure due to the dedication of racing
operations and support teams, including horse transport staff and
the Mainland Affairs team, who played a vital role in maintaining
cross-boundary operations during the pandemic.

The benefits to racing were apparent in the outstanding results this
season, with more than one in six Hong Kong winners having been
trained at Conghua since its previous start.

Meanwhile, the Club’s vision of Conghua as the hub of a world-class
equine industry in the Greater Bay Area continued to progress.

STATE-OF-THE-ART FACILITIES
JCHERR I

Spread across 150 hectares, Conghua Racecourse offers some of
the most advanced thoroughbred training facilities in the world,
with four training tracks, extensive spelling paddocks, a specially
designed equine pool and the Mainland’s most advanced equine
hospital and farrier forge.

This season saw Conghua’s rehabilitation facilities further enhanced,
while new training programmes are helping staff prepare horses for
elite competition.

Planning is already underway for phase two of the project, which will
see an expansion of stabling, training and public facilities.

FENRIES  LERAMEE—HRE
EREERBMERRE  B—RSTIIR
POKES o AFEULESE BRUALRN
E_E=EZE T BEFEHRES
SEEYE TYREE - BRCES8E
B2l BRIEE-

ZERFHBEREREE BFFS -
FREEEFEEXETRAMBHEERS
BEFLEERIEEBRELEE - 200
BB T/ REA A IERETT o

RICFSERNEFERE - RRNRSEN
T BACRSEEERENER B8
Puk— UL HEAT B RIEEZ N -

o SEHBRIEBRRSNEE R
BLERRONES - FREENGSER -

WAL FBHEH 150 ALE - RAEFREBKR
TERFNRRIE - F5RE OIFRIRHEE -
ZERES - FRIREH RS TkAH -
Rt EE— SN SERRETFTE -

ZR - FEE-SRARCHITER
R - MATRAVIEIETE - RISHEBMET
RETHEBERBESFTERS -

SEEMSRREREBSNE_HHE
BREEESE - JIRKRARRME
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TRAINERS AND OWNERS REAP THE REWARDS

RERN R B E DR E

Conghua’s nine original trainers — Tony Cruz, Caspar Fownes, John
Moore, Paul O’Sullivan, Danny Shum, John Size, Chris So, Me Tsui
and Dennis Yip — were joined at the start of the 2019/20 season by
Frankie Lor, Jimmy Ting, Ricky Yiu and Benno Yung.

Conghua’s benefits were amply demonstrated by the quantity and
quality of winners produced. The fiftieth Conghua winner of the
season was recorded at Christmas; the hundredth came in late
March; the 2018/19 total of 109 Conghua winners was beaten by
early May; and the final season total of 139 was reached when
Super Oasis won at Sha Tin on July 12.

The season was also notable for big-race wins by Conghua
graduates. Seasons Bloom was based there before his win in the
Group 2 Premier Bowl in October; Voyage Warrior was trained from
Conghua prior to winning the Group 2 Sprint Cup in April; Time
Warp captured the Group 1 Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup in February
after a lengthy period at Conghua in 2019; Southern Legend spent
a month at Conghua before winning the Group 1 FWD Champions
Mile in April; and Thanks Forever benefited from several spells at
Conghua before winning the Group 3 Sha Tin Vase in May.

Furthermore, this year’s Champion Trainer Ricky Yiu and runner-up
Tony Cruz were also the top two Conghua trainers, though with the
positions reversed, Cruz having 23 Conghua winners to Yiu’s 17.

Douglas Whyte, David Hayes, Francis Lui and David Hall will have
horses based at Conghua for the first time in the 2020/21 season.
This will increase the number of trainers running dual-site operations
to 16, while the average horse population on site will increase to
around 340.

AN EQUINE CENTRE FOR THE
GREATER BAY AREA
REEF AL

Conghua Racecourse is unique in being the Mainland’s first

international standard thoroughbred training centre and racecourse.

It is also located in its only large-scale equine-disease free zone, a
status which is internationally recognised by all leading authorities,
including from this year by Australia.
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As such, Conghua is ideally positioned to support the development RILEBTEAEERXRERNETESE

of a world-class equine industry in the Greater Bay Area, bringing IFEGEY  AREAIERER KR
employment and economic development to the region as well as #BE S WIEARMCERRRERERN
helping to raise the profile of Conghua District both nationally and {7 0 2019 3 B » ML BB P B R4l
internationally. This was well demonstrated by Conghua’s first ERMEREENEE RETRIENEE
exhibition raceday in March 2019. B e

Meanwhile, the Club is exploring the possibility of establishing a o BEERRERLE T IBESES
quarantine station at Conghua, which will facilitate the international MATREM » LUERIREMR T EBRRZE T 2
import and export of horses with internationally recognised BraEEBRELEOEE ENRH -

health status.

Southern Legend FWD Champions Mile (Group 1)
JICAUE EAREEE-—EE(—KE)

TimeWarp  Giti Hong Kong Gold Cup (Group 1)
RE B EARTERSE (—RE)

Seasons Bloom The Premier Bowl (Group 2)
e BRw (= RE)

Voyage Warrior The Sprint Cup (Group 2)
Bt RRRR(ZRE)

Thanks Forever The Sha Tin Vase (Group 3)
HERR DHRIE(ZHE)

€| really like the place. A lot of my £ Conghua has helped Seasons Bloom
winners have raced out of Conghua a lot. The environment there is good
and my staff there have done a for him. He loves it and my team
really good job. there has done a great job with him.
BRREBREALS  REREZT e T BEIRA - EHERE
FEEYBEMEZIR  MRESH REEH - EHBR - RMERLH
WEEERERBEMEEHE - 7) BB S RS R LF - 7T
Ricky Yiu Danny Shum
P MR
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRBEERE

The 2019 LONGINES Hong Kong International Races (HKIR)
saw Hong Kong show its sporting face to the world with a
week-long festival of international racing featuring
exceptional horses, riders and trainers from all

points of the globe.

2019 REXBFEBERBESERERESRS -
WEIRE tHREMHNTERER - BT
RAERS  AZRRTEBNREBLD -
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Highlights included the LONGINES International Jockeys' Championship at
Happy Valley, in which Hong Kong-based Karis Teetan made the most of a
strong book of rides to beat off a world-class field, including previous
winners Frankie Dettori and Ryan Moore. Dettori was riding in Hong Kong for
the first time since 2011 and was honoured at the spectacular HKIR Gala
Dinner where he was crowned LONGINES World's Best Jockey for the third
time in five years.

Running in tandem with these sporting and social events were a series of
significant racing industry gatherings. These included a meeting of the
executive council of the Asian Racing Federation, chaired by the Club’s CEO,
along with a meeting of the Anti-illegal Betting Taskforce. There were also a
number of International Federation of Horseracing Authorities committee
meetings concerning such headline topics as gene doping, horse welfare,
international movement of horses, international harmonisation of racing rules
and the 2019 World’s Best Racehorse Rankings.

But, as ever, the main focus was Sunday’s Sha Tin showpiece, with four
Group 1 contests worth HK$93 million. Japan shone brightly on a glorious
day as a powerful team of horses captured three of the four HKIR events for
the first time since 2001. Glory Vase and Joao Moreira struck the first blow
for Japan with a runaway defeat of fellow Japanese raider Lucky Lilac and
Hong Kong's champion middle distance stayer Exultant in a strong renewal
of the LONGINES Hong Kong Vase.

Moreira was in the spotlight again when driving Hong Kong's champion

= Y
- =

L"' ; sprinter Beat The Clock home just ahead of fellow John Size runner Hot King
X : Prawn and rising star Aethero in the LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint.

E ] Belgian superstar Christophe Soumillon recorded his first HKIR winner since
,'i. 2008 when Admire Mars swooped late to master both Waikuku and two-time
3 previous winner Beauty Generation in the LONGINES Hong Kong Mile.

1' And one of the most memorable days in Japanese racing history was

completed when the FWD QEIl Cup winner Win Bright, ridden by
Masami Matsuoka, just held the fast-finishing Irish filly Magic Wand in a
thrilling climax to Hong Kong's richest race, the HK$28 million
LONGINES Hong Kong Cup.

Turnover for the ten-race meeting was a record HK$1.71
billion. Commingling turnover, at HK$334 million, was up
by almost 30% from 2018. Of the 44 runners in the four

feature races, 21 were international Group 1 winners.

Record turnover 1 7 1 Billion
BRRSIRTE HK$ ] 17{81,000 88T

Commingling turnover
EAFMhIRER

E;GBZlMWm
HK$ 313,400 838 7T
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BB RENEMASRZ HB— R R AR - SEAER
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Karis Teetan, winner of the
2019 LONGINES International
Jockeys’ Championship.
HRZR2019FRER

Bl BAET SR TR ER o
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS

~ LONGINES
@ EST JOCKEY
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LONGINES

HOMNG KONG

INTERMATIONAL RACES
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
TREERE

HONG KONG

Sprint
RERE B
bz kit

3eat The Clock
vner: Merrick
Chung Wai Lik
Trainer: John Size
Jockey: Joao Moreira

BHET  [Z2EW
Bx  EEE
HRERN | RO
5560 EFH

HONG KONG

Cup

RERBBR

Hatakeyama
Jockey: Masami Matsuoka

BB [BHXXE]
F5= : Win Co Ltd
HRERD : EILER
53R : AARIESE
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Winner: Admire Mars
Owner: Riichi Kondo
Trainer: Yasuo Tomomichi
Jockey: Christophe
Soumillon

B  [EEAE ]
BE L MERA—
RESED © RIERER
Fabm - gRifR

Winner: Glory Vase
Owner: Silk Racing Co Ltd
Trainer: Tomohito Ozeki
Jockey: Joao Moreira

5 BT - [REmIE
5= : Silk Racing Co Ltd
ZRESHED : BRAZIA

oA : EER
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
TREERE

Stewards’
BED

RERBE—ERETE [ERR T hnR =
Al LRSS HhEMEET BB E [ ZEER]
BEEER  FHE-ERBARNSEFER
N o ERABABNBESNAER  RMEER
ARAERE=ZERBHIE-RETE -
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CENTENARY

Sprint Cup

BBAFLESERR

in the first three in 24 consecutive starts. Winning trainer o
John Size collected the trophy for the third year running.

EZEBVE[FOEY | SAESEIE - ERESKRRRRED
BR - UEBEAZEBYERE ] RIHER - FRLEE
REWBERE [FoEW | HRFSHEE24R 2815
=F . MRS SEAMERE = FRIGHLIERE -

- Y
nﬁr
BBFicSaER .

C E N T E I Nr ¥ P 1% Leg of the
- T “ .E

V

Winner: Beat The Clock
Owner: Merrick

Chung Wai Lik
Trainer: John Size
Jockey: Joao Moreira

BHEET  [E2E |
Bx  EEE
HREEN | B
5560 EEFR
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
TREERE

s

bt I
™ —

% |

Winner: Time Warp

CITI HONG KONG Owner: Martin

Siu Kim Sun
G o I d C u p Trainer: Tony Cruz

Jockey: Joao Moreira

B¥ : #alE
HREED : EXRfE

BT SES

Joao Moreira, while winning handler Tony Cruz has now captured the
Gold Cup twice as a rider and seven times as a trainer. Meanwhile,
Time Warp made history as the first Hong Kong horse to succeed at
Group 1 level after spending time at the Club’s Conghua training base.

2018 FREBMITERERBE [ FREHN | REFUFET - RRUMESE
B OHBRIFADNED  BRRUED ZF U2 BB ARAPIREE
[BFEFEAR ] BERTUHERE  ERAETERACZINEBETE L
—RE - BRSHN  EFNFARNERE -—REERSF  MARBAERE
BLAREE - REHBEMESR -
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QUEEN'’S SILVER

Jubilee Cup

ERELE

Purton to beat Ka Ying Star by half a length. John
Moore’s gelding became the first horse to land the
trophy three times and in doing so gave his trainer a
fourth win in a row.

LERELSHERFBE——HBRA 1400 KN —RE -
XBERIE=F2F BALHBEAOMIEER
BSHEEER T OPt LA - BRARUFEFLZEBH
[REEZE RmT  RAETEEHLEZERFNER
REMABECABEENFER -

KRBT 120 & i

SlLvE™ | lBIL

Winner: Beauty Generation
Owner: Patrick

Kwok Ho Chuen
Trainer: John Moore
Jockey: Zac Purton

BT« [ B EA
FE | SER

ARESEM - A9REEDR
Eafm - B
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS

Winner: Golden Sixty
Owner: Stanley

Chan Ka Leung
Trainer: Francis Lui
Jockey: Vincent Ho

BHET [ 2igxt]
BE  RER

BRSED - BRRE

Saem - iES

BMW
Hong Kong
Derby g5t A%

capture all three legs of the Four-Year-Old Classic Series. It was a first Derby
success for Ho and winning trainer Francis Lui, and the first time since 1971 that
a native Hong Kong trainer, rider and owner had combined for Derby glory.

BESEBIMABRR - REXERARBHNES - BAIARM [+ AMES
K5 RBBERBRIPIER  UFBUZANBERERENEN[EZEEE|EW -
[ERAT]IMERERER220.158 » RIFLELE - ERSH - [£B+ I ZAW
BrEEEE  MEZEEABELNETE2REN SR T2M [ EEM] % BEXRE
“THEREENRSEARSRI-ARSTENEN  MEZERFM2RETE
RBSBEBITHAE > RBB 1971 FUR - BHEATEIRBRASH T ITHER -
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
TREERE

FWD
Champions
Day =#rpEEEEE

The third edition of Champions Day - with the Chairman’s Sprint Prize, FWD
Champions Mile and FWD Queen Elizabeth Il Cup all run on one card — had a
very different look in 2020. Travel restrictions caused by coronavirus meant the
event was a hometown affair, but there was no lack of interest in the sporting
world, especially with the three Group 1 contests offering total prize money of
HK$63 million.

SEF-—FERETEEFA RALE=A-—LE IEERE EEHRREE
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FWD

insurance

Winner: Exultant

Owner: Eddie

Wong Ming Chak &
Wong Leung Sau Hing
Trainer: Tony Cruz

Jockey: Zac Purton

s S UC - [ R BFASAR
BE  THEETIREM
BRESEN - SRE

Sabm - B

and a momentous one for champion jockey Purton, who became the
first rider in history to win every Hong Kong Group 1 contest.

[EFEFAEAR | ELRAE [ SR BT | iF B SR RBERSHRE - SH
KR FHTFRECHER [REER] < [ERER ] Rae
EfR@REN - WAREFRE T OR LA o [REER] &L
LMy =Fuz f8ME —BRER EEESEBITHAE
BE[ARE]IEH NEHENE-RETE - BFHE
AEERSEERRLER  MABREMLELRT
FREERSRT—RBAORE
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
TREERE

FWD _' o
Champions Mile &«
EARBEE 2
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CHAIRMAN’S
Sprint Prize
TEERE
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STANDARD CHARTERED
Champions
& Chater Cup

B ESEZETR

d old
ophy for
with California
Star and Pakistan
of them all”.

2 [IERER ] EREB THED
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MMER ] (K5 (EMERT) - [EEEE]R
ALt - [BEER | RER [ REENRES ] -

Cruz
ckey: Zac Purton
5 H S UT [ RRIRAEAR
BE  THEEIREM
BRISE - HRE
BSAD 1 EE

63



A YEAR OF CHAMPIONS
BEAFESF

Hong Kong racing hailed a new champion as Exultant
thwarted Beauty Generation’s bid to become Horse of the
Year for the third consecutive season. Champion Middle-
Distance Horse and Champion Stayer in 2018/19 Exultant
dominated those divisions again, winning four of seven
starts and signing off with a first success in the Group 1
FWD QEIl Cup and a second win in the Group 1 Standard
Chartered Champions & Chater Cup. He ended the season
with career earnings of over HK$73 million.

Beauty Generation remained a potent force over 1400m and
1600m. Not only was he proclaimed the world’s leading turf
miler for the second year running — with a World’s Best
Racehorse rating of 127 for his win in the Group 3
Celebration Cup — but he also won the Group 1 Queen’s
Silver Jubilee Cup for a third year running and became the
first horse in Hong Kong history to pass HK$100 million in
prize money by winning the Group 2 Chairman’s Trophy.
The latter success was his 18th since arriving in Hong Kong,
taking him level with the great Silent Witness, and helped
seal his third consecutive Champion Miler award.

A bright new star arrived in the shape of Golden Sixty, who
completed a flawless seven-race season and became only
the second horse to complete a clean sweep of the Four-
Year-Old Classic Series. His impressive winning streak made
him a standout for the newly created Champion Four-Year-
Old award. He was also voted Most Popular Horse of the
Year by the racing public. Beat The Clock’s Group 1 wins in
the LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint and the Centenary Sprint
Cup earned him the Champion Sprinter title for a second
year running. Amazing Star recorded four impressive Happy
Valley sprint wins, progressing from a rating of 58 to 100 to
win the Most Improved Horse Award, while Good Luck
Friend was named Champion Giriffin.
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Horse of the Year

BEESE

Champion Four-Year-Old
EENREE

Champion Middle-Distance Horse
REFERS

Champion Miler
BE—IES

Champion Sprinter

REERS

Champion Stayer
BRERRE

Champion Griffin
BREHS

Most Improved Horse
BRRESFT

Champion Trainer
TEEREHM

Champion Jockey
& E B
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Chairman Philip Chen announces Horse of the Year, Exultant, at the 2019/20 Champion Awards. :%a:%ﬁ ’ E&Eﬁ—l— — i&%iﬁfﬁﬁ ﬁi%
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A big thumbs up for Horse of the Year Exultant.
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Champisns o, SPIRIT OF CHAMPIONS

Trainer John Moore accepts his Lifetime Achievement Award. (left to right) Champion Jockey Zac Purton, Champion Trainer Ricky Yiu and

REEMAMEE T AR [ R B R o Tony Cruz Award winner Vincent Ho.
(HEZER) SERM | FE [ SEREM ] AER [ ERER ]| FEMESE -

Zac Purton secured a fourth Champion Jockey title after a lengthy
duel with Joao Moreira. The Australian took command in the final
month of the season to end on 147 winners. However, the public
vote for the Most Popular Jockey of the Year went to Vincent Ho,
who added to his Derby success with a first international Group 1
win as Southern Legend prevailed in an epic duel with Purton and
Beauty Generation in the FWD Champions Mile. Ho also received a
second consecutive Tony Cruz Award for leading homegrown rider
by finishing fourth in the table with a personal best of 67 wins.

The season closed under floodlights at Happy Valley for the first
time since 2013, with three homegrown trainers contesting a long
and memorable race to be Champion Trainer. Having been training
since 1995, Ricky Yiu went into the final meeting four clear of Tony
Cruz and Francis Lui and hailed his first title as “the peak of my
career” after ending the night two clear of Cruz on 67 winners.
Seven-time champion John Moore was honoured with a Lifetime
Achievement Award upon his retirement from Hong Kong racing,
while the season closed with a last-race success for Karis Teetan
and Waldorf on a night when turnover exceeded HK$1.6 billion,

a new record for a Happy Valley meeting.
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HONG KONG-TRAIN
INTERNATIONAL
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RACECOURSE ENTERTAINMENT

515 IR 84

Hong Kong is home to some of the world’s most exciting racing,
with its international track at Sha Tin and world-famous Happy
Valley Racecourse offering a unique sporting, social and
entertainment experience.

Both racecourses have been transformed as part of the Club’s
HK$7.1 billion Racecourse Master Plan, with superior levels of
hospitality provided to differentiated customer segments.

This season saw the opening of two new venues at Happy Valley:
the Sponsors Box and the Parade Enclosure Suite. The Diamond
Vision screens were also enhanced, with a second screen being
installed at Happy Valley and Sha Tin’s screen now offering high
quality resolution.

The season began with all the traditional fanfare of the opening race
at Sha Tin, while the famous Happy Wednesday parties soon got
underway at Happy Valley, with fans enjoying Oktoberfest, a Japan-
themed night and a new celebration of all things Swedish. The
highlight was undoubtedly the LONGINES Hong Kong International
Races, and preceding it the thrill of the LONGINES International
Jockeys’ Championship.

68

EENURRBEERAY  BXEED
He» BREBRESNOESS  EF
EHALANRTELES  BASATREM
HRIRRERRE BENRENBESER -

FERENEERETSSRERME
B mESSNBHIRECTX
ATEEAEFRHEEENTIETRY

ZR - WEMSSEMEAZHREMRE
2RI REYE MR R SARLARERE o it
o BENKeXRBEETEMER
BEMBFSTEFEEEARE
MmAHASENAFRECASHEE
HBEREMW

AEZUDHEEHIBES A NSRS
ERNEHEFE > BELENEESED
K38 5 1t B5 32 Happy Wednesday R &
K SERBRENEBTHEE
[MREAEEE ] [BA2®] RaminA
HESENZH [HERERE ] ABRE
BZ BB EE - HE LENERER
RHHRERERRMIEE > URER
REZHERNREREBERES -



/ Operations Review Racing and Racecourse Entertainment / ZI5EIfE BEE K S5 3RE /

Then came COVID-19. To protect public health, attendance limits
were implemented for the Chinese New Year meeting in late
January and subsequently adjusted as required by the Government.
Though these limits effectively brought an end to the live racing

experience, together with the other health measures put in place
they ensured that racing could continue until the very end of
the season.

All of which meant that fans still had plenty to celebrate. From the
comfort of their home TV, online or via mobile app they were able to
watch and wager on every remaining race, including such classics
as the BMW Hong Kong Derby and FWD Champions Day. With
most sports around the world either cancelled or severely reduced
it was a rare experience indeed.

So if the post-COVID future is in many ways uncertain, of one thing
racing fans can be sure. Next season Hong Kong racing will be
back, and better than ever!
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FEATURE RACEDAYS
TEEEH

SEASON OPENING
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BOW TIE DAY
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2019
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NATIONAL DAY
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NATIONAL DAY
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LUCKY START
JANUARY 1

HiE1AA CHINESE NEW YEAR
REMFESH

SEASON FINALE
S YRS
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This year the Club reached an important milestone in its journey towards a new membership
experience. With preparations underway for the opening of the New Clubhouse at The Hilltop
in The Valley, the Club is embarking on a major initiative to bring more rewarding, enriching
and memorable experiences to its members. In doing so the Club seeks to better serve the
needs of members, both present and future, as they carry forward the Club’s heritage of
world-class racing and its deep commitment to the betterment of society.

SE BERHASETRGHER WEESFTHER - RMELE AL The Hilltop in The Valley
WHEMETHESEELIE FELSERAETFEE  BEYRESHER - RMHF  BEEARKRXRK
SERMUEBERB 2 TESENERRESEARBIBEREXZFHENREBERTE -
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THE HILLTOP IN THE VALLEY

Built on the site of the historic former racing stables, The Hilltop in
The Valley has long been at the heart of the Club’s membership
experience. With the completion of the New Clubhouse, and of The
Link Building which connects it to the existing Old Clubhouse, The
Hilltop will offer even more enriching experiences for members of all
ages to enjoy with family and friends.

With eight floors of dining, recreation and social space, the New
Clubhouse will be a place to pursue active lifestyles, explore new
dining options, and for families to spend more time together. Fitness
options include a 50-metre swimming pool, a state-of-the-art gym
and rooftop tennis courts. Children can enjoy an expanded play area
at the Magic Valley, with opportunities to explore, discover and
learn. Dining options include the Trio for Chinese provincial cuisine,

New dining and
fitness options at
Happy Valley New
Clubhouse.
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The Rock offering western-style wholesome and healthy eating,

The Parade with five live action kitchens offering a choice of
international cuisine, Teppanyaki Issho, and the dog-friendly Stables
Café. And on the 8/F, evenings will come alive in a relaxed social

space, featuring a 360° bar, live music, a games area, a variety of
dining options, as well as opportunities to catch up on the best of
global sport, including the Club’s own horse racing.

The Old Clubhouse meanwhile will retain all of its tranquil ambience,
though with no less attention to the quality of service. Indeed, the
former Food Plaza has been transformed into the Six Furlong
Express, with space for gym and swimming pool users to mingle
over a casual bite to eat.

Joining the two is The Link Building, featuring The Crest — a wine bar
and shop — and an expanded LEVADE retail outlet.
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An expanded LEVADE and children’s
play area, and a spectacular aquarium,
are just some of the attractions of the
New Clubhouse.
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NEW MEMBERSHIP EXPERIENCE
NS ERER

The new membership experience, of which The Hilltop in The Valley
is the standard bearer, takes its inspiration from the Club’s heritage
of racing and riding and its longstanding commitment to the
betterment of society. The aim is to help members realise the full
potential of their membership, whether it be through personal and
family development, through the unique opportunity to participate in
the sport of horse racing, or through serving the community as an
active member of the Club. Key themes are racing and horses,
community service and betterment, hospitality and entertainment,
and family and wellness.

The New Clubhouse outlets and programmes have been designed
to expand on these themes. The focus of the opening phase will be
the Club’s racing heritage, including displays of trophies and historic
racing badges, as well as opportunities for members to share their
own racing memories. Subsequent phases aim to help members get
more out of their membership, whether it be through new dining
experiences, fitness programmes, socialising opportunities, or
special learning and development activities for children and

young people.

This holistic membership experience will be expanded to other
clubhouses, where there will also be some hardware upgrades. For
example, at Sha Tin Clubhouse work is in progress to renovate the fifth
floor Centurion Restaurant and Kat O Bar and to create a new bistro.
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At Beas River Country Club, work has already been completed on a
new butterfly garden, lotus pond and rose garden with the aim of
enhancing its ambience as a countryside and wellness retreat. This
is complemented by a variety of programmes, including nature
walks and talks, handicrafts and yoga.

A TECHNOLOGY-ENABLED
EXPERIENCE
AR ER

A key enabler of the new membership experience is technology,
which is being progressively integrated into key touch points. This
year saw the introduction of a new car parking system, facilitated by
RFID technology, and new smart wristbands for accessing gym
lockers at the New Clubhouse and Beas River Country Club.

For faster and more convenient payment, all membership cards
have already been upgraded with a contactless payment feature.

A new smartcard and eKiosk system at The Parade will help members
and guests shop and dine at their own pace and convenience.

MEMBERSHIP HOSPITALITY
ACADEMY
ZERESHER

Also supporting the new membership experience is the new
Membership Hospitality Academy, which provides professional
development and qualifications to the Club’s membership team.

Its three programmes have been accredited by the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications,
with the Club being the first non-academic member of the hospitality
industry to offer a QF Level 5 programme in Hong Kong (equivalent
to the QF Level of a local Bachelor’s degree).
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% With new garden features,
+y Beas River Country Club is
the perfect countryside
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THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB
MEMBERSHIP HOSPITALITY ACADEMY
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The launch of the Academy coincided with the “Extraordinary Me

Extraordinary Team Staff Communication & Hiring Programme” aimed

at strengthening the Club’s 1,800 strong membership team. The

programme included a job fair, recruitment events, staff engagement

and employer branding. It subsequently won 17 awards.

A TASTE OF EXCELLENCE
miEfEEE

The Club has long prided itself on offering some of the best dining
experience. To maintain this high standard, new menus, signature
dishes and carefully benchmarked pricing are being introduced to
some of the most popular outlets.

These include the Six Furlong, The Gallop, and from October this
year the Old Clubhouse at Beas River Country Club, whose menu
now features new signature dishes and vegetarian options in
keeping with its wellness and countryside setting.

All of this in addition to the 13 new outlets opening at the New
Clubhouse, providing members with a new range of options, plus
renovations to the 5/F dining outlets at Sha Tin Clubhouse, which
will include a new French bistro.
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Livening up the choices available during the year were appearances
by guest chefs, which though impacted by the pandemic still
brought no less than three Michelin 3-starred chefs and two Michelin
2-starred chefs to Hong Kong.

Alongside these were opportunities to taste some of the finest
provincial cuisine served up by master chefs from Fujian, Hubei,
Shaanxi, Liaoning, Guangxi and Guangzhou.

CARING FOR OUR COMMUNITY
Eapkaicd

Members have long lent a helping hand to the most needy members
of the community as part of the Members’ CARE@hkjc Volunteer
Team. Today the team numbers some 1,088, with members having
contributed more than 17,400 hours of community service.

Though its activities were impacted by COVID-19, earlier in the year
members joined with underprivileged and disabled children to
celebrate the Mid-Autumn Festival and Christmas. They also
accompanied elderly visitors to the Jockey Club Smart Ageing Hub,
while new members attended a volunteer training workshop
organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Volunteers.

Members share their
caring hearts as part of
the Members’ Care@hkjc
Volunteer Team.
EEMAGEEERTH
EEEEALELEIE -
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The Hong Kong ] ockey Club

The Hilltop in The Valley
HAPPY VALLEY CLUBHOUSE

STANDING STRONG WITH OUR
MEMBERS
/\E Eij]l:ﬁ |_.|{T

For our members, as for everyone, the last year will be chiefly
remembered for the outbreak of COVID-19 and its impact on the
health and welfare of our community.

In this difficult time the Club was very mindful of the need to protect
members and also the staff who serve them. A wide range of
precautionary measures were adopted to maintain hygiene,
including the closure at various times of different dining and
recreation facilities. Thanks to these measures, the support of
members, and the dedication of front-line staff, the clubhouses
continued to function, providing welcome respite to many
members.

Throughout, and despite encountering many obstacles, work
continued on the New Clubhouse. And on 16 June, on schedule,
the Club’s signature horse racing statue was unveiled at The Hilltop
in The Valley.

History is made as the new horse statue is
. unveiled at The Hilltop in The Valley.
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As for all of the Club’s operations, this has been a challenging year for wagering and
lottery services. Nonetheless, thanks to the strength of its digital wagering platform
the Club was able to maintain its full support for racing customers. Meanwhile,
commingling saw further significant growth, reflecting the continued expansion of the
Club’s racing and wagering brand worldwide.
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In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and in compliance with
Government regulations as they were implemented, from February
onwards the Club either ceased or substantially reduced operations
at Off-Course Betting Branches, Telebet centres and racecourses.

Racing however continued thanks to the support of the Government,
horse owners and racing personnel, with the Club maintaining a full
racing information and wagering service via its digital platform. In
addition, the Club accelerated the launch of its Faster Payment
System, facilitating online funds transfer at a time when all Off-
Course Betting Branches were closed.

As a result of this, and of the strong performance of commingling,
racing turnover for the financial year was down just 3.2% to
HK$121 billion. Turnover for the racing season was down 2.6% to
HK$121.6 billion.

The cessation of all major football leagues did, however, have a
significant impact on football betting, which only partially

recovered following the resumption of some leagues from mid-May.
In consequence, turnover on football betting declined 18.8% to
HK$92.6 billion.

With most lottery transactions being in-person and over the counter,
the Club decided to suspend the Mark Six on 2 February for public
health reasons. As a result, lottery turnover for the year was down
39% to HK$5.1 billion.

Though overall wagering and lottery turnover therefore declined this
year, it is important to note that it still provided HK$25.2 billion to the
community in terms of betting duty, profits tax, Lotteries Fund
contributions and approved charity donations.
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Since its launch six years ago, commingling has seen substantial
year-on-year growth and now contributes significantly to overall
racing turnover.

This year the Club further expanded its network through a new
partnership with Pari Mutuel Urbain (PMU), one of the world’s largest
wagering operators. The Club now has over 50 partners and a fan
base that spans 27 racing jurisdictions.

REHHEBRRSEBERETRFER
HAERERG) - FEm2 AREEFEHKIE
BOBINRER » BREREFORES
HYEE o

B ARG - BERBEEAEN
XFF BERHEUMEEET mEE
TEBBB TV EREARMHEENESER
KRR o Lo FEIRMED
[EHR R BEFESIMUIERE
BARA AR I REETH L8R -

BRLMEBRETRYE  MEESEH
RBEE  SAPRFENERRTHE
ETH3.2% E1,210E8 7T » MAEEH
FOXEERI T #2.6% £ 1,216 &8 7T ©

A BRAERBEEEH ERERER
BREATE - BAMBOHEHS A
PEEMEEST  BNRETEREERR
BENIEX  UBEREENRIERET B
18.8% £ 926 fEE T ©

HAAR D RERZEHBEEHRSNES
2 ERAHREEES - BFERER
2A2ABEFEASRELR  UHAFE
MRSIRTEA T BR39% E51BBTT ©

HARFENEEBY N RS REEEM
T BEESNABBHMNEEHR - FE
B REESEBRRCEMESHR
RIEER2528HB T

A Tt B A G BTHEAT DU » 1247 8519
THEE - RERABBESREEN
EZ-—-

FR - BREAT-I2REANEY
#48 Pari Mutuel Urbain (PMU) 5T M 254
EERR  E—SERESE DAL
EE2RCARBL0EESL OISR
BREM 27 BAERRME o

85



OVER 50 COMMINGLING PARTNERS
IN 27 COUNTRIES AND JURISDICTIONS
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What increasingly attracts overseas fans to Hong Kong racing is the
competitiveness and quality of fields, the liquidity of pools and the
Club’s reputation for integrity; a trend that was undoubtedly
accelerated this year as a result of the cessation or scaling back of
racing in other parts of the world during the pandemic.

All of this contributed to a further increase in commingling turnover,
which was up 25.3% this season to HK$23.6 billion, representing
19.4% of total racing turnover for the season. With the relaunch next
season of Forecast, a bet type well known overseas, there is the
possibility of further strong growth.

This season also saw the first outbound commingling, with Hong
Kong fans commingling into pools offered by PMU on Prix de I’Arc
de Triomphe Day and Poule d’Essai des Poulains Day, and on the
Prix du Jockey Club and the Prix de Diane.
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But perhaps the most encouraging development was the continued
expansion of World Pools, which combine the best in world racing
with a truly international wagering pool.

The concept was pioneered by the Club and overseas partners at
last year’s Royal Ascot, resulting in a significant increase in turnover
on that meeting. This year World Pools were again offered on

Royal Ascot and for the first time on Dubai Super Saturday.

With turnover on the Royal Ascot World Pool increasing by 33%

to HK$1.4 billion, it is clear that World Pools have considerable
potential, with the Club well-positioned as a global racing and
wagering hub.

To further promote international co-operation, including with
respect to business growth, responsible gambling and the use of
technology, the World Tote Association (WoTA) was established in
June, bringing together members of the European Pari Mutuel
Association and the Asian African Tote Association. The Club will be
the co-chair for the next two years.

R RLABRENEEZRESK LN
FERER  AEMERESRERERCH

EREM -

SERENEEBAREFNERELS
BERABTRREAYM  F2ESAH
MIRSEERIEIE - REEMNERELIA
ESFERREREST M - MEFER
EFAESATERFRPZE M - KEE
EXRITAZIREST O ] WRIEEIZM
3B E14EHB T IRERESE MM
BOAEK  DRESEREREFREY
ESVVN: B R AR

RE-FINEEREERBRE - BEH
BERBRERATENGHE  HRES
EREEN6 BRI - tREFHLBE
EEBNESEEBBMINRIENES
BEBBANKE  MEEAREREWF
HEBBENBEERE -

W AN I T o)
Ol Varo) = L
Worin Tore Associanos
) T A =
= — = - i‘:ﬂ
- Runciacs Fj TEOREC  Spometn % Teboorp
aF & r
TOTE ™ RS F= TR [T '%‘;F !z__ \s) woooRT

SIMULCASTING
MTEERES

Simulcasting, the broadcast of overseas races and race meetings, is
increasingly popular in Hong Kong. This reflects the growing interest
of fans in overseas racing, which is itself the product of a global
trend towards the internationalisation of sport.

Responding to this demand, the Club this year expanded the
information available on its popular Racing Touch app to include
simulcast races, including the live broadcast of races.

Currently fans are able to enjoy simulcasts of 23 overseas meetings
plus 10 individual overseas races. Although the pandemic required
some adjustments to the schedule this year, fans were still able to
enjoy some of the best of world racing including the Prix de I’Arc de
Triomphe from France, Melbourne Cup day from Australia, Sprinters
Stakes day from Japan and all five days of Britain’s Royal Ascot.
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Indeed the flexibility with which the Club was able to substitute races,
and thus maintain a full racing schedule, underlines the benefits of
being able to access overseas racing. Certainly simulcasting has
growth potential, particularly where it is combined with World Pools
hosted by the Club.

SMART CHANNEL STRATEGY

MESE M &5

# R IE RS

The Club has long been acknowledged as a world-leader in wagering
technology. Already by 2017/18, over 70% of turnover was online
from a base of more than one million customers, which is the highest
among major racing operators. Other innovations include HKJC TV,

an OTT app for live racing and football streaming, which now has over
200,000 active users per season.

Under its Smart Channel 2.0 strategy, the Club is moving to the next
stage of its digital transformation of the wagering experience. The aim
is not only to digitalise wagering transactions but the entire customer
journey, with artificial intelligence around deep learning being the key
enabling technology.

Racecourse .
Experience

i

& Booking

Preparing

=
1200,000.

unique customers are using
Smart Platform to enjoy their
wagering experience

Funds

2000002 rom

unique customers have
registered HKJC FPS service
since launch in Feb 2020
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Utilising the latest financial technology, the Faster Payment System
(FPS) was launched in February to facilitate funds transfer via
online registration and mobile platforms. More than 240,000
customers had signed up, making the Club one of the largest

FPS merchants in Hong Kong.

Racing Touch now incorporates more detailed simulcast
information as well as horse-by-horse morning trackwork videos
not available on other platforms. The Club continues to be the
global leader in the provision of racing and wagering information
to customers.

There were also further enhancements to HKJC TV. Multi-angled
camera live streaming, not available on conventional TV, is now
available to all account holders, providing even greater coverage
of horses in the parade ring and as they enter the track.

The streaming time-lag was also significantly reduced.

Meanwhile, biometric logons are now available for all
HKJC wagering apps, improving both security and customer
convenience.

RETAIL TRANSFORMATION
SINOE BT T2

Another important touch-point for customers is the Club’s network
of 100 Off-Course Betting Branches.

The Club is progressively renovating branches to provide more
customer-centric facilities and services.

Upgraded facilities include larger TVs for information display and
live broadcast of racing and football, and more seating areas.

At Cheung Chau a local touch was added in the form of a mural
depicting the life of this traditional fishing community.

Management is currently working on further transforming the retail
experience, with new concepts to be delivered next season.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING
kB EE

The Club is committed to preventing its operations from being
used for money laundering. It has an Anti-Money Laundering policy
and framework, which makes reference to the internationally-
recognised Financial Action Task Force recommendations and
industry best practice.
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RESPONSIBLE
GAMBLING

BEHIEX

Under Hong Kong’s system of responsible gambling, the Club is authorised by the
Government to provide horse race and football betting services and to operate the
Mark Six lottery. In doing so, the Club provides a regulated channel to meet gambling
demand and works with the Government to advocate responsible gambling and to
protect the public from the dangers of credit betting, illegal gambling and associated
crimes. It also ensures that any proceeds benefit the community as a whole, whether
in the form of tax and duty to the Government or through the Club’s own charitable
donations.
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RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING POLICY
B EFIER R

The Club advocates responsible gambling and has established an

extensive range of measures under its Responsible Gambling Policy.

These include underage access controls across all betting channels,
the dissemination and display of responsible gambling messages,
and training for all front-line betting staff. The Club does not permit
credit betting.

The Club’s support for responsible gambling is widely recognised.
In 2011, it was granted Level 4 accreditation, the highest possible,
under the Responsible Gambling Framework of the World Lottery
Association. This accreditation was renewed in 2015 and in 2018.
The Club is the first operator in Asia to receive this recognition three
times in succession.

Responsible gambling measures are regularly refreshed and
reviewed, with qualitative research being employed to ensure that
messages are targeted, relevant and impactful. This year, for
example, saw the launch of new posters and web banners
incorporating QR codes to facilitate direct access to responsible
gambling information.

This year also saw enhancements to the Club’s voluntary account
betting self-exclusion service, with bettors now able to exclude
themselves for an indefinite period of time. A new family member
notification service enables bettors and their families to receive

automatic SMS updates on changes to the bettor’s exclusion status.

To enhance employee understanding of responsible gambling, the
Club organised a Responsible Gambling Awareness Month.
Engagement and learning activities included thematic videos, a
slogan contest and a lunch-and-learn session conducted by
psychiatric specialists. Additional in-depth training was also
provided to front-line staff.
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RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING
ADVOCACY AND EDUCATION

BEIFIBRERERAE

The Club actively supports public education, including through its
contributions to the Ping Wo Fund, which finances and co-ordinates
preventive and remedial measures to address gambling-related
problems. To date the Club has provided more than HK$400 million
in funding.

Over the years the Club has worked with NGO partners to initiate its
own responsible gambling programmes, including those targeting
housewives and primary school students.

This year, to promote the physical, psychosocial and mental well-
being of adolescents and at-risk youth, the Club joined hands with
Hong Kong Children and Youth Services and the Vocational Training
Council to launch a three-year Youth Education Programme. The
programme utilises game-based educational tools and a self-
assessment tool to promote understanding of the potential risks

Responsible gambling campaigns
at racecourses, OCBBs and online
promote awareness and provide
helpline information.
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associated with uncontrolled online gambling. Professional training
is also provided to teachers and social workers to enhance their
online counselling skills.

In addition, a new Family Assistance webpage has been established,
specifically targeting the families of problem gamblers. Through a
range of multi-media it provides information and advice, including
from psychiatrists, family counsellors and youth support experts.

ILLEGAL GAMBLING - A THREAT TO
THE COMMUNITY
FEEBREMD

Hong Kong'’s system of responsible gambling, of which the Club is
an essential part, was established in no small measure to combat the
threat of illegal gambling.

lllegal gambling threatens society in many different ways. It helps
fund criminal activities such as drug smuggling, loan sharking,
extortion, money laundering and bribery. It also impacts individual
lives, especially through underage gambling and the provision of
credit, which encourages excessive and pathological gambling.

Today illegal gambling is not just a localised threat but an
international phenomenon, with offshore operators targeting Hong
Kong via mobile and online channels. The threat to the community,
and to the revenue which supports it, is substantial.

The Club has long warned of this ever-present and ever-growing
danger. It is a strong supporter of the Hong Kong Police and of
international law enforcement in tackling illegal gambling. It also
works within the racing industry, notably as part of the Asian Racing
Federation’s taskforce on illegal betting and financial crime. Clearly
this is a problem which requires vigorous action, not only in Hong
Kong but at the international and cross-border level.
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CHARITIES AND
COMMUNITY
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club contributes to the betterment of society both directly and through
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.

This is made possible by the Club’s unique integrated business model. Thanks to the success
of the Club’s business strategy, the Charities Trust has more than quadrupled its donations over
the last 12 years.
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96 0/0 HK$ 4.5 billion +1{&%& T

of the Club’s annual operating Trust’s total approved donations
surplus donated to its Charities in 2019/20
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Though the Club’s operations and revenue have been impacted BE—F  FARAESMERITIRAZEE
over the past year, its support for the community has never been =28, (EESHTER S ERE)
stronger. Indeed, at HK$4.5 billion the Trust’s total approved BEE2ZEETESN2019/20FEENE
donations in 2019/20 set a new record for the Club, supporting ENIBRAERANS  E45EB T
210 projects. S 2101EEE -

In 2019/20, the Club donated 96% of its annual operating surplus to 2019/20F [ » FEEi96% WK Z BER
the Charities Trust. The Trust remains one of the world’s top ten BRIBZEETESL  EELEETEHSLE
charity donors. ERT RESHYHEZ— -

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST
APPROVED DONATIONS (HK$B)
BRESEAEETESCERBR(+HEET)
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* For construction of the Hong Kong Palace Museum
XFEEEBNE U EYE

Full details of the approved donations this year can be found on pages 104-120 of the Financial Report.

EeFRANCERBRERFFIRMERESL 10421208 ©

AREAS OF SUPPORT
REXRKEE

The Club’s Charities Trust supports ten areas of social need: arts, EeuE=CHESMTENERERETE
culture & heritage; education & training; elderly services; emergency SE ¥HBETEKRFIANEE g
& poverty relief; environmental protection; family services; medical & ML RIRE - HEE - RERE -

health; rehabilitation services; sports & recreation; and youth KENE BIERE - ERK - BEE
development. £ BERYE RBERERETFERE -

In addition, since 2015 the Trust has focused on four strategic areas:  t4) » H20155F4E » ES B IEE
youth; the elderly; sports; and arts, culture and heritage. [EFE] - TRE] [EEME4
XAERRE | WARESENEE T
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STRATEGIC APPROACH
BERETD]

The Club’s charities strategy has three core pillars: advancing
innovation, building capacity, and convening partnerships.

Advancing Innovation

In response to the changing social environment and changing social
needs, the Club is keen to foster innovative thinking and new service
models. It also seeks to exploit the potential of technology and
analytics to provide better and more informed services.
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For example, in September, with Trust funding of HK$20.6 million,
the Hong Kong Blind Union Jockey Club Smart City Walk Project
launched an audio-guiding app which helps the visually impaired
and the elderly navigate outdoor and indoor venues with more
independence.

During the pandemic, the Trust also funded the purchase of
webcam-equipped robots to help elderly home residents stay in
touch with their families.

Building Capacity

To ensure that projects, especially pilot projects, have lasting
impact, a good deal of the Club’s effort goes into capacity building;
creating and strengthening capabilities at the individual,
organisational and ecosystem levels through training and other
initiatives.

All Trust-initiated Projects hence include significant capacity building
elements. This is the explicit purpose of InnoPower@JC: Fellowship
for Teachers and Social Workers, which aims to empower teachers
and social workers to become peer mentors and to bring fresh
thinking to their schools and organisations.

Convening Partnerships

The Club is a strong proponent of multi-sector collaboration.

It believes in engaging with academia, professional institutions,
the private sector and civil society to leverage capabilities and
make the best use of combined resources.

These strengths were well demonstrated during the pandemic when
the Club brought together NGOs and all four mobile network
operators to provide free mobile data bandwidth to over 100,000
underprivileged schoolchildren studying at home.

Another example is JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism Support
Network, a holistic programme bringing together schools, specialist
support and families to address the needs of mainstream school
students with autism spectrum disorders. Building on its success,
the Education Bureau will adopt the service model of its school
support programme in the 2021/22 school year.

Smart City Walk mobile

app in action

FrEmRE [HET]

HE#H

HY|H = FSEREETESEN2,0608BT » XF
BRRPAGESHTH  BESEEHETITE ] FHR
BEETEmMMEN FRERREN HET] #nEREAL
MREBLHIT - ZEAEXNRIA/HES -

o BEEBRB 2 ERBERGEHA  EREHE
REHERRARSHE

IRAEFRKFE

BERAREAERKE > EBRMZNFEMEEEE -
REA  EENRSGEEIBEIBAEBIRT D - 1838
BEEAERMERE > BREBBREE (LHRLEFTE)
FIFERRE  EEZTMRIEHE

Eit - ESFBREUSHIBHRBRALEINER
nE HB [BESERMEIANIE ] HEULEEER
REEMRMTEHASENEES - SBthfEER G2 ERN
BREEBERAINIES -

WENZ it ME
SETADEBERBIGIE - £ABHR - FHRHER
MERENERRNE  EAESBERRATER -
B BENE -

EEHEEFREBRNBENESD - HhSSEFBUT
BWESE  UEINBREBEARBHERNZS Al
BIOBEREERND N ELERHULBERDBBEREE
X EMMAMERBBERFLES -

S—HFRIESSEHETEL FREERAZE -
BETENFRERE  AREBEIRERNEMESERM
2R ERY - MR ERNEE  BHERBER
2021/22 BFES R A ETENR AL ER S -

99



COVID-19

Standing strong for
our community

(% | BET

As of June 2020, the Club
had sourced or funded the
purchase of more than

14,000,000

face masks
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Not since SARS in 2003 has Hong Kong experienced a health crisis like COVID-19. But just as in
2003, the Club moved quickly and responsively to help those in need.

Mobilising its resources and drawing on its wide network of partners, the Club has brought
minds and capabilities together to help the most vulnerable members of society.

To date, the Club’s relief measures have reached over one million people.

Though the long-term effects of COVID-19 are still unclear, the Club stands ready to help the
community recover and rebuild.

HETERFERBE2003F DL | UK EEAHNS —SREAHRFTLERH  BE-—n[DL|EF .
FEAREHEE  URPFBHFRMEXE-

FERRHADER  YEASFREVNAS  EHERHERSE SREDS  HEREFRR -
AHELEREEHPNBEHRREMBIXE -

ES SENHEFRERCERBEEA
AN ERSRFHEENRESEHUFAN - EFSCEARE  IBHEREFBERNERTE -
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€€ Due to COVID-19, in addition to food assistance, there is an urgent need
for personal protective equipment. We are thankful for the Jockey
Club’s proactive helping hand. Funds were received within days of our
proposal being approved. There is a true sense of trust and partnership.

HEFSRESEE  BRTEWEY HBLE
FHOANERESEEEHENE - SHEETH
B ERIIEEHE > ERMERDAFEDSE -
ST E N E R B RIEE - E— BRI
BT MO EENEEAE )

Gigi Tung, Founder of Food Angel
BREABAEZRELZL

IMMEDIATE SUPPORT
B> %

In the early days of the pandemic one of the most urgent needs was
for protective equipment, especially face masks. Leveraging its
procurement capability, the Club sourced 1.68 million masks for
donation to the Hospital Authority and vulnerable groups. As of

30 June the Club had sourced or funded the purchase of more than
14 million face masks.

No less important was funding for half a million care packs
containing essential food and hygiene supplies to be distributed to
the elderly, the disabled, low-income families, welfare recipients,
and families living in sub-standard housing.

COVID-19 RESPONSE FUNDS
NRENEE

To support agencies providing essential relief to hard-hit sections of
the community, the Trust established two dedicated funds.

The COVID-19 Emergency Fund, set up in mid-February and topped
up in March to HK$100 million, offered grants of up to HK$500,000.
The average processing time for applications was 15 days, with
successful applicants receiving funding upfront rather than by
reimbursement. As of 30 June, 219 NGOs had received grants to
implement 241 initiatives.

REBEIE  HEEh—BARETEE
AN B E R EYE NWMHE  RERMR
NE-FEE—HEZENSKERRKBEOS
HZ6H30H  ERCHRESNBUEERE
1,400BEOE  EHEEONBREERR
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REHAL  UREEREXENRE
[ERe | aFRRNEEERAR -

SEREERESRYMENEEDES
B EREASRERT - AREBERE
TENHRREASE -

BER2 AR [FHEMABSEES |-
WHRIAEMEESRREI1EET - £
SREFEMEMNENS LRB50EB T -
EHFRBEFHERI5E » WEABFN
B EERRENS  UERRENERRS
X - HE6H30H ' E£C 0219 BFEBAT
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Projects supported included a disinfection service for sub-divided EREEEOERNIEFIREEHREHESRE

flats and another to carry out urgent work to improve their sewage BESEBRE - UWAEESALVEERS
systems. Other grants facilitated the provision of health information RERREHEEN  UROZEBESZEN
in ethnic minority languages, as well as emotional assistance to ATEMBEETE  HhaEREHE
those affected by the outbreak, such as those impacted by the FBRoEERKEEEMISSENATIRME
suspension of non-urgent medical services. TR o

A second fund, the HK$150 million Community Sustainability Fund, W EEIN5 BEER11{55,000EE8 T
established in May, provides grants to small and medium-sized Ry [BEESeHBRERYES | B8
community service agencies and sports organisations. Specifically, /NN ERISAESNESKE [T
the grants are for the design and delivery of services targeting the R RS ENGE R E
physical and mental well-being of underprivileged and vulnerable BRI » 12F B OMEEE o

groups impacted by the pandemic.

ONLINE SUPPORT FOR
SCHOOL STUDENTS
X ERL2E

With schools suspended, many underprivileged students faced EEREE T EEEEY(REEEAR
difficulties learning online. In particular, those living in sub-divided HE - EESREREEMEEESEREZRESR
flats, old buildings or remote areas where high speed fixed-line SERRISHEL ) L REBIBEIRE - 58
internet broadband access is not available. To this end, in March the Rt - B2 3 B E RS EBUF-ESE -
Club joined hands with two NGOs and all four mobile carriers to WEZIMEEFHERNSE  EH
launch the Bandwidth Support for E-learning at Home Scheme. [EREVEELIESE |- HEESS
With the support of a HK$42 million donation approved by the ZHECTESET4,20088 T 0 @A
Charities Trust, the Scheme provided free data bandwidth to over 10EZRBEBWN D/ NELBHEAE R
100,000 underprivileged primary and secondary school students. BUEHE o SRS ER EHE . B/,
To facilitate online teaching, 1,000 free virtual classroom licences ZEM1 000 ER - HERF ZEE -

were also offered to primary and secondary schools.

tesh - FHEIT R ERBBER M EEN
In addition, educational video clips produced by community partners ISIEEARHREE R SERATESE
were made available to cross-boundary students residing in the BMABME EEBYLERBEE o
Mainland during the school suspension period.
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Thank you for joining the
Fhilanthrupic Leadershlp in
the COVID-19 Crisis Webinar!

The webinar recording is now available for viewing!

o

. P g b i L b T Dalberg

SHARING INSIGHTS AND LEARNING

EBIREIEESE

Knowledge and experience sharing are a key part of the global
fight against the pandemic, and here too the Club is playing an
active part.

Through webinars the Club has shared insights with local and
international audiences as well as learning from them. These include
webinars organised by the Hong Kong Chapter of the United
Nations’ Sustainable Development Solutions Network, The British
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong, and the Asia Venture
Philanthropist Network, as well as under the auspices of the Club’s
Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum.

The Charities Trust has also supported the development of an online
resource hub for NGOs to share learning materials, health-related
information, and virtual arts and culture experiences. The aim is for
the hub to continue functioning even after the pandemic subsides.

SUPPORT FOR TRUST GRANTEES
XEZ S

One concern for the Club has been the impact of the pandemic on
its more than 400 community partners, and most especially on the
projects they are implementing with Charities Trust support.

Early on, the Club reached out to understand their needs and the
challenges they faced, for example as a result of office, school or
facilities closures and social distancing measures.

Accordingly, the Club introduced some flexibility into project
deliverables and in the allocation of budgeted funds. It has also
been supportive of initiatives proposed by grantees to combat
COVID-19.
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for Heritage and Arts

REE — HEREEE

Following a decade-long project to conserve and revitalise the
historic Central Police Station compound, Tai Kwun — Centre for
Heritage and Arts opened its doors in May 2018. Since then Tai
Kwun has become a unique destination for arts, culture and
heritage, attracting many local and overseas visitors. It is operated
by The Jockey Club CPS Ltd., a not-for-profit company established
under the Club’s Charities Trust.

Though operations since late January have been impacted by the
pandemic, the previous six months saw a highly successful
programme of events, exhibitions and performances.

Highlights included Projekt Berlin, highlighting the cultural and
creative influence of Berlin; Let’s Do Lunch, an exploration of Central
district’s lunch culture; and The Phantom Plane, Cyberpunk in the
Year of the Future, showcasing the visual aesthetics of cyberpunk
science fiction.

Since opening, Tai Kwun has recorded some 5.5 million visits,
hosted more than 1,000 programmes and events, and run over
1,400 heritage docent tours.
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Tai Kwun

B T
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The exceptional quality of the work carried out to conserve and
revitalise the Central Police Station compound has been well
recognised both locally and overseas.

In October, Tai Kwun was honoured with the prestigious Award of
Excellence in the 2019 UNESCO Asia-Pacific Awards for Cultural
Heritage Conservation.

The accolade was the highest recognition awarded by an
international jury of conservation experts. Tai Kwun was selected
from a total of 57 entries from 14 countries across Asia-Pacific.

RECOVERY OF BLOCK 4
E YRS TAE

Of the 16 historic buildings at Tai Kwun, 15 have been fully restored.
Conservation of the final building, the Married Inspectors’ Quarters
(Block 4), was put on hold in May 2016 following its partial collapse.

Since then, the Club has been actively working with local and
overseas experts on recovery plans. The Club has presented its
plans to the Antiquities Advisory Board and also sought views from
various stakeholders, including the Central and Western District
Council.

In addressing the construction challenges brought about by the
poor condition of the building, the Club intends to uphold the same
conservation principles that it has used throughout the revitalisation
of the Central Police Station compound. These are: safety;
authenticity with respect to the original appearance; and the
harmonious integration of old and new built structures.

The overall objective is to securely recover Block 4 for adaptive use
in support of Tai Kwun as a centre for heritage and arts.
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TRUST-INITIATED PROJECTS
HeFE1EAE

Through Trust-initiated Projects (TIPs), the Charities Trust works with community
partners to address current and emerging social needs. Through innovation, capacity-
building and multi-sector collaboration, TIPs are helping to pilot new service models and
bring fresh thinking to the social sector.

In 2019/20, 14 TIPs were in progress or newly launched. Although some have been
impacted by the pandemic, many have found creative ways to respond to community
needs. Indeed several are already delivering encouraging results.

FEZECRESEMERHBFRRESIEHERE  FNORENRBRHENTE - &2
TEFEBEBAMNBE  EHREARBRBME - FEETANKRBES - RUEBRSEHRDLE -

2019/20 5 E - EECHITHHBERNESTEEEHE 1418 - AL EEZRIETE -
BAXFIEENMEUAFNAIRNEHHENETE EFELEERN -

ELDERLY pge
>
R i%
§ ® Approved donation
S BEHIEN
Jockey Club Age-friendly City Project 1 91
million BE&E#B T

EEEREH M TS

The Jockey Club Age-friendly City Project aims to make Hong Kong
more inclusive and accessible for the elderly so they can better
participate in community life. Through 128 programmes,
implemented by 79 NGOs, the project is helping Hong Kong’s
districts improve their age-friendliness with respect to the World
Health Organization’s (WHO) eight domains of an age-friendly city,
namely: outdoor spaces and buildings; transportation; housing;

SEHEL [BESSRERDE] EERRER
Het RERFRRENESR  SREZEHN

RAMELE - sEI2RUERFLABEHEEE
RERFRESHHHN/\EEHE - BEEI=[
Mg XE-FE - 828 ZENHEs
B NRBENME - EEXRURMBERE
AR - B8 79 BIFBUTHB AT Y 128 (&S E)

social participation; respect and social inclusion; civic participation HE > BUEEREREEERERAEZRAR °
and employment; communication and information; and

community support and health services. Bighlightimpacts to date

BORRBE

~ All 18 districts are now part of the WHO’s Global
Network for Age-friendly Cities and Communities.

~# The project has been selected for sharing at the Global
Solutions Forum hosted by the United Nations’
Sustainable Development Solutions Network, scheduled
for September 2020.

, 2E1SBEMAtRELARN [ 2REERERKERT
R B ] -

s FTEEBREE [ AR RAIR A ] £2020F
AR EBRS RiwEH D =& -
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i Approved donation
P EEMBAR

Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project
EES (e | ETREEETE

This citywide elderly care project integrates health management
technology, community care and professional support to promote
self-management and healthy ageing. Elderly centres are
empowering over 5,500 elderly participants to regularly self-monitor
such key parameters as blood pressure and blood sugar levels,
while health promotion programmes are helping over 10,000 elderly
better understand their health needs. Big-data analytics are also
providing broader data on elderly health and social needs. The
project’s second phase will consolidate experience and data
gathered with a view to formulating a cost-effective service model
for elderly health management.

Highlight impacts to date
HORRBE

345

million B&&T

[BEEg (eI EFREEEGTEIR
HEERETERN tEEEREEERK
XENEZBRERREERBETE - B
SRREEVEREEDTE FHEE
EF - BiB5,500 B2 EINR BTN
REFPOEHEITRENRR MFEIEHE
FTEREEEZ > MBER10,0008REER
REERETEMRTHRECHBRESRE -
REBESMTAARENRENLSEE
RUEL2EMNER - E_HBEE KRS

CSHEERNTRENEE  ARERE
EEHERREREVRBES -

7 43% of participants have improved blood pressure,
potentially reducing coronary heart disease risk by 22%
and stroke risk by 41%.

7 37% of participants have reported greater utilisation of
elderly care centre services.

s SEFENRET  BRWNBERRE  BERESR

73/ ONJ 9 L P 2
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s 3T%MSMERTEEEARERE T OAMRTSE -
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Jockey Club End-of-Life Community Care Project
[ BERELEE |58

This project seeks to improve the quality of end-of-life care for the
elderly through multi-disciplinary, multi-sector collaboration. In its
first phase, it piloted new service models in the community and
elderly homes, implemented capacity building for social and
healthcare professionals, and carried out public education. The
project has since developed an integrated service model with a
standardised framework. More structured and in-depth capacity
building has also been provided to front-line health and social care
professionals. To date, the project has served more than 7,500
terminally ill patients and their families and provided end-of-life care
training to over 14,300 medical and social care professionals.

%
Y
& ]
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I o Approved donation
3l e BEHIBR
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Highlight impacts to date
o RREE

7 45% improvement in patients’ overall quality of life as reflected by

reduced physical ailments, symptoms of anxiety and depression.

7 25% improvement in family members’ overall quality of life as

reflected by reduced caregiver strain and anxiety.

s BERBERENEFEZFIINET 45% ' BREAELSETE - BEER

MBEIRS -

s BEFZANETERTIIRET 25% @ BEARRERHREEHRS -
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JC JoyAge: Jockey Club Holistic
Support Project for Elderly Mental Wellness

BEESRRETE

Utilising an integrated community-based support network and a
collaborative stepped-care model bringing together district elderly
and mental wellness services, JC JoyAge has helped more than

\,8(1

& o

I

K o
)
15 Approved donation
Zle DEIER

million B&# T

[BEESRERETHE ] ERLERAEHN
FRAEXBERRRESN ANBEES - &5
e R & EAE R ERART - ©H3BhE 4,300

4,300 older people tackle depression. The project provides capacity ZEEZELHMENE o 12N AEEREAS
building for professional staff, and recruits "'young-olds’ as Peer B HEARE  UNBEFEKRREESE
Supporters, training them to identify and care for vulnerable elderly. $Z3|pk A oA | - ‘%{&1?‘1;#}?&&&15551;
A public education programme is promoting understanding of BEEZEENEE  sTEIRERATRH
elderly mental health and the benefits of community support. FH o INEASHEZEBBEENE :gg :

The second phase of the project commenced in 2020,
with coverage extended from four pilot districts to all 18.

PAK B4 B S AT R85 © sTEIE
R2020FBIR T PR - REEEH

MEHSEEREEZE18E °

Highlight impacts to date
BoRRBE

7 82% of depressed elderly show significant improvement with respect
to the risk or severity of depression at discharge (finding from Patient
Health Questionnaire).

7 22% increase in post-training score of the Late Life Depression Quiz
taken by Peer Supporters, indicating significant improvement in their
knowledge of elderly mental health.

s BREBARERTESHERET @ 82% BIEERNRENEZ RS
% BNBENERIEETRERE

s 8RR | EIRE - HBRFNERRAD EH22%  BEREMAHRE
BHRENZEABRE -
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YOUTH
BF

i Approved donation
P [F::5 2 5EA

CLAP for Youth@JC 945

EEESHE - AIRIETE millon BEE

CLAP for Youth@JC seeks to establish an evidence-based career [BESHZ.A/RREHE | B HEY—F
and life development intervention model with the aim of empowering EXREMPBENEERRNAER -
young people to make informed and meaningful choices as they SISV EEGFZZ TN HIRE
explore multiple pathways to a fulfilling adulthood. Through EHHERESENRIE - stE)@EBESE -
engaging students, non-engaged youths, teachers, social workers, FEESE BT - %’(%EZ{EEE’J
parents and employers it is widening the discourse and influencing 28 BTSSRI s TERAAE
practices about success, work and talent. One initiative is CV360, R RMITIRE B MCE - sTEINEH —1[3]
which helps young people highlight the values, attitude, skills and IHE —[CV360] BB S EREREML
knowledge gained through both paid and unpaid work experience. HE TELRTESNERS - BitEE -

The second phase of the project will focus on fostering a sustainable WRERAS MR EAAREEXEER AL
ecosystem to facilitate the transition from school to productive work BE o sEE RS IR ETERER
and a fulfilling life. EEBAME > REEATE BOERA
4 EREY —ENRERRNERRAS -

Highlight impacts to date
P AR E
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87% of participating students report enhanced
knowledge of career and life planning. \ .

86% of participating non-engaged youth report ¥
feeling more motivated and more engaged. ;

90% of participating teachers and social workers*
report increased professional knowledge. :

93% of participating parents and businesses report
a mind-set change with respect to supporting

multiple career pathways for young people. =
SEE NS LS  87% R AABES BB IR e e —m————
TR o LIFE & CAREER: :ﬂ“;’_“i}'”m

SEGBNFEREEFD 6B RTEAHHIRERA °
ST EINHEI RAETH > 90% RE B E S A
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CoolThink@JC
[EESEERHEHNSE |52

CoolThink@JC aims to inspire student digital creativity through the
mainstreaming of computational thinking education in Hong Kong’s
formal curriculum. In collaboration with local educators and world-
leading experts, the project provides teachers with teaching
material, learning platforms and professional development. To date,
more than 20,000 primary students from 32 pilot schools have
benefited. With phase two starting in September 2020, CoolThink@
JC will continue to nurture students’ proactive use of technologies
for social good. The aim is to expand it to 200 network schools in
four years, representing more than 40% of all public schools in
Hong Kong.

Highlight impacts to date
HORRBE
» CoolThink students have doubled their problem-

solving skills compared with non-participating
students.

7 85% of teachers trained report they teach the
CoolThink@JC curriculum in a more student-
centric manner.

~# Curriculum materials and pedagogy have been
adopted into the Education Bureau’s 2019/20 and
2020/21 professional development programme
for primary school teachers.

s BEREZNEESEEREHNS | sHEINE4LEL
DEATH BB RREERE N ZIT o

o BEZSEIINHENT - 85% RRBRAUEBEBEWER
B EERELDHELRS | STEERE -

s REREMRBEECRARBE 2019202 F K
2020/21 BEH/NEHETEHERRERE o

\’&&\ ®

&

>

9 o
<
)
I L Approved donation
5 @ EETTEE

million HEE&8 T

EBNEBERBBERETSIANEER
HE [BEESELRERE TEER
B EXE T NEIBAIRE o 5TEISEAH,
BEBERBERAEREREE A
REHM - BEFARIHEIEZI - 518
Z2SEER 2B EEERE 20,0005
NERAE o 5TEIA2020F 9 ARIRE=

BEER » EEESERBRERARE
BUSELER - RARRIUE - 5B

#

BRZE200EHE2R - HEREZBER

PO B ERER ©

111



C-for-Chinese@JC
[BEEerBEA |52

C-for-Chinese@JC aims to help ethnic minority (EM) kindergarten

students develop a solid foundation of Chinese language skills with

a view to facilitating their smooth transition to primary education
and early integration into society. The project is pioneering a

home-school-community collaborative and evidence-based model.
This includes the development of a culturally responsive curriculum,

pedagogy and learning resources, and capacity building for the

kindergarten sector. Additionally, the project engages stakeholders

in schools, homes and the community.

Highlight impacts to date

HORREE

# Over 90% of participating EM students show
improved proficiency in Chinese listening, speaking
and reading.

~ Approximately 70% of participating EM students
have been admitted to mainstream Chinese medium
schools.

~ The Equal Opportunities Commission has
recommended that the project’s home-school-
community collaborative model be extended to
primary and secondary schools.

s BEHBNDBIRBERLED - B0% MH IR « HisE
KBIERE N BARE -
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(" The Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarships
BEEERFIRES

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarships are dedicated to
nurturing compassionate, community-minded leaders. Since 1998,
753 scholarships have been awarded to students with outstanding
intellect, character, leadership qualities and commitment to service.
Beneficiaries include undergraduates from nine local institutions,
postgraduates at the University of Oxford and Harvard University,
NGO leaders enrolled in the University of Chicago Booth School of
Business Executive MBA programme, and vocational and special
educational needs students. A Scholarship Secretariat provides
added opportunities for learning, personal development and

social service.

[EEEEERES | HNIEEEEH  BE
HERIRREH o TEIE 1998 F R UARE
TEI753ERES  MBABRER S - By
KERRESHUURIBOSHETEEKNE
4 o FHEIZFARM N B AERRARE « FIfE
FRRERRHAEHRBEREBCWHRE -
FIBUTHE 2 B A B S NS KB AR
E2B% (University of Chicago Booth School of
Business) SR EBEAE T EEELRE -
WERERKRABETENSEL  URIEES
BTN REE o SHEIR L WEEBEWEERT
RETEAMNEE - EABRERESREOHS -

of services delivered. Approximately 8,400 young
people will benefit from this pilot project.

&
2
‘Zl?
S

S Scholarship

I amount to date

e FSOERESES

million BEB T
LevelMind@JC &
_— Y S
EEGFTOMHE 5
IS Approved donation

Launched in 2019, this new project seeks to develop HWIEFETEIA2019E T EEAEE® A3 PS BEHBR
a stigma-free, youth-specific and youth-friendly NF1I2Z2UBNEEHRE— BN HEBRL 2 9 5
mental wellness service for those aged 12 to 24. EASEMRNEHRERTE - T2
Eight hubs will be established to help young people R N\BERL  EE ERARAEED million B&B T
enhance their cognitive resources and personal REANED  (PEEREESGEE o 2124
strengths and build overall mental wellness. Youth BEBEL>ERBVEBEEXA TIRASE
service professionals will further develop their mental BHEENANZB R  BFEEEEE
wellness knowledge and skills, while a monitoring, MEREBT R LIRS o 1B
evaluation and learning plan will evaluate the impact S B E R 8,400 BBV E o
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SPORTS
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3 e BERER
Fun to Move@JC 98
EEERREEF 2 S
Fun to Move@JC seeks to motivate primary school children to [BEESXKRE=EE | SE/ N EE
become active and fit through participating in fun exercise ZSHET IR EVEEETEE  BEREEED
programmes. To reinforce the benefits, parents are encouraged to BIE GFEREERE AR ERS
espouse healthy lifestyles and attitudes. Wearable technology is EERRENEIEAREERTFNAEFRE -

used to monitor activity rates and facilitate improvement through big MRS EIMEES o SHRIERFE AR ESA

data analytics. Currently more than 30,000 children and their parents  fh{fFEFHE - EIIFEB K EBIE D EE

in 35 schools are participating. HEIBIMEKRERER - BAY - 35RER
130,000 B2 EMRRBEERE -

Highlight impacts to date
BORRBE

~ Impact evaluation indicates better physical activity levels,
as well as improved fundamental movement skills.

Participating schools have adopted enhanced physical
education pedagogies e.g. incorporating exercise games
during breaks and between lessons.

During the pandemic, the Education Bureau included
videos developed by the project in its online resources
for children.

YRR 2 MENREEB KT AMRS - ERBEREE
TFERE -

ZHERFAKHRNBERERE: - fln : RMNERRE
HAR A E By

RERHE HERNEER L BREFRZTBIAEN
Fh e
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OTHER TRUST-INITIATED

PROJECTS P
12 >
fiﬁﬁ%ié?azﬁéﬂﬁ g§ °
<
*§ ® Approved donation
a P EEHIRN
/JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism Support Network 41 1
= % ,H: |__| {fi_*- J million B&#T
= /W A
To help the growing number of children with autism spectrum BRESE ABBEEN ESEEER

disorders (ASD), the Trust initiated the JC A-Connect: Jockey Club BEER2015FE [EESEMHRTE
Autism Support Network in 2015. The programme combines holistic IBHEBR S ER o ;RG4S 2 F R

school-based support, assistance for families via 18 community FTIE - 18EHEARNMEENRELIER
centres, and public education. Training is also provided to teachers NEHETH » TAXERREHERH
and service providers to enhance their support capabilities. The ZH| o IR FA N E B BEE A WEE D o

project is currently being implemented in 510 primary and secondary 2B A2 R 510 B/ NERENE » BiBiB
schools, supporting over 65% of ASD students in mainstream schools. 65% BT RER EEEEEIRHTE -

Highlight impacts to date
BoRREE

7 90% of participating students with ASD met individualised
programme goals at both primary and secondary levels after
joining the project.

~# The Education Bureau will adopt the service model of its
school support programme in the 2021/22 school year.

, SEEBINEBIESE - 90% S BAEEIH N2 EAE
B -

s E2021/22 251G - BB RS RREFTENRAZEESE °

R
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§ i Approved donation

3 @ BEIEHR
(" Jockey Club SMART Family-Link Project 157

million & T

EEE2E RS

Through information and communications technology (ICT) and data
analytics, the Jockey Club SMART Family-Link Project is helping 26
NGO-run Integrated Family Service Centres and Integrated Service
Centres enhance support for families. ICT tools with game elements
and an e-message portal are being used for family outreach and
preventive programmes. Capacity building is also being provided to
front-line workers, while public education campaigns are helping to
promote the importance of family harmony.

[BESEERNE | EREANRNEBE
AT HhEh 26 BHFBUTHIBEENGS
RERBHOMESRBHL - BRARE
XERT o SN RER T ZNEMBHR
TEURBLAETE  EARKENMNR
KTERGIEE o sHEIRBATAR A BREE -
WEPRNBRHYEEE - HEERENEN
ERM-

Highlight impacts to date

O RREE

~# During the pandemic, tips and videos related to infection
prevention, exercise activities, positive family
communication and emotion management reached over
500,000 viewers through digital and social media.

7 The i-TLS (Training, Learning and Sharing) platform is
enabling social workers to learn and share best practice in
supporting families in need.

s BBOBEBERNREBEHBEBBBRERREENERER
5% - EE - ENFEBERBEEENENRSS

s FTLSGEI - Z2BERSZ) FASHIAREEBERIEZXE

BERERENRTE °
\(&*5%
&
>
K
<
S
15 ® Approved donation KeyStepS@JC
ETy = 25
Sle SRR ERSERE
2 2 5 KeySteps@JC aims to address the social, emotional [EESES:E | EEEHEBYHHERS
million &% 7 and learning needs of underprivileged kindergarten ENRHRREMENER BEARETEE
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children during the formative stage of their lives. Two
community hubs have been established as a platform
for early stimulation, family networking and parent-
child interaction. In addition, a cross-disciplinary
team of educational psychologists, early childhood
educators, social workers, speech therapists and
healthcare professionals provides holistic support for
participating children, families and schools.

ZoERMELERE [ERE] R
EBNREHERE  BUREXEAER
BFEHNTFAE o Lo FHEIBRBE LR
BR PREBEIEE T SH6E
MREXEEASARBRNER  £2
BT EINHE ERARBRERZH N
MR ©
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\,8<1
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,'_?U:o ® Approved donation
3 @ SEMIER
4 InnoPower@JC: Fellowship for Teachers 21 1_
and Social Workers million 3% 7
[ EESHEMTTIAIF HE |58
InnoPower@JC is inspiring teachers and social workers to devise [EESHMt TR NS | 5HEIBH R

new solutions to increasingly complex educational and social needs. HEIRA TIEBHES ) BN ASERN

At the heart of the initiative is a 10-week local and overseas capacity HERUHEZEE - HHENEL A —1EAH
building programme, with fellows encouraged to develop their own TR A 2B INE NIRRT R - SFE2

innovative projects. As role models in their fields, the hope is that MERERAIFSSHWIEE o stE|EpEE
fellows will influence their peers to embrace a culture of innovation. E2MERBBENER » BSBAIF L -

Highlight impacts to date

WBAORRBE

~ Over 90 teachers and social worker fellows, as well as more
than 180 peer “buddies”, have participated.

~# 75 educational and social service projects incubated.
s ESEENSEHMMHET - URiBIE 180 BEXSE5tE]
s ZSCHET75ERENLEREER ©

Highlight impacts to date

HoRRBE

7 73% of children have shown improved behaviour
compared to their baseline performance in the initial
impact study. Parents report improved parenting styles,
reduced stress levels and enhanced understanding of
the importance of play and emotion management.

7 The Education Bureau has invited the project team to
share learning from the project’s community hubs.

s BRERHRMAENER » 73% TENTARERAEN
RABRE - RRETHEBRAAERE - BOKFTE
HEHRBEEENERMTEERANERE -

s BERBFNFBEB S Z[ERE] WERNS -
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CHARITIES TRUST HIGHLIGHTS
HEETESENEE

The Trust supports a wide range of community needs

across ten areas. The following are selected highlights
for the year:

FELEFTESHNBYREEREHELER  FHRELS
EFENFE - UTRFRBITHHOERIER -
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Education and
Training

DIVERSE TEACHING
STRATEGIES FOR
DIVERSE STUDENTS
2 THBR

BB Z I e
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Efix SOCIALLY INCLUSIVE
=
ART EXHIBITIONS
Arts, Culture and I =3z =7 N ) =

Heritage Conservation %—‘}I‘m‘l]-ﬁg SIZ *E ;I:EE%?‘:I:% ;:E F-‘-ﬁ
Working with the Hong Kong Museum of Art, the Trust is
funding an accessible art programme for three major
exhibitions at the museum. Braille captions, audio
descriptions, sign-language videos, accessible guided tours
and tailor-made workshops are helping the differently abled

and their families share the pleasures of art. Nearly 10,000
people have already benefited.

SEAEFTECEYETBENE - BPRBIEETE - R=E
ARERBREGEERBNREG  @FRFNE - DAY
FREER  BESEE UKRESFTTENTEYS - EAERE
AT RERAHAIEBRENNVLE » ZSERII10,000A °

The Jockey Club Diversity at Schools Project is a EeZECTESRIRTI0ERT BT BEES
HK$74.6 million initiative to enhance teachers’ support  [#&A% Tl & RERRHTRERSESYE

for students of different backgrounds, abilities and EBWNEE D ETRIXLES - g hfIBTEE=HNEL
learning needs. Apart from providing specialised HELBREYXE - RT BEENRHEEXEEII - 512
training, the project is employing a data management FEREVHBEE RS ENMEEELENEFEE
system to identify differentiated teaching strategies. TR ESE o SHIE B A 20195 12 B E1THY

Project leaders shared their experience at the Learning [EBEH{EE | 5 ZLEH o
and Teaching Expo in December 2019.

B% teckey Clu' “Mewersliy st Soheoly Propecr




Elderly
Services

& 4

E== END-OF-LIFE CARE
AU EZE
RS

In June, the Trust approved HK$535.3 million for
Haven of Hope Christian Service to construct an

integrated end-of-life care services complex. The complex
will support the frail elderly, terminally-ill patients and their
families, providing them with care and support amenities

in a tranquil environment. A state-of-the-art Life and Death

Education, Training and Research Centre will also be
established to build the capacity of local and overseas
palliative care professionals and caregivers.

SH6H  SEAEETESEHNBNGREI530BHBT  XiF
EEHBEHTERGAHERERERBAE - IABRE
BETE  REHRE  BHARBEREIBRES TILHE
BRIERERYE - KETREBLERKE - FIIRFRF L -
REBLE  BRATBREBIMBLZERBENERBIEEALR
SRERERRMHET -
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Emergency and
Poverty Relief

CARE FOR CHILDREN
IN DEPRIVED ENVIRONMENTS
RBBEERE

Phase one of this three-year project to support underprivileged
children of parents with disabilities ended in August 2019, with
team members having logged 25,000 service hours. More than
300 students, from elementary up to graduate level, have benefited
from tutoring and counselling services provided by the project.
Phase two, the Jockey Club Support Service for the Children of
Disabled Parents 2.0, began in 2020 and will run through 2023.

[BEEERERRFLXENE| EENERERRIN F RRHUERE
SEE—ERAM=5F - R2019F 8 AEMAR » 300Z B/ NEL -
REEMBRE ST BNMARHBENHERY - RERBEFR
25,0000 - FTEIE-RR [ BEFEERRR Fax&E1E2.0]
R2020 F 41T - BH=F -
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J&® SMART TREES
_ FOR A GREENER CITY
“hoeion. B AR N E R

ERAREBARIR

To promote environmental protection and specifically the
longevity of trees, since 2018 the Trust has been
supporting the Jockey Club Smart City Tree Management
Project. Aiming to cover over 8,000 trees, the project is
monitoring tree stability and health using smart sensing
technology and geographic information systems.
Educational programmes are also helping students and
the wider community learn more about urban forestry and
biodiversity.

SEARERTESH2018F R [BEFSERHTHAEE
8l REARNREERANEREASED o 7H8KE8,000
SREA - HAEREREREREMRIREN RS - EA
BANBEMRBEER - 1o TEATERBEED @ 26
BAERTRAREH DT REN SRR

Zv= HAPPY FAMILIES, HAPPY HOMES
Tt HBRRERE

To help young parents deal with the stress of parenthood and
also to encourage happy home environments, the Trust is
supporting the Jockey Club Support Project for Parents of New
Generation run by the Evangelical Lutheran Church Social
Service — Hong Kong. To date, the project has served over 300
families through a combination of programmes, counselling, and
the creation of a mutual support network.

Family
Services

SEAEETESIHEBR T BERSLIRBN - HTESS
HEABBXENE ] REFERENEREN  HERESER
BT LRHEREVIRRE - SRR —RIED - RHHEERY
AR N BB AL - 255300 ZERERMRE
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B2 PAEDIATRIC EYE CARE
Medical and % %ETEE@:& EE %Sl-
Health EIBARFE

To help detect and combat short-sightedness and eye disease

in children, the Trust approved a HK$78.3 million donation for

The Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK) to implement the
CUHK Jockey Club Children’s Eye Care Programme. The funding is
also supporting the CUHK Jockey Club Ophthalmic Microsurgical
Training Programme. By the end of 2019, the programme had dealt
with 15,500 ophthalmology cases.

BERRENARRAMRIBENBERE  SELEETESRAE
BR7,830BB L IFBEBIXKRBHRIT [ BEBFXARBEFTEED
EZIRETE | AUWRERERBARK - BEXBYNEE - BREBIIXEF
[BERTXAZESSRMBEBFMIEIE] - BE2019F K » 7FEE

BRIE 15,500 SRR K(EZE o

g

Rehabilitation
Services

CareER
PROGRAMME
FOR THE
DIFFERENTLY
ABLED
CareERGTEI# &)
H R
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The CareER Jockey Club Thriving Grass Career
Development Programme is helping graduates
with disabilities or special education needs
transition from tertiary education to
employment. Peer support and training help
participants develop communication and
leadership skills, while job-matching services
identify opportunities with inclusive employers.
By the summer of 2019, 28 interns had been
successfully matched with 18 companies, with
several receiving employment offers.

[CareERES S [ERE ] BER
REtEl ] ARESERHREEEFE
HABERBELRMMELE -
PREXF RIS A B EIRHA
BRI REEE TR 0 M
BRI EEHEHREE
METEKSE - BE2019F 2R
Al BB ZE2EM18EA
AIRMBEERYE - BoBEE R
EEE o
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el

Sports and
Recreation

==) NURTURING THE
B/ NEXT GENERATION
Dev:l?ptgent i %E%fﬁ %*ﬁjﬁﬁi ﬁg

Since 2017, the Trust has been supporting the Jockey Club
YouthCreate Series, empowering youth social workers to build
youth-adult partnerships with the aim of inspiring a new generation.
As part of the project, 16 Integrated Children and Youth Services
Centres are nurturing youth creativity and social awareness through
training in four areas: arts for change; social technology; new media;
and maker education. In November, an open house showcased
participants’ achievements over the past two years.

SEREFTESA017TFERRZF [EREFTALERY | AkE
BOERBOETREEINIZE  BEFEYRTBHEF  MEBFE
—RAIF B4 - HhBEF BN 16 BRE B L FREF ORMHEI
iz AREEEBALE ] (AR [HEEI R AIFHE]
TURERS - FELUEA S FREASHNBE USSR - HEIN2019F 11 5
HBWFAK A - RBEMFAEGHIKR

FUN AND EMPATHY
THROUGH FOOTBALL
SEEE BEBAEHM

The Jockey Club Happy Senior Football Programme
encourages cross-generation adventure-based sports
activities to promote greater understanding between
people of all ages. With specially designed gear, younger
participants can experience what it feels like to move in
the body of an older person. Junior and senior participants
are also paired up for different athletic tasks and to enjoy
football together. A number of local football legends have
joined in the fun.

[BESSREERNE | ERNEFRETED - mattAz@HnT
BABE - REBKHE FREBSRABRER  BRRE
M EREEIRN - BT R FERFREBSMAMK - hES1R
BEEBE -—EBER  ZZEHLEE - RO RREBER
B2 mEtE -
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COMMUNITY
T E

In working for the betterment of society, the Club connects with the community in many different
ways. Through its community football programmes it supports the holistic development of young
people. Through its equestrian initiatives it is developing Hong Kong as a centre of international
equine excellence as well as helping riders shine on the world stage. And through its
partnerships with Hong Kong’s 18 districts, and with the help of employee volunteers, it is
addressing the needs of local communities.

FESASEINERNE  BIRRELZAMNE - Bt SENHERRHBXKEEASARE -
MEGNEIER G EERRRAARASNEMED T  REFEUEHRES LRS-
B SEBHSE18E  NIBEHETARNSESTH HEEELENEE -
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EQUESTRIAN SPORT
SHITES

Twelve years ago, the Club established the HKJC Equestrian Team
to develop the potential of Hong Kong'’s elite equestrian athletes.
Riders, including para equestrian riders, benefit from high-level
coaching and professional support services under the Hong Kong
Equestrian Performance Plan, with the Club helping to source
competition horses and providing specialist support during

major events.

Members of the team have already achieved great success,
including Hong Kong’s first Asian Games equestrian gold medal,
but this past year they surpassed all expectations.

Competing in the inaugural FEI Asian Championships, the second
most important equestrian event in Asia after the Asian Games, the
team won no less than five medals. Travelling with nine horses, five
provided by the Club, the team was competing against riders from
12 other nations and regions. The final medal count included a team
gold in show jumping, team and individual silvers in eventing, and

a silver and a bronze in individual jumping.

Then came news that two members of the team, Thomas Ho and
Kenneth Cheng, had earned places for Hong Kong at the Tokyo
Olympic Games, in eventing and show jumping respectively.

F

!

BEM2FRIRL T FEFME  FA
BRRABMEDS - £ [ HBFMHBR
ST BERRT  BEEBEETF
RESEINRREEER Bt
FSETRARPEHGYBALETTR
REHERESE-

SEENBEEECIEZREE B
BSEEEERESNEE MEEFA
MR FEBTAY o

B SN & R PSR M SRR E
ZEERHTUNERNRBRERINEESHA
BEMLE  SWEBHATERS - B
ATHEERM  ERE12EHEMER
kit ENWSBEBRMIERE - FEHMH
ERBEAHTEREM  BESHER
EEEEE —EEEEREATRRE
LA 35 3 BE8 B 48] A FRER S 2 808 o

Hiz  SEFWBEmEKEMIER
BYHEARTENERAREENSE
B DRIBMBEZHBERSHERE

Celebrating Hong Kong'’s team
gold at the FEI Asian Championships.
EESIEHERTNREEDEE
BTERE-
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Members of the HKJC Equestrian
Team won one gold, three silvers
and a bronze for Hong Kong at
the FEI Asian Championships.
BEEMHRENINRBEES
EBMS =R —RMERS -

Moreover, for the very first time, Hong Kong qualified a team for the
Paralympic Games, with Natasha Tse, Timothy Tsang and Fleur
Schrader earning their places. This will be by far the largest
equestrian team Hong Kong has ever sent to the Olympics and
Paralympics. Though the games have been postponed until 2021,
the Club will be supporting riders in their lead-up preparations and
during the events themselves.

Significantly these achievements came less than one year after
equestrian sport was awarded Tier A status by the Hong Kong
Sports Institute.

To provide a pipeline of future talent, the Club also has a junior
programme, which this year was relaunched as the Hong Kong
Jockey Club Youth Equestrian Development Programme. This
includes the Hong Kong and Overseas Youth Squad, previously
known as the JETS, and the new HKJC Children’s Equestrian Squad
for riders aged 10 to 14. The programme aims to provide wider
support to young riders and to expand their development cycle.
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The HKJC Youth
Equestrian Development
Programme is nurturing the
talent of younger riders.
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COMMUNITY FOOTBALL
18 B BR

The Club is a long-term supporter of youth development through
football. In particular, its Best Foot Forward programme is helping
Hong Kong’s young people develop physically, mentally and
socially.

This year the programme’s keystone initiative, the HKJC School
Football Development Scheme, welcomed its 100th partner school.
Since its launch in 2013, this annual eight-month programme has
offered coaching and campus training to teachers and students in
38 primary schools, 60 secondary schools and two post-secondary
institutes.

This year also saw the launch of a pilot HKJC Soccer 4 Campus
Development Scheme in 20 primary schools. Jointly organised with
the Hong Kong Football Association, the scheme aims to build the
interest and skill of young players through four-a-side football, an
accessible and fun form of the game.

BE-HEBRRIBELFHR B
BETR]BEE] HERRETE - HE)
EBRFEANS ORERERE -

TRlEBEE | HERHAABEEF—E
MEBEXMEE [BEFS2RERBR;E
RAFENRASESRHYECEE100
B [BEEE2RARRBRETE ] SFAH
JMER - B2013FHETUR - ERKA
38E/NE ~ 60T ERWME AEHRRA
B A TR AR R AR E S o

SEFATEEBRRESEHE  R20M
PEETEHN[EEEFERENARR
BRETE ] - DARHBERZHREE
BEFRDIRESE - RS ERAFE
BRSO R K SR

Six outstanding performers of the Youth Football
Leadership Scheme at Old Trafford, during their
one-week learning tour in Manchester.
BFLFRYBEMA B ASERBRERNNES NBY
—ANSHIERE - BhBHRERRS -
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Meanwhile, The JC Youth Football Leadership Scheme, now in its
seventh year, saw 46 participants attend its orientation camp. The
programme, which seeks to develop youth leadership skills through
football, has so far trained more than 250 young leaders. A highlight
was a surprise visit by Manchester United legend, Park Ji-sung.

Over the years the Best Foot Forward programme has provided
opportunities for outstanding trainees to benefit from the world-
class facilities at Manchester United and its Foundation. This year,
for the first time, two elite district coaches joined two outstanding
teachers for a one-week advanced learning tour to Manchester,
where they observed classes and collaborated in training sessions.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS
B R

Playing a key role in the Club’s community effort is its CARE@hkjc
volunteer team, a dedicated group of employees who over the years
have worked with district partners in support of the elderly, children,
students, youth, women, people with intellectual disabilities and
ethnic minorities.

The team’s many contributions were honoured at the 8th Hong
Kong Volunteer Awards organised by the Agency for Volunteer
Service, the first time the Club has received this award. In particular
the Club was recognised for its outstanding performance in
promoting corporate volunteering, both with respect to its policy
and resourcing.

In 2019, the CARE team participated in nearly 400 community
activities and contributed over 17,000 community service hours,
a record high.

This included launching new animal welfare programmes in
collaboration with Hong Kong Dog Rescue and the Society for
Abandoned Animals, with team members participating in Pulse 2
Fun, an annual fund-raising walkathon organised by Hong Kong
Dog Rescue.
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In support of environmental protection and of a zero waste culture,
CARE volunteers also participated in Night Walk for The Green
Earth 2020, which raised funds for Green Earth’s campaigns and
educational programmes.

The CARE team was no less active during the pandemic, with
volunteers preparing special care packs donated by the Club’s
Charities Trust to the homebound elderly and disabled. They also
mobilised to support district partners in preparing and distributing
health packs to vulnerable groups.

OUR RECORD HIGH
ST AT o

In 2019, the CARE team
participated in nearly

400 community activities

and contributed

over 1 7,000 community

service hours

B AR

The outstanding contribution of the CARE@nhkjc volunteer team
was honoured at the 8th Hong Kong Volunteer Awards.

BFERIRNSUERA [EN\EEBRERTRIESEE -

2019 » EE&TK
2017 L4008 ESES) -
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EMPLOYEES
=




The past year has seen the Club’s employees at their very best. In the most testing of
circumstances they have risen to the challenge, showing extraordinary commitment
to the Club, its customers and to the community it serves. The Club remains
committed to safeguarding the health and well-being of all its staff.

The Club is no less mindful of the essential role employees play in advancing its
strategic goals. With the aim of building a more agile, motivated and future-ready
organisation, this year saw the Club launch a major culture transformation journey.

EF > FEETRIME  TRESHEDIRE  ETRURESFE  BEERHEE
MESETFBRERE  ERAULERBNEE - BHIREZEBETHNREREL -

SR EnXMEGREE BETMMENACEARAEE - SF  FEETTERN
EEXCEHTE BREVERT EEFINSTT - UERRHAE -

ONE CLUB, ONE TEAM
E—5g- [ —EkX

The Club is one of the largest employers in Hong Kong, with over EeRFEEXEFT—  HEHEB
21,000 full-time and part-time employees. The Club believes in equal 21,000 22 ERBET - EEATEA
employment opportunities for all, and values the different talents, TREAFEHNMERS  ERBNETHN
perspectives and experiences all its employees bring to the RIERES - IBERRER o

organisation.




Employee health and safety is one of the Club’s highest priorities.
Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, the Club has maintained a
close dialogue with employees, providing regular updates and
communicating the support available. Over 200 such
announcements were sent through internal online and digital
channels.

To protect its employees, the Club adopted a number of heightened
precautionary measures. These include temperature screening for
employees and visitors at the entrance of racecourses, corporate
buildings, stables and other key buildings; regular deep cleaning of
facilities; social distancing; and the provision of face masks. More
than 2.2 million masks have been distributed to staff since January.

Early on the Club discouraged non-essential business or leisure
travel and implemented applicable travel-related policies. Before the
Government implemented compulsory quarantine requirements, the
Club also arranged over 1,000 hotel room nights for returning
employees and household members for the purpose of self-
isolation.

Between February and early May, flexible practices such as remote
work arrangements and split-team operations were implemented.
For full-time staff working on Club premises, transport costs,
including taxi fares, were reimbursed to provide them with more

flexible commuting options as well as an alternative to potentially
crowded public transport. On racedays, special racecourse shuttle
bus services were provided, with all raceday staff receiving a
supplementary allowance.

ETINRERZZREERERNEE
Z— EFETHASHEHE B
—HESTREERER  THEET
BHBHEMRREMBEEER BB
EBABEREFREELVERAMH
BB 2001 °

AREET  EEERZSERENTER
it BREEES  BEAE  BER
HEEXEAORBIRFEETRER
B EERREEZSERE  BRER
ERRREEOISZ - 818 BEBER
ETREBB220EEOE o

Bhl - EEYMETROESLENHER
HNEE > W HEITHERESNIEBUR o BN B
REIER > BEARIMEENET
R ERMEEZ BB 1,000 68 AEE
18 e xKEEE -

2RESRYME  FEEREERDIK
THRZHSEERE - DRETNER
FEHEARTH  TTEREHE T
RBER(BENTESE)  RMOMATE
EHRETETA  WEEREHMER
EENAHZBTA - #EFH  §8
BHREETFEFRELRE - LAR
EFH LN E TRASRIRES o




/ Operations Review Employees / ¥ EgE &I /

The Club was especially mindful of the needs of its more than
13,000 part-time employees, many of whom were impacted by the
precautionary closure of Off-Course Betting Branches and most
Telebet and racecourse services. In response, the Club undertook to
pay 50% of the average weekly earnings of eligible part-time staff
until the end of the racing season. Such support for part-time
employees is rare, indeed exceptional, in the market.

The Club has likewise pledged that there will be no COVID-19-
related redundancies. Nor has it applied for support under the
Government’s Employment Support Scheme, thus freeing up
resources for other companies with pressing needs.

TRANSFORMATION JOURNEY
AL EFER

In 2019, the Club launched a wide-reaching effort to strengthen its
culture in support of its development as a sustainable and future-
ready organisation.

A transformation communications team has been established and
divisional workshops conducted to reinforce the Club’s commitment
to fostering the new culture. To further embed transformation,
change champions have been identified at the divisional level.
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In parallel, the Club’s human resources strategy has been updated,
with a focus on modernisation, professionalism and motivation; that
is finding new ways to motivate employees and to help them
advance their careers within the Club. Human resources structures
and processes are also being optimised through greater use of
technology.

Initiatives have been launched to strengthen recruitment and
onboarding, learning and talent development, as well as
communication and engagement. All of these efforts align with the
Club’s overall culture transformation strategy.

RECRUITMENT AND ONBOARDING
LS ON

This year, the Club stepped up efforts to attract top talent through
an improved recruitment process.

A talent acquisition team was established to support strategic hiring
both externally and internally. The team adopts a forward-planning
approach for future openings and works with departments to nurture
employees with leadership potential.

The Club has expanded its recruitment to include a broad range of
online and social media recruitment channels. These complement
traditional recruitment approaches, such as referrals, career fairs
held in partnership with tertiary and training institutions, and

job boards.
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In the summer of 2019, a three-week recruitment expo with interactive elements was organised by the Club’s Membership Hospitality Academy.

20195 HZ SERERFEHERERRA=BHERS - FHRFEHTE  BREAAT ©
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Additionally, the Club continues to work with local authorities to
strengthen its talent pipeline. In Conghua, for example, it is working
with institutions such as the Guangdong Vocational Institute of
Sports and the Veterans Resettlement Office.

To align with the Club’s culture transformation, selection processes
and new-hire onboarding have been revamped. Competency
assessments are used to measure cultural fit, while the onboarding
programme is designed to familiarise recruits with the culture
transformation journey.

The onboarding programme has also been augmented with regular
pulse checks and surveys to facilitate the integration of new recruits
into the Club.

Winner

Employer of Choice
Award 2019 and
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LEARNING AND TALENT
DEVELOPMENT
SERATERE

The Club is committed to offering employees a supportive EeyhAETIEHEBEENIRE » i
environment conducive to individual and group performance as well ETAEEANERES  BRHBHET
as to helping employees advance their careers. As part of this REBX BEEBOEATFEIRR
commitment, it offers a wide range of learning and development ENEBREEEE o

opportunities.
FRIEE BRRESEESEIERM

Initiatives this year included leadership programmes tailored around MHPEE HER SERASEINERE
the Club’s Leadership Competency Model and designed to build BEH o

managerial capability.

Management trainees — the Club recruits
and develops high potential individuals
as future leaders of the Club.
FERERBETHALE  EEEAEE
BENAT  BILFHBHAAT B
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This year also saw 17 executives complete the one-year Leadership
in Action programme. Through structured action-learning, team
coaching, and the adoption of world-class professional
methodologies and tools, the programme seeks to develop
executives as change experts in support of the Club’s strategic
development.

The Club delivers learning through a variety of media, including via
classroom workshops and an online learning platform. The latter
proved particularly useful during the pandemic, providing staff with
opportunities to upskill their competencies at their own pace while
working from home. Indeed, thanks to virtual technology it was
possible to deliver many classroom courses online.

To further support employee development, in June the Club launched
the Learning Gateway, an online portal which brings together all
learning resources under one roof.

With the launch of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership
Hospitality Academy in July 2019, the Club was the first non-
academic member of the hospitality industry to offer a QF Level 5
programme in Hong Kong. This programme (equivalent to the QF
Level of a local Bachelor’s degree) together with a QF Level 4
programme (equivalent to the QF Level of a local Associate’s degree)
are helping the Membership team further develop their hospitality
careers in support of Membership’s transformation journey.

/ Operations Review Employees / ¥i§EfE £ /

more than

1 80,000 hours of training

in 2019/20
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SUCCESSION MANAGEMENT
EHEEE

To ensure the sustainability of the Club’s operations and to prepare
for the future, the Club takes a proactive and people-centric
approach to succession planning.

Over the past year, an initial assessment of the succession bench
strength of all executive roles has been carried out. This will be
extended to other critical roles in the coming years.

To build management capabilities and promote leadership
development, a series of processes, products and tools were also
implemented during the year. These include the use of divisional
talent identification processes to assess the performance and
potential of all managers up to executive director level; to codify
performance, potential and identify gaps; and to build executive-
level capability through the development of accelerated
development programmes.

In support of this process, a comprehensive Personal Development
Plan (PDP) was launched in February 2019 to facilitate career
development conversations between employees and their line
managers. In 2019/20 all Executives and Assistant Executives
participated in this process.
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COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT

SIS

The Club believes in two-way communication, through which it
seeks to build engagement and better support employee goals.

Club news and information are disseminated through the employee
portal MyJC and the staff newsletter, Rapport. With the COVID-19
pandemic making the need for factual and timely information even
more important, the Club advanced the launch of its mobile app JC
Net to provide the latest news, policies and work arrangements. An
employee communications blog was also developed for staff to
share questions, concerns and suggestions.
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>600 news items

posted across internal
communication channels

SEABEEREARSR

1B 600 fFRaH 2

including

>200

relating to COVID-19 and
special work arrangements

The Club’s Corporate Wellness Programme offers a variety of
seminars, outdoor activities and interest classes for employees to
nurture wellness and foster a healthy lifestyle. Employees can also
make use of the gym and catering facilities at its Happy Valley and
Sha Tin premises.

As an organisation dedicated to the betterment of society, the Club
actively encourages its employees to engage in volunteer work.

To this end, the Club offers related training as well as paid
volunteering leave.

In 2019/20, some 640 current and former employees dedicated over
17,000 hours to the community as members of the Club’s CARE@
hkjc employee volunteer team.

This included taking an active role during the pandemic. Working
with NGOs, staff helped pack and distribute Club-supported care
packs to vulnerable members of the community. They also reached
out via phone to the homebound elderly and underprivileged families
to chat with them and share their anxieties. For more on this, see the
Community section of this report.
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ENVIRONMENT
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This year the Club worked hard to manage its carbon and environmental hoofprint,
reflecting the high expectations of the community it serves. Together with support for
community green initiatives, including via its Charities Trust, the Club seeks to
contribute towards a greener and more sustainable future for all.

TRAR-EHSENHEER  SFRMEES HROREFMERRE [FHED] -
FE-EXHHERRI AT EFEEBEEERESHEN  BHEBERRM

AR BRATRIR -

MANAGING OUR HOOFPRINT
EEEPIRY [ BHED

To manage and reduce its hoofprint, the Club has invested
substantially in energy-efficient design and technology and worked
hard to reduce consumption and manage waste.

Most recently the New Clubhouse at Happy Valley, which is due to
become operational by the end of 2020, was awarded a provisional
GOLD BEAM Plus certificate by the Hong Kong Green Building
Council, reflecting its use of sustainably-sourced materials, recycling
of construction waste, and energy and water efficient design.

Just as important are efforts to educate and engage with employees,
suppliers and stakeholders. For example, the Greener Future
Awards, launched this year, are designed to empower employees to
implement their own green initiatives.

The Club’s achievements have been well recognised over the years.
This year the Club again received a CarbonCare Star Label for its
success in maintaining carbon emissions at 5% or more below its
baseline year of 2009/10. The award is made to companies that
achieve this target three or more years in succession, the Club
having done so for seven years. The Club’s environmental reporting
was also honoured at the Hong Kong Management Association’s
2019 Best Annual Reports Awards.

Meanwhile, the Club’s support for a smoke-free environment inside
its Off-Course Betting Branches was honoured at the Hong Kong
Smoke-free Leading Company Awards 2019.
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GOVERNANCE AND REPORTING
REEERRE

The Club’s Sustainability Committee is responsible for overseeing
the Club’s sustainability policies and practices and ensuring they are
carried out in line with its environmental objectives.

At Conghua Racecourse this function is overseen by an
Environmental Committee. The environmental management and
governance of Conghua mirrors Hong Kong practices while
complying with Mainland environmental regulations.

This year Conghua completed its report on waste water discharge,
odour emissions and noise emissions for its phase one facilities,
filing it as required with the Guangzhou Ecology and Environment
Bureau. It also passed the Bureau’s inspection of its solid waste
management. With this complete, and phase one of the racecourse
now operational, this year’s report presents environmental data for
Conghua Racecourse for the first time.

As last year, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course, the
Club’s public riding schools, and Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and
Arts are reported under “Other Operations”.

# Educating, training and motivating
employees to carry out tasks in an
environmentally responsible
and proactive manner.
REIRMHBEREN  HBMABEE
RREM  TEREGERRREE -

/# Preventing pollution, minimising waste
through source reduction and recycling,
and conserving natural resources.
Bribs53  BERIREREN LK EE -
EEZVEERD  URHERAER -

# Encouraging the same level of
environmental performance among
our business partners, suppliers,
contractors and sub-contractors.
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/Z Integrating environmental considerations
into the delivery of our services and the planning,
design, construction, operation and maintenance

ESERERBUARREHRE - R 25
BEMEERHE  BARRTE -

# Complying with applicable legal requirements
and other environmental requirements to
which HKJC facilities subscribe.

BFEAEN R EFEREABNEMRR

# Supporting community-based environmental
efforts, conservation and programmes.

ERFHERRIERREE -
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CARBON EMISSIONS
hix BERR

Routine water sampling is part of the environmental
monitoring process at Conghua Racecourse.

A SIS IR B2 TR BERENRERA

This year, overall carbon emissions for Hong Kong operations SHE HERERNREEHNEE5:2018/19F
decreased by 7% compared to 2018/19, being 12% lower than the ERA 7% » E22009/10 ELXEFEAALL
baseline year of 2009/10. This decrease was principally due to WA 12% 0 I EFERKEIMNTE
reduced electricity at Off-Course Betting Branches and Telebet EEEEPLRERAB LB F(LER
centres, reflecting the suspension or reduction of their operations at A BN F SR ) EERE AR
various times in the year, notably during the COVID-19 pandemic. EIERE SMENESEENM T -

The increase in carbon emissions in the Club’s Mainland operations AEEFE > E2E2019/20FEEEHE
reflects the inclusion of Conghua Racecourse in 2019/20, which BRLESMAZRETE » SRR
contributed 11,795 tonnes of CO,-e during this period. Emissions E2511,7950 - BR{E R ith 37 09 B HE AR
from other Mainland operations were 15% lower than the baseline MEFATEF > MEAMSRENRIERE BB
year of 2009/10. 2009/10 B EFEHA15% °

CARBON EMISSIONS (CO,-€ in tonnes) iz HEi (Z & {LixBE N E & — A 0E)

Year FE 2019/20 2018/19

HONG KONG OPERATIONS @ BABEKO 110,250
MAINLAND OPERATIONS @ A 7L @ 7,357

M Historical data updated.
FECEMBERE -

@ Includes Conghua Racecourse from 2019/20, Beijing Clubhouse from 2009/10 and office operations in Shenzhen from 2016/17.
YRR ES (B 2019/20F ) ~ LS (H 200910 FE) RRIIB A E (B 2016/17 FE) ©

2009/10

Baseline

2017/18 HEFE
110,255 116,864
7,451 8,765
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Telebet Centres

Staff Quarters and
Club Vehicles
EIEERESER

BREBOERD
(o)
Off-Course 2 A)
Betting Branches I
BONEE

9%

3%

Offices
WAE
14% ENERGY USE
(Hong Kong and Sha Tin Racecourse
Mainland Operations) ’éif;
S S 0]
Clubh REREAER
aees (BB R A EL)
1 9 % Happy Valley Racecourse
555

Conghua Racecourse 9 %
RIS
10%

ENERGY EFFICIENCY
RER W

Over the past twelve months, the Club has continued to invest in
upgrading lighting and air-conditioning systems.

This includes the ongoing renovation of Off-Course Betting Branches
(OCBBs), with three newly renovated branches opening at the
beginning of the season. Five branches have also been upgraded
with energy-efficient chillers over the last two years. Meanwhile,
1,400 fluorescent lights at OCBBs as well as some floodlights at
racecourses were replaced with LED lighting.

This year energy consumption for Hong Kong operations was down
8% on last year. Half of this decrease was recorded at OCBBs,
Telebet centres and racecourses while the other half came from
clubhouses, reflecting the closure of some or all of their facilities
during the pandemic. Mainland data includes Conghua Racecourse
for the first time, with a 9% reduction in consumption being recorded

at Beijing Clubhouse due to reduced operations during the pandemic.
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION EER{EAER
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2009/10
Baseline
Year FE 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 HEFE
HONG KONG OPERATIONS BERXE
Electricity (kWh) &N (TEME) (LGl eET 174,006,240 174,290,907 174,835,923
Towngas (units) HR(E) 873,354 873,496 798,673
Biodiesel (B5) (litres) B5AEYSA (A FH) 217,691 222,180 -
Diesel (litres) sem(aF) 273,910 181,759 420,343
Petrol (litres) FUB(AF) 53,228 62,514 77,833
MAINLAND OPERATIONS ® R ith FEqE O
Electricity (kWh) EH (TR 7,965,973 8,056,567 9,383,904
Natural gas (m?) RAR(ZLFK) 228,808 236,587 230,748
Diesel (litres) Sm(nF) - - =
Petrol (litres) FUR(AFH) - - =

™ Includes Conghua Racecourse from 2019/20, Beijing Clubhouse from 2009/10 and office operations in Shenzhen from 2016/17.

YRR ES (B 2019/20F ) ~ dLEF(H 200910 FE) RRYIB A E (B 2016/17 FE) °

GREEN MOBILITY
RER

The Club operates a fleet of some 250 vehicles including pool cars,
delivery vans, horse transporters and off-road vehicles for work such
as track maintenance.

As of June 2020, 70% of the Club’s passenger vehicles were electric
or hybrid and 91% of goods and special purpose vehicles were

Euro V. These include 44 electric and hybrid passenger vehicles and
two off-road utility vehicles replaced with electric models by the
Tracks team this year.

At Conghua Racecourse, low carbon transportation was taken into
consideration in the planning of buildings and operations. Some 135
electric vehicle chargers are located in the main parking areas, with
the Club operating 59 electric golf carts, a fleet of shared bicycles
and four hybrid passenger vehicles.
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WATER MANAGEMENT
KEREE

Data on water consumption in Hong Kong is incomplete this year due to
Government department delays in reading and billing. The figure in the table
below is an estimate only, based on full-year billing of 95% of the Club’s
annual usage. This is indicative of an 11% decline in water usage, mostly
the result of reduced racecourse operations during the pandemic, though
this figure is subject to revision.

At Conghua Racecourse, water management was a key consideration in the
design. An onsite water recycling plant provided, on average, 33% of the
water used per day in 2019/20. This amount varies according to rainfall,
which is also captured for use. Recycled water is used in toilet flushing,
cooling towers, stables cleaning and general greening irrigation. Total water
consumption at Conghua Racecourse in 2019/20 was 366,793 md.

WATER CONSUMPTION AK&

Year FE
HONG KONG OPERATIONS @ BEREKM
WATER - from municipal X — RB#E K
source (md) A#(SLFR)
MAINLAND OPERATIONS @ A S A
WATER - from municipal X — RE & HK
source (m?) 25 (3L T53K)

HAKBEENDERBREBREMLER 58
REZHMBBEBNZFAKE - TREIH
HEERRTSENSFAKEREESH U5
FRMKENIBY  HEBFELE - BEBBET
BEBEBFANAKERD11% » TEZHRES
ERFHEREREERR

AKEERMIBERRBEEN—EAEENERE
HE - BISRAESKEERE - RERERK
WEE - ISR EE S RREFERK - R4
% BEERREY - BRIRIENFIIHKES
201920 FE 5B HAKEMNI3IY% > MERE
TEFEMKE - ILBEEN201920F E
K4 k&% 366,793 5K °

2013/14

Baseline

2018/19 2017/18 HEFE
2,017,023 1,953,976 1,738,946
100,712 98,144 97,117

™ Estimate based on data from 95% of Club’s usage in 2019/20. Hong Kong water data is incomplete this year due to Government department delays in reading and billing.
HAKBENDERRBEBREMILR  SERELREBEBNEFEAKE - EHEBEUSE 201920 FEAKEN 5% LB -
@ Includes Conghua Racecourse from 2019/20, Beijing Clubhouse from 2009/10 and office operations in Shenzhen from 2019/20.

YRR SIS (B 2019/20F ) ~ dLEFT(H 200910 FE) RRYIB A E (B 2019/20 F ) -

GREEN MEMBERSHIP
FEEHMEEIRR

To reduce water used in washing and energy used in drying, in May 2019
Hong Kong clubhouses implemented a new method of distributing towels

in changing rooms. Results are encouraging, with an average 19%
reduction in towel use, equal to the avoidance of over 150,000 towels
used and laundered in the six months June to December.

Paper savings were also realised following the relaunch last year of

15% per issue while switching to a monolingual edition reduced paper
usage by approximately 30% per issue.
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badges magazine, with members invited to choose between an online or a
printed version in either English or Chinese. This reduced the print run by

201958  BEEMREXRENEMHE
HATHIENE - LUBA SIGE M A K R A
EMFENGER - BRAERANAEE > K6 A
Z12 AHRE  EMEREFIH19% -
HENEDFERREKREBR15BEEM o

o - EEe 8 A Tl(badges) EFEEH A
BT EE 7 ARk ENRIAR (332 A 3ThR)
FEEATIMENRIZERMD 15% - B HEE
WRAR% > SHEATINAKERDL30% °
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SMART PURCHASING AND WASTE AVOIDANCE

AR B PR S N R

In support of the Government’s target of a 40% reduction in waste
sent to landfill by 2022, the Club is continually looking for ways to
reduce materials coming in and waste leaving operations.

Through its Sustainable Procurement Policy, it also seeks to
purchase products and services with a lower environmental impact.

This year saw a significant decrease in food, paper waste and other
recyclables, this being due to reduced catering and Off-Course
Betting Branches operations, largely as a result of the pandemic.

Avoiding and Reducing Plastic Waste
R MR EEEBREEY)

The Club adopted an Avoiding Single-use Plastics Policy in 2018,
with seven categories of plastic targeted and significant reductions
already achieved. Thanks to the support of teams across the Club,
new opportunities are being identified to avoid and reduce other
types of plastic waste.

At Beas River Equestrian Centre, the Stables team has eliminated
plastic waste bags from its mucking out process, replacing them
with bins. Aside from saving 250,000 bags per annum, this has also
reduced the amount of stables waste generated by 20%; this
despite a 5% increase in horse occupancy in the first six months.
The new process has also improved occupational safety. In addition,
all bedding bags, or approximately seven tonnes of plastic per year,
are recycled. The initiative was the overall winner of the Club’s
inaugural Greener Future Awards in 2019.

Meanwhile, the Retail team has redesigned its daily money packing
process by replacing unrecyclable plastic wrapping with secure and
reusable cash pouches, a process which also saves staff time.
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Drinking water
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PAPER PURCHASED #iiREREEE

(boxes)

In 2018/19, the Club stopped selling or providing water in plastic
bottles, with water points now provided at racecourses, riding
schools and in corporate offices. This year an additional 16 water
points were installed, bringing the total to 85.

Paper Avoidance and Reduction

i Y S K

The Club continues to make excellent progress in avoiding and
reducing office paper usage. Indeed with usage down by 12%
relative to 2018/19, the Club has now surpassed its 40% reduction
target compared with the baseline year of 2014/15. It is now in the
process of setting a new paper reduction target.

Much of this reduction is due to the efforts of the Retail team, with
the 100 Off-Course Betting Branches achieving the largest reduction
of office paper this year of over 68%, or around three million A4
pages, compared with the baseline year of 2014/15. This largely
reflects the transition to electronic information displays inside
betting branches.

The Charities team also made good progress in paper reduction this
year. NGOs are now actively encouraged to submit reimbursement
claims online, with the internal processing of claims from some 300
projects a year being done electronically. A paperless grant
management system is also being piloted in support of The Jockey
Club Community Sustainability Fund, which is providing support to
NGOs tackling the impact of COVID-19.
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Year FE 2018/19 2017/18
HONG KONG OPERATIONS H&HE%£#%
BET SLIPS (Thousand sheets) ¥Z(F3R) 435,081 449,278
FSC paper BAMEEESS 100% 100%
(FSC)RFEBR IR R
BET RECEIPTS BERIE 199 205
(Thousand paper rolls) (F%)
OFFICE COPY PAPER PAEITENA () 6,335 6,555

BEE2018/19FEFERTHIRHER
Bk BREES « BRITEKMMEAEE
RAERFAKER o SEHIL 16 E-KY -
HMEILZE 851F o

BERBERBOMAE ARSI EES
BSEHER  FARLERHAER
2018/19F iR 12% » E22014/15 5%
FEML  BOBB4A0% - EEEHBET
REFETE 28k » ERETHEVRERE -

BEERSNLRE  SEBIEIHFRD -
HRBRIEZSRUSFRRRENE
H o EEETH100EBIMNUEIEER
BWOMAENARLERIEGC8% - BEIM
28 0 HE2014/15 B EFEML - 54
X300 ERALHE ©

HESKHSFERD AR ST ETERE
8 o FFISRIFFBUTHABER LR IR
# - FANEFHHXEEA3001EER °
BEESHESENEESTERERARL
EEAREMEYRFE  ESRIFBUTHE
BRHSE  BEBEEHERSRIE

2009/10
Baseline

BEFRE

647,294
18.6%

264
(2011/12)

9,714
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Smart Purchasing of IT Equipment
BERIBEANRE R

This year, the Club upgraded its computer infrastructure via its virtual 5% ' EEKEMAGAREZERIEE
desktop infrastructure (VDI) project. This has reduced the number of B SEEMR LEEMFREKNEE

desktop and laptop computers from 6,000 to 3,300, while the RigR4 » H6,00050HZ 3,300 » M
upgrade to a “thin-client” or VDI, a smaller lightweight computer, FRERIEANBELEN  BEE
is expected to reduce electronic waste in the future. OB FEVHE -

Retired electronic assets are recycled via a Government-licensed FEREEEFREXTERRETHNE

e-waste management company. Other usable electronic equipment EEMERATIEI - BIREE - ERAHEM

is donated to the Caritas Computer Workshop for refurbishment and ~ JAIEAME 7234 - SERETHE

reuse. In the Mainland, retired computers are donated to rural schools. ETH @ EKBHRERTFEFTEAL -
TR SETKEEKBETFRETE

Thanks to the proactive thinking of Property Facilities Management B o
=]
staff, reusable CCTV equipment has also been salvaged from
renovated Off-Course Betting Branches for use in other locations. BENESRTEDEIREAIF - B

BROTRETEN TR - SREHNME
REBEHEMESREER -

SOURCE SEPARATION, DONATIONS AND RECYCLING RsE2 3 - B K BRE A

2009/10
Baseline
Year FE 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 BEEFE
HONG KONG OPERATIONS BBEK
DONATIONS, FOOD (kg) BEEYM(AT) 9,501 12,410 -
RECYCLING I
Food waste (kg) BIER (A FT) 1,051,662 858,676 -
Paper (kg) BEAE (D FT) 576,923 534,756 385,967
Glass Bottles (kg) WHEE(AT) 121,319 98,406 21,059
Plastic (kg) BRB(AT) 91,967 61,617 4,367
Metal (kg) cBm(AT) 17,465 4,824 857
e-waste (units) EFEY () 3,298 5,178 5,137
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Donations and Upcycling
BRENARBE

The Club has a well-established practice of donating surplus
usable items to the community through its extensive network of
partners. This includes the donation of electronic equipment and
of edible food from Sha Tin Racecourse kitchens.

OTHER OPERATIONS
Hith %755

The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course has a
longstanding commitment to protecting and preserving its
environment. This year saw it recertified as a Golf Environment
Organisation accredited facility, a certification it has maintained

since 2010. Overall electricity use and water consumption at Kau Sai
Chau fell marginally this year as a result of its 62-day closure during

the COVID-19 pandemic. Carbon emissions decreased by 7% on
last year, also reflecting the impact of the pandemic.

ENERGY USE gelR1fE A

Year FE
KAU SAI CHAU PUBLIC EEMNAR
GOLF COURSE SRR
Electricity (kWh) EN(TEE)
Diesel (litres) Sm(aFH)
Petrol (litres) ™ FUR(AFH)O
PUBLIC RIDING SCHOOLS NREBMER
Electricity (kWh) & (FRBF)
Biodiesel (B5) (litres) B5HEMSm(AFH) O
TAI KWUN - CENTRE FOR KE — HER
HERITAGE AND ARTS @ 1l @
Electricity (kWh) EhH(FRE)
Diesel (litres) Som (A F)

M Includes data since 2016/17.
RE B 2016/17 SFELURKIRE -

@ Data is for buildings and public areas managed and operated by The Jockey Club CPS Limited only.

ERHEAGTREESEXREERLAEEREENZENR AR ZEM -
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2019/20

5,235,530
575,610

FEEASFRETINHEBBAHRER
ERSNEERTHELERTEAL

B EE - BB ERE RN E
SEHEENRE -

ESSEANARSRABRGEHEIRE
REFE—ETERD - B2010FE

RSERSHEARBAMIE  STEEE
B o HABBR ARG EEHRER

620 FRERBAERAKEEMUTHE
MR EREFHD 7% °

2018/19 2017/18
5,269,113 5,189,831
655,013 680,152
28,346 31,218
992,384 1,034,662
3,884 3,458
6,412,017 -
483 -

2013/14
Baseline

BEEFE

5,075,433

780,391
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Overall electricity consumption at the Public Riding Schools
was up 4% and carbon emissions were 3% higher compared
to 2018/19.

At Tai Kwun - Centre for Heritage and Arts, although visitor
numbers were down in the second half of the year due to the
pandemic, most public areas remained in operation. Electricity and
water rose 3% and 10% respectively. Overall carbon emissions
were up by 4%.

WATER CONSUMPTION Ak &

Year FE

WATER CONSUMPTION - from FAKE — RB&mH
municipal source (m3) KRG (LK)
Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course SETRM AR SR AERES
Public Riding Schools NRBMER O

Tai Kwun - Centre for Heritage A8 — HER
and Arts @ i8R @

™ Based on most recent data available. Data is incomplete due to Government department delays in reading and billing.
ARKEENYERBEBREMER  FERESRAZFAKE  ERBRLFMSHIBHEESE -

@ Data is for buildings and public areas managed and operated by The Jockey Club CPS Limited only.
BHEHERGIREESEXYREBRADEERLENEEY R AL ER -

2019/20

2N
& HBEH
Through its engagement activities, the Club seeks to embed
sustainability learning and action among its employees as well as to
contribute to the sustainable development of the wider community.

Working Together for a Greener Future

HZR B ARR

Environmental education is provided to all full-time employees,
including as part of their induction training. Where appropriate it is
also provided to part-time employees, with tailored programmes
developed for Retail and Membership staff. In addition, compliance
training is provided to staff in key roles, with training in water
management and compliance introduced this year.

EENRBNERNEERSER
2018/19 FE#EM4% » MiHERE
HHN3%

BEAKRE — HEBEREMENTEEN
ABASEBEERT Y BRARKES
AHEEEFFEN > KENAERAKE
2 RIEIN3% K% 10% - Mk AE
EIN4% °

2013/14

Baseline

2018/19 2017/18 HEFE
37,947 31,367 55,163
8,318 6,880 9,944
18,492 = =

FEER-RIED  HBETSHE
EetfEIFERRNRE  BRER
BE - AR BEESHENIFERRED
Bt e

ERAMETHATRIERHUERE
EARSIAEZ—  FEEETER
AEBE TR . XrOESADE
HREBEHHETMROEIRE -
BSh - BE BRI A R A R
RE - LRSTHRAERERAAR
s«
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In 2019/20 a total of 1,556 employees in Hong Kong received
training, with 924 full-time staff receiving it as part of their induction.
In Conghua, 446 received training, including 133 new full-time staff
as part of their induction.

This year also saw the launch of the first Greener Future Awards.
A total of 24 teams from across the Club showcased their projects,
developed on their own initiative to improve environmental
performance while at the same time meeting business objectives.
Other benefits included improved safety, team collaboration, and
enhanced customer service.

As a further engagement activity, staff took part in a workshop
hosted by the Club in support of the Government’s public
consultation on decarbonisation.

Community Engagement
HERIEHE

Aside from the support it provides through its Charities Trust, the
Club engages with community environmental needs through its
partnerships with NGOs in areas material to its business such as
energy efficiency, water management, air quality, conservation,
bio-diversity, and waste handling.

The Club works with many cross-industry organisations such as the
Business Environment Council (BEC). It sits on the Board of
Directors of the Hong Kong Institute of Qualified Environmental
Professionals (HKIQEP) and is an Executive Committee member of
Drink Without Waste (DWW), a cross-industry coalition focusing on
facilitating strategies and actions to significantly reduce waste from
beverage consumption. It is also a member of the monitoring

committee supporting street-level and mobile waste paper recyclers.

For more information about the Club’s environmental commitment
and progress, please see the 2019 Environmental Report, available
on the Club’s website.
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Teams, judges and guests
at the inaugural Greener
Future Awards.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
£ 2 M

ERESE(BERIANEREXFHENERR
BEEHE ZBEAUAREEREERYE 288
i EETREERERES  URZERULEBRRD
FEEERN  AUHEBAEKERUEEHE -

ERRENBAR(AB I EE)REBRAE—HH
B > 201920 FEFBHRAREH199EERET - BE
ZREAESSREETES(ETESL))  EFB
BRAUBHEENEERTETE - EXESER
UHER+RBEEBHEE - H2019/20FENEHF
BB 45 EBT ER21I0EEERHEEA -

SERE
FER-—ZEEBHINERERAT  BBHAE2E
BFEMBRARAEESSESERERLAA - EEES
RREXERADNEEFTERSERLT - FAA
FEBRCENEERFHY  EREEMAERER
ZHER - Z-EIEMBLAESEEEIHARD
A AEEEESESENERELERRE -

ERESRE—EAHEZES  FEXEBELBNES
RitEHEA -

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) is a world-class racing club that acts continuously for the
betterment of our society. Through its integrated business model of world-class racing and
racecourse entertainment, membership club, responsible sports wagering and lottery, and charity
and community contribution, the Club generates economic and social value for the community.

The Club, together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), is Hong Kong’s largest single
taxpayer, contributing HK$19.9 billion in 2019/20. The Club allocates its surplus funds to charitable
and community projects via The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”), which is one
of the world’s top ten providers of charity funding. In 2019/20, the Trust approved HK$4.5 billion in
donations to 210 charitable and community projects.

APPROVED DONATIONS FROM THE HKJC GROUP TO

THE HKJC CHARITIES TRUST (HK$M)

APPROVED DONATIONS MADE BY THE HKJC CHARITIES TRUST (HK$M)
BRAESERENSEAECTESERNBER(ERET)
EEESRAESTESEHNER(EBER)

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000

Approved donations from The Hong Kong . Approved donation from The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Jockey Club Group to the Trust Group to the Trust for the Hong Kong Palace Museum

BRRSERERGTESHENEN EEESEREREBRE X LEYE
MRS HENER

Approved donations from The Trust * Approved donation from The Trust for the

to charitable organisations and
community projects

EREESAZSHER AHEE HANER

Hong Kong Palace Museum

EREESREBRE XL EM AT A AR

GROUP STRUCTURE

The Club is a Hong Kong incorporated company with liability limited by guarantee. Through its
wholly owned subsidiaries, HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited, HKJC Football Betting Limited and
HKJC Lotteries Limited, the Club holds the sole licences for the operation and management of
Hong Kong’s horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six lottery. The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Membership Services Limited, another principal subsidiary, manages members’ social and
recreational facilities.

The Trust is a public charity and is primarily engaged in supporting charitable and community
projects in Hong Kong.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Club has no shareholders and is governed by an elected Board of Stewards whose members
possess a wide cross-section of business and community experience and serve without
remuneration.

In line with the Government’s policy of meeting public demand for gambling through a regulated
and responsible channel, the Club provides all on-course betting and has been authorised as Hong
Kong’s sole provider of off-course betting services on horse racing since 1973. It has been the
authorised operator of the Mark Six lottery since 1975. In 2003, to combat illegal betting on football
matches, it was further authorised by the Government to provide a regulated football betting service.
The Club’s betting licences are issued and overseen by the Home Affairs Bureau in consultation
with the Betting and Lotteries Commission.

In support of its commitment to promote responsible gambling, the Club engages with the
Government, police, gambling care agencies, customers, employees and international organisations
to establish measures to protect Hong Kong people from excessive and illegal gambling. Since
2003, the Club has supported the Ping Wo Fund, an independent body established by the
Government which finances preventive and remedial measures to address gambling-related
problems.

The Club’s wide-ranging role as Hong Kong’s largest provider of sporting and wagering
entertainment, major source of tax and charity funding, prestigious membership club and significant
employer, means that most individuals and organisations in Hong Kong can be considered as the
Club’s stakeholders. The major stakeholder groups include the Club’s customers, members,
employees, Government departments, local community bodies, the Legislative Council, District
Councils and the media. It also has extensive relationships with various governmental and non-
governmental bodies through its charity and community work.

Internationally the Club maintains wide-ranging industry connections through its membership of the
Asian Racing Federation (Chairman), International Federation of Horseracing Authorities (Vice-
Chairman, Asia), World Lottery Association (Co-Vice President) and World Tote Association (Co-
Chair) amongst others. The Club also hosts the Secretariat of the Asian Racing Federation. Through
participation in these bodies, the Club is able to shape international standards, policies and
protocols for the benefit of the industry and in support of its own business development.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

This has been a challenge year for the Club like every organisation in Hong Kong, in particular as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic from January 2020 onwards. Nonetheless the Club demonstrated
great resilience in responding to these challenges, both in maintaining the continuity of its world-
class racing and in its strong support for the community.

Indeed, though two race meetings were cancelled early in the season (one subsequently being
rescheduled), December’s LONGINES Hong Kong International Races proved a great success,
attracting 21 international Group 1 winners to what is widely recognised as the Turf World
Championships.

The strength and quality of Hong Kong racing was further underlined by the world rankings, released
in January. Ten of Hong Kong’s 12 international Group 1 races featured in the World’s Top 100
Group 1 Races for 2019, while 20 horses were listed in the LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse
Rankings for 2019. Among these was Beauty Generation, rated the world’s top miler. Once again
Hong Kong had the highest number of horses in the rankings relative to the size of its horse
population.
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In response to COVID-19, the Club moved quickly to introduce measures aimed at protecting public
health and the health of customers, members, employees and licensed personnel. Off-Course
Betting Branches were closed and most Telebet services ceased. At racecourses, attendance limits
were introduced for the Chinese New Year meeting in late January and subsequently adjusted in
line with Government requirements. The deepest impact was in March—-April, which saw attendance
reduced from an average of 22,000 before the outbreak to around 300, with only trainers, jockeys,
essential officials and owners with starters permitted to attend. Temperature checks, face masks,
health declaration forms and stringent social distancing were all mandatory, as was regular testing
of jockeys.

As a result of these measures, the Club was able to maintain a full racing schedule until the very end
of the season; this at a time when sports and sporting events in other parts of the world had either
been cancelled or substantially scaled back.

Moreover, thanks to the strength of the Club’s digital technology, racing fans were able to watch
and wager on every race, including such highlights as the BMW Hong Kong Derby and FWD
Champions Day. Just as importantly, racing provided valuable stay-at-home entertainment at a time
when residents were being advised to avoid public gatherings.

In consequence overall racing turnover this season was down just 2.6% to HK$121.6 billion. Racing
also contributed HK$12.1 billion in betting duty to the Government this season.

Also contributing to this positive result was commingling, which saw continued strong growth, up
25.3% to HK$23.6 billion, representing 19.4% of total racing turnover for the season. This year the
Club further expanded its network through a new partnership with Pari Mutuel Urbain (PMU). The
Club now has over 50 partners and a fan base that spans 27 countries and jurisdictions. With the
relaunch next season of Forecast, a bet type well known overseas, there is the possibility of further
strong growth.

Following last year’s successful launch of the first commingled World Pool on Royal Ascot, the Club
collaborated with partners to offer a World Pool on Dubai’s Super Saturday and for a second time
on Royal Ascot. Combining the best of world racing with international wagering pools, World Pools
have considerable potential, and Hong Kong, being both hub and host, is well placed to benefit.

To further promote international co-operation, including with respect to business growth, responsible
gambling and the use of technology, the World Tote Association (WoTA) was established in June,
bringing together members of the European Pari Mutuel Association and the Asian African Tote
Association. The Club will be the co-chair for the next two years.

The development of commingling and of World Pools is part of a general trend towards the
globalisation of sport, with racing fans increasingly keen to watch and wager on the best international
racing. Hong Kong is no different, although the Club is currently limited to just 23 simulcast days
plus 10 individual overseas races on local race days. Certainly simulcasting has growth potential,
particularly where it is combined with World Pools hosted by the Club.
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A key enabler of the Club’s world-class racing and of its future growth is The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Conghua Racecourse, the Club’s thoroughbred training centre located in the Conghua district
of Guangzhou, PRC, which opened in 2018. Together with the Club’s Hong Kong training centre at
Sha Tin, Conghua operates as part of a dual-site model, with horses moving between the two sites
on a regular basis. Thanks to the support of Mainland and Hong Kong authorities, this movement
continued throughout the pandemic. Horses were thus able to benefit from Conghua’s superb
facilities, and as a result scored no less than 139 victories this season.

Being the Mainland’s first international standard thoroughbred training centre and racecourse,
located in its only large-scale equine-disease free zone, Conghua is ideally positioned to support
the development of a world-class equine industry in the Greater Bay Area. The Club is currently
exploring the possibility of establishing a quarantine station at Conghua, which will facilitate the
international import and export of horses with internationally recognised health status.

The Club is a world-leader in wagering technology, with over 70% of its wagering turnover now via
digital channels. Under its Smart Channel 2.0 strategy, the Club is moving to the next stage, aiming
to digitalise the entire customer journey. This year, utilising the latest Fintech, the Club launched its
Faster Payment System to facilitate funds transfer. More than 240,000 customers signed up. There
were also upgrades to the Racing Touch app and to HKJC TV, providing enhanced coverage of
racing. Biometric logons are also now available for all HKJC wagering apps, improving both security
and customer convenience.

Meanwhile the progressive upgrade of the Club’s 100 Off-Course Betting Branches continued, with
three new-look branches opening at the beginning of the racing season.

With the objective of combating illegal and offshore bookmakers, and to prevent the siphoning of
money from the community, in 2003 the Government authorised the Club to provide wagering on
football. Since then the Club has become one of the world’s largest and most successful operators,
generating substantial tax and charity returns for the community.

However, owing to the suspension of overseas football fixtures during the second half of the year
due to COVID-19, football betting turnover declined 18.8% on last year to HK$92.6 billion.
Nonetheless, this still generated HK$6.27 billion in betting duty for the Government, with a similar
amount returned to the Club.

With lottery draws suspended from 2 February, also in response to COVID-19, Mark Six turnover, at
HK$5.1 billion, was down 39.0% on last year. It is worth noting that, even without the impact of the
pandemic, turnover has been impacted by the lack of significant change in the game format of the
Mark Six since its introduction.

With its deep commitment to the betterment of society, the Club responded strongly to the needs
of the community during the COVID-19 pandemic. Emergency funds provided fast-track grants to
NGOs giving vital support to hard-hit sections of the community. The Club directly donated or
funded the purchase of more than 14 million face masks. It also funded internet data bandwidth for
over 100,000 low-income school students to facilitate their online learning during the school closure
period.
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At the same time the Club maintained its full support for the wide range of community needs. This
included an approved donation of HK$535.3 million for Haven of Hope Christian Service to construct
an integrated end-of-life care services complex. In total the Trust approved a record HK$4.5 billion
in donations to 210 projects in 2019/20. The Trust remains one of the world’s top ten charity donors.

The Club has adopted a more proactive charities strategy in recent years. This includes a strategic
focus on four key areas of need — youth, the elderly, sports, and arts, culture and heritage — and also
the development, in collaboration with community partners, of Trust-initiated Projects (TIPs). There
are currently 14 TIPs in progress, with LevelMind@JC, which aims to address the mental health
needs of young people, being launched this year.

One of the Trust’s largest projects, the restoration of the Central Police Station compound and its
revitalisation as Tai Kwun - Centre for Heritage and Arts, celebrated its second anniversary this
year. Since opening Tai Kwun has received over 5.5 million visits. It has also been widely recognised
as a model of conservation and this year was honoured with the highest Award of Excellence in the
2019 UNESCO Asia-Pacific Awards for Cultural Heritage Conservation.

The Club’s members, most especially its horse owning members, are integral to the Club’s success.
To serve the needs of current members, and also to attract the members the Club needs to carry
forward its world-class racing and its commitment to the betterment of society, a comprehensive
development plan is in progress to improve the overall membership experience.

A key part of this development plan is the New Clubhouse at Happy Valley, which will open to
members by the end of 2020. At nearly 500,000 square feet it is more than twice the size of the
existing Old Clubhouse at Happy Valley. The intention is that Happy Valley Clubhouse, also known
as The Hilltop in The Valley, will form a signature destination catering to the full range of members,
both young and old, current and new.

Meanwhile other initiatives are in progress to develop the clubhouse portfolio, including renovations
at the OId Clubhouse and at Sha Tin Clubhouse. Alongside these are systems and process
improvements. This year saw the launch of a new RFID-enabled car parking system, the first of
several technology-based enhancements.

The Club is strongly committed to protecting the environment. In support of this, it is focusing on
improving energy efficiency, managing resources and reducing overall carbon emissions. This year
carbon emissions were 12% lower than the baseline year of 2009/10. The Club has invested in
energy-efficient systems, IT solutions and transport, and has set a target for all passenger vehicles
to be 100% electric or hybrid and all light goods, medium goods and special purpose vehicles to be
100% Euro V by July 2022. It has also established a waste reduction management plan, focusing
on reducing consumption and avoiding waste sent to landfill, with the Club’s suppliers being
required to follow a set of sustainability guidelines. Significant reductions in seven categories of
plastic waste have been achieved, while the target of a 40% reduction in office paper usage by 2021
was achieved this year. Employee education is an important part of the Club’s effort, with staff
encouraged to take environmental considerations into account when making business decisions.
The Greener Future Awards, launched this year, acknowledge and promote employee green
initiatives.
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Environmental protection features and devices have been incorporated into the design of the new
Conghua Racecourse, including an onsite water recycling plant which provided, on average, 37%
of the water used per day at the racecourse in 2019/20. More details, including the first year of data,
are provided in the environment section of this Annual Report.

The Club is authorised by the Government to provide betting services on horse racing and football
and to manage the Mark Six lottery on its behalf. In doing so, the Club provides a regulated channel
to meet gambling demand, and works with the Government to promote responsible gambling and
to protect the public from the dangers of credit betting, illegal gambling and associated crimes. The
Club has established an extensive range of measures under its Responsible Gambling Policy, which
this year included enhancements to its voluntary account betting self-exclusion service.

In addition, the Club provides support to the Ping Wo Fund, which finances and co-ordinates
preventive and remedial measures to address gambling-related problems, as well as supporting
public education initiatives. The Club also initiates its own responsible gambling programmes in
collaboration with NGO partners. This year a three-year Youth Education Programme was launched
targeting adolescents and at-risk youth. In addition, a new Family Assistance webpage has been
established to provide information and advice to the families of problem gamblers.

The Club’s support for responsible gambling is widely recognised. In 2011, it was granted Level 4
accreditation, the highest possible, under the Responsible Gambling Framework of the World
Lottery Association. In 2018, this was extended for the third consecutive period. The Club is the first
operator in Asia to achieve this accreditation three times in succession.

The Club is committed to preventing its operations from being used for money laundering and has
an Anti-Money Laundering Policy and Framework, which makes reference to the internationally
recognised Financial Action Task Force recommendations and industry best practice.

In the face of COVID-19, employee health and safety was a key priority for the Club this year.
Heightened precautionary measures included temperature screening, regular deep cleaning of
facilities, social distancing, and the provision of face masks. Between February and early May,
flexible practices such as remote work arrangements and split-team operations were also
implemented. For full-time staff working on Club premises, transport costs, including taxi fares,
were reimbursed to provide them with more flexible commuting options while racecourse shuttle
bus services were provided on racedays. Throughout, a close dialogue was maintained with
employees, including via online and mobile channels, with regular updates provided on the support
available.

The Club was equally mindful of the needs of its more than 13,000 part-time employees, many of
whom were impacted by the precautionary closure of Off-Course Betting Branches and most
Telebet and racecourse services. In response, the Club undertook to pay 50% of the average
weekly earnings of eligible part-time staff until the end of the racing season. Such support for part-
time employees is rare, indeed exceptional, in the market.
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To support its development as a sustainable and future-ready organisation, the Club launched a
culture transformation initiative in 2019. A transformation communications team has been
established, divisional workshops conducted and the Club’s human resources strategy updated.
Initiatives have been launched to strengthen recruitment and onboarding, learning and talent
development, as well as communication and engagement.

The Club offers a wide range of development opportunities to employees, including classroom
workshops and an online learning platform. Although the pandemic interrupted training delivery,
employees were still able to benefit from over 180,000 hours of training during the year. Indeed,
thanks to virtual technology it was possible to deliver many classroom courses online during the
pandemic. In June, an online Learning Gateway was launched, bringing together all learning
resources under one roof.

This year also saw the launch of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Hospitality Academy in
support of the professional development of Membership staff. lts programmes are accredited by
The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications, with the Club
being the first non-academic member of the hospitality industry to offer a QF Level 5 programme in
Hong Kong.

The Club believes in two-way communication, with news and information disseminated through the
employee portal MyJC.com, and the staff newsletter, Rapport. With the COVID-19 pandemic
making the need for factual and timely information even more important, the Club advanced the
launch of its mobile app JC Net.

The Club’s Corporate Wellness Programme offers a variety of opportunities for employees to build
wellness and develop healthy lifestyles, including through the use of gyms at Happy Valley and Sha
Tin. The Club’s Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) management system, under the direction of
its Corporate Safety Steering Committee, regularly reviews policies and practices. In addition,
employees receive OSH training as necessary.

The Club actively encourages employees to engage in volunteer work, providing related training as
well as paid volunteering leave. In 2019/20, some 640 current and former employees dedicated over
17,000 hours of service as members of the Club’s CARE@hkjc employee volunteer team.

The Club is strongly committed to providing equal employment opportunities and ensuring that the
workplace is free of discrimination, harassment and victimisation. All employees receive a copy of
the Club’s Code of Conduct, which provides guidance on workplace behaviour and ethics. It also
has an anti-bribery policy aligned with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. As appropriate, staff
receive training in information security, data privacy, anti-corruption and anti-discrimination
measures.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Group’s total revenue decreased from HK$41,129 million in 2018/19 to HK$35,424 million this
financial year, representing a drop of 13.9%. This reflected declines in horse race betting, most
especially during the COVID-19 period, and also decreases in the amounts wagered on football and
the lottery as overseas football fixtures and lottery draws were suspended during the second half of
the financial year due to COVID-19. Football betting only partially recovered following the return of
some overseas leagues in mid-May. Net margin and commission was HK$11,015 million, HK$1,895
million or 14.7% lower than in 2018/19, in line with the revenue decrease.
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Operating costs of HK$11,822 million were HK$68 million or 0.6% higher than last financial year,
primarily driven by higher staff costs, increases in prize money, an escalation in depreciation
following the completion of capital projects during the year, and higher spending on supplies and
on special employee arrangements during the pandemic. This was partly offset by lower expenditure
as a result of the suspension of some product offerings during COVID-19.

Nevertheless, the Group continued to invest substantially in operating assets and new technology
platforms with a view to meeting future customer demand and improving asset health. During the
financial year, the Group’s total capital expenditure was HK$2,830 million.

GROUP REVENUE AND OPERATING COSTS (HK$M)
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The Group’s operating surplus after taxation for the year, before investment returns, gain on sale of
properties and donations to the Trust, was HK$2,654 million, HK$1,868 million or 41.3% lower than
last year, mainly owing to lower revenue.

The Club maintains healthy financial reserves to support its diverse operations and charitable
contributions to the community. These reserves are managed by the Club in an investment portfolio
(“the Fund”) with the overall objective of preserving purchasing power and, to the extent this is
achieved, cause the principal to grow in value over time within reasonable and prudent levels of risk.
The Fund is invested with a long-term investment horizon, diversified across different geographic
regions and asset classes, and managed by external fund managers.

The Fund is managed under a robust governance framework. The Investment Committee, reporting
to the Board of Stewards, has oversight responsibilities for the Fund and approves all policies and
strategies related to it. The Fund is managed by a dedicated Investment Office staffed by
experienced investment professionals. A separate Investment Risk Department serves as a second
line of defence, conducting independent oversight of the Club’s investment activities.

The Club recognises that risks have to be taken in any investment strategy. The Investment
Committee regularly reviews risk-taking with respect to the potential range of outcomes for the
Fund. In recent years, the Club has proactively reduced risks in the Fund in recognition of slowing
economic growth, high valuations and rising geopolitical tensions. Nonetheless, as with all
investment portfolios, the Fund is susceptible to volatility in financial markets, and it would not be
unexpected for the Fund to experience short-term mark-to-market losses in the region of 10%
during economic downturns.



BUSINESS REVIEW
EBRR

FUBEE  ARHFEBRESRIBFFRRSZRER
RmSOHRBRERE ESNPERRAKRE - B4
FHHRBAREF -

REBIRHNEEEBTIRERENRE - UK
REMAEZ UL - AT REFFREBELEESR
ENBRMNZE > MEBBZBORRZHR - IMERR
EARBES - SEHEMRETSHRERS - 515
MEBE  REESRIEBHRINERLKT -

EEREARARDRE HREREFR URFEZR
B LENEBHAE - W RETSETHEFRES
REOH  UEERDES  IBRRTELHFEEH
BERCANEEFER -

2019/20 6 - EEMAREBRKRE —MBIHE
BHREEELH  R5EEBERAEH > 6H109E
5F7EEET HEEFEML  SEAMMAHRKEER
DT 33E8TEER  HiEH145%  E2HAREE
FriSUR AT BRATSL o

EENBRBEEFRHEAE2TE1ITIEESBT  EP T
BEODEITESNBR B -FRFEEMAL T
T36EIOTSEEBRIT  KIEAS7.7% - REZER
BTH TERFARNALERBRTRRERERR
B e

EERABRFEREERBEATERNGEIESEBRY
HEE - 2019/205E » SERETEESNEIERA
25B5TEEL  hEEFRAKRBELERERI6Y ©

10

This financial year, given the severe global economic and market decline resulting from the
COVID-19 outbreak, the Fund’s financial income was volatile but ended the year flat. This resilient
performance was driven by the diversified nature of the portfolio and the Club’s adherence to the
discipline of long-term investing. However, uncertainty over the depth and duration of the economic
impact of COVID-19, together with increasing geopolitical tensions, mean that risks in the external
environment remain high. The Club expects market volatility to remain elevated over the coming
year and intends to maintain a relatively conservative risk position in the Fund while this environment
persists.

The Group maintains sufficient liquid investments, cash and deposits as well as credit facilities for
business needs. The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity and
ensure that all due liabilities and known funding requirements can be met.

The Group continues to be Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer, with total tax payments (comprising
betting duty, lottery duty and profits tax) of HK$19,957 million in 2019/20. Due to lower revenue, the
Group’s total tax contributions during the financial year decreased by HK$3,380 million or 14.5%
from last year.

TAX CONTRIBUTION (HK$M)
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The Group’s net surplus after taxation, excluding donations to the Trust, was HK$2,713 million,
HK$3,698 million or 57.7% lower than last financial year, mainly owing to a lower operating surplus
after tax and a decline in investment return during the year.

The Group has adopted operating surplus after taxation for determining its donations to the Trust.
During 2019/20, the Group approved HK$2.55 billion in donations to the Trust, which represented
96% of the Group’s operating surplus after taxation during the year.
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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 17.
All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements are expressed in
millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group approved donations of HK$2,552 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust (the “Trust”) and HK$53 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS

The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in the “Board
of Stewards” section.

Dr Anthony W K Chow and Mr Lester C H Kwok were elected as the Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the 2019 Annual General Meeting.

Mr Lester C H Kwok retired as a Steward and the Deputy Chairman on 10 April 2020 upon reaching
the age of 70 and Mr Lester G Huang was co-opted as a Steward on 10 April 2020 to fill the vacancy
left by Mr Lester C H Kwok. Mr Philip N L Chen was elected as the Deputy Chairman in place of
Mr Lester C H Kwok on 10 April 2020.

Dr Anthony W K Chow retired as a Steward and the Chairman on 22 June 2020 upon reaching the
age of 70 and his vacancy will be filled by election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
Mr Philip N L Chen and Mr Michael T H Lee were elected as the Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively on 22 June 2020.

The Hon Sir C K Chow will resign as a Steward at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting for the reason that he will reach the age of 70 shortly thereafter and his vacancy will be filled
by election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung, Mrs Margaret Leung
and Dr Rosanna Wong Yick Ming will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
All three Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. Mr Lester
G Huang was co-opted as a Steward to fill the vacancy left by Mr Lester C H Kwok until the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Club’s business
to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is contained on pages 2 to 10, and is part of the Report of the Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES

The principal activities of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on page 70.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the Club’s forthcoming annual general
meeting.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Philip N L Chen
Chairman
24 July 2020
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB

(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 17 to 70, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club, the financial statements of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF STEWARDS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Board of Stewards
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Stewards is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Stewards either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Stewards.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Stewards’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong,
24 July 2020



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEWRER

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff&F Note 2020 2019
EEHEE Number of race meetings 1 87 88
it EEE R AR Amounts wagered by local customers 195,473 228,639
EABE NN IRTRALE Amounts of non-local bets commingled with
the Club’s pools 23,276 18,902
BOF4EEE Total amounts wagered 2.3 218,749 247,541
BERESRA Betting and lottery revenue 2.4 31,511 37,037
EEB R RS EEH Betting and lottery duty (19,634) (22,768)
RIFRT It B S M Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (88) (89)
REHS Lotteries Fund (774) (1,270)
@RREE Net margin and commission 4 11,015 12,910
Hb A Other revenue 5 3,913 4,092
HEMERE Gain on sale of properties 57 -
14,985 17,002
K& Operating costs 6 (11,822) (11,754)
BEFEITESHIERE Present value of donations to the Trust 8 (2,568) (4,333)
MBRBIBEEESTEEANKE R Operating surplus after donations to the Trust 595 915
FERAE RS Interest income from deposits 156 180
RERITEERTIAERE Deficit from investments and derivatives (300) (306)
ERESKREN (F58)/ Bt (Deficit)/surplus from Contingency Fund investments (229) 521
MEEA Finance costs 21 (11) 4
211 1,306
G &% A RD&F Share of profits of joint ventures 14 388 1,514
MBRBIEAT B ER Surplus before taxation 599 2,820
HE Taxation 7 (454) (742)
MREIBIFERRRR Net surplus after taxation 145 2,078
BHEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
HBRBERRNARGREDRRK Operating surplus after taxation and before investment
HEMER RIS B returns and gain on sale of properties 2,654 4,522
BREEITR Investment returns 2 1,889
HEME R R Gain on sale of properties 57 -
HBRFIEE R AT RIBEEESTEANEL Surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust 2,713 6,411
BIEFEAESHRNERE Present value of donations to the Trust (2,568) (4,333)
MBI BERER Net surplus after taxation 145 2,078

HMBRMIEEANRSTREEBR HEWEWHEMNWZLE  Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns and gain on sale of properties is the
Bt REECTEERBTEITESNFUENEE - basis for determining the Group’s donations to the Trust.

REOBEFEERNNEWE - BRERITEESMI AN  Investment returns include interest income from deposits, surplus/deficit from investments and
Ber/EE - BRESKRENRG/EE IBERAT  derivatives, surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments, finance costs excluding interest

BEASEENE - WRATEInvestment Trustfd%  expenses on lease liabilities and share of profits/losses of the Investment Trust.
F/EHE o
FE22BEZ70ENMBAGEHIEHRRN—ZBS - The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SREZERER

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June
BHEET in HK$ million [ft5E Note 2020 2019
MREBIB N FEEERER Net surplus after taxation 145 2,078
Hib2m (FR)/ & Other comprehensive (loss)/income
TEEHIERARRKVIER ltems that will not be reclassified to income statement
BREREANEBNENHE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations 25 (70) 35
HEAREHRIBRARRKNIER Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to income statement
BERHIRERE Currency translation differences 25 (98) 97)
AEERBENEMGEZEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (168) (62)
AEEZM (HE)/ WEH%E Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (23) 2,016
FRERT0ENMEABAGEMERERN—ID - The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR R

A6H30R at 30 June
EF-3: 7 in HK$ million Ff5E Note 2020 2019
IERBEE Non-current assets
W - REREEM Property, plant and equipment 10 14,057 12,351
EERNBE T K 1+ 55 AR Leasehold land and land use rights under
operating leases 11 - 1,068
REYE Investment properties 12 20 21
BILEE Intangible assets 13 2,546 1,983
BENTRE Investments in joint ventures 14 26,181 27,310
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 15 11,365 12,865
RERITESHBT A Investments and derivatives 16 2,817 2,323
REAFEIRIE Long-term prepayments 17 102 345
EEMBHRERE Deferred income tax assets 18 6 7
57,094 58,273
mENERE Current assets
B 5 RHEMEWRIE Trade and other receivables 19 392 503
HinRENEE Other current assets 19 472 485
pSE-IEER Short-term deposits 20 2,372 6,419
ReRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 6,353 2,414
9,589 9,821
REBAE Current liabilities
EHEM Short-term loans 21 (33) (84)
B 5 REMEMIR Trade and other payables 22,30.2 (10,437) (10,936)
TR IE Receipts in advance 23 (378) (434)
TEAREHAE Current income tax liabilities (369) (666)
HEAE Lease liabilities (100) -
TEEMIA Derivatives 16 (3) @®)
(11,320) (12,128)
REEEFE Net current liabilities (1,731) (2,307)
FREEE Non-current liabilities
EEREHREE Deferred income tax liabilities 18 (652) (585)
THESRMIA Derivatives 16 - (77)
HESE Lease liabilities (200) -~
RERFAFTE Defined benefit scheme 24 (372) (436)
HuhFE(FRRRR Other payables 30.2 (1,531) (2,237)
(2,755) (3,335)
52,608 52,631
] Reserves 25 22,161 17,261
ERE® Contingency Fund 26 30,447 35,370
B E Total equity 52,608 52,631
i Philip N L Chen
PR32 Michael T H Lee
FFE Stewards

ER2HETOENMEBARE M BHRERN—

3z
[=]

B o

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HERES BRES
f## Contingency Development R

BHEET in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
2019F 71 B& & Balance at 1 July 2019 17,261 35,370 - 52,631
MBI FERER Net surplus after taxation 145 - - 145
AEERBRENEGZEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year,

net of tax (168) - - (168)
REEEEWEHEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 17,238 35,370 - 52,608
[ Transfers 4,923 (4,923) - -
20206 A30H &8k Balance at 30 June 2020 22,161 30,447 - 52,608
20187 A1 H&EER Balance at 1 July 2018 18,428 31,537 650 50,615
MREBIE I FEERER Net surplus after taxation 2,078 - - 2,078
AEERBRENEMEEESR Other comprehensive loss for

the year, net of tax (62) - - (62)
AFEETHERREEE Total comprehensive income for the year 20,444 31,537 650 52,631
R Transfers (3,183) 3,833 (650) -
201996 A30H &8k Balance at 30 June 2019 17,261 35,370 - 52,631

F2RHEZT0ENMEBRREMBERERN—Io o
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The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERETRER

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff&F Note 2020 2019
BT Operating activities
EETHEENRES Cash generated from operations 27.1 1,282 2,911
[EENIZESE Income tax paid (669) (602)
EETBMEENTRS Net cash generated from operating activities 613 2,309
RETEE Investing activities
ZH A B3E A U EMERERED / (32) Decrease/(increase) in short-term deposits with
maturities more than 3 months 4,047 (3,594)
BEYE REREN Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,928) (2,007)
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets (838) (679)
RERNEE L AR Payment for leasehold land under finance lease - @37)
HEME Sale of properties 57 -
HEWE  REREM Sale of property, plant and equipment - 1
EUWEFR S Interest received 201 214
2 UELRE Dividends received - 8
HEeEARMETE Injection into joint ventures (2,331) (2,315)
E&E A RE Redemption from joint ventures 4,681 4,430
BERATEEEBERSRNIEEE Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (2,033) (3,584)
HERAFEEEBERIIRNMEEE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 2,121 503
HETESRMI AR (1) / WHERIE Net (payment for)/receipt from derivative
financial instruments (3) 5
BEWNER (M) / md (Increase)/decrease in deposits held in investments (246) 871
RETBAEEL/ (FA) WERS Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 3,728 (6,184)
RESEE Financing activities
FlRBHEHE Settlement of interest rate swap (168) -
EXNARE Interest paid (11) )
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (200) (46)
BERERE Proceed from borrowings 150 -
Fizheal: OFiNc A oo Principal element of lease payments (107) -
MAEEHE AW FEMELRE Net interest expenses paid on interest rate swaps (1) ©)
RETDFANFRE Net cash used in financing activities (337) (59)
BeRIBESEE@YFEM/ CED) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,004 (3,934)
FHRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,414 6,351
HEE Exchange losses (65) 3)
FRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,353 2,414
ReRREEBMEETIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
EHRTERR Short-term deposits 20 4,522 1,429
ROTERRES Bank balances and cash 20 1,831 985
6,353 2,414

F2RHET0ENMEFBARGESUIEHRERN—

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on page 70.

The last five race meetings of the 2018/19 racing season were held on 1st, 3rd, 7th, 10th and 14th
July 2019 (“July 2019 race meetings”) and the second Hong Kong International Sale of the 2018/19
racing season was held on 5 July 2019 (“July 2019 HKIS”). The last five race meetings of the
2019/20 racing season were held on 1st, 5th, 8th, 12th and 15th July 2020 (“July 2020 race
meetings”); the second Hong Kong International Sale of the 2019/20 racing season was held on 3rd
July 2020 (“July 2020 HKIS”); a simulcast day was held on 4 July 2020 (“July 2020 simulcast day”);
and two simulcast races were held on 5 July 2020 (“July 2020 simulcast races”). Accordingly, the
financial results of July 2019 race meetings and the July 2019 HKIS have been included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the financial results of July
2020 race meetings, the July 2020 HKIS, the July 2020 simulcast day and the July 2020 simulcast
races will be included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2021.

The proforma consolidated income statements for the 2018/19 and 2019/20 racing seasons are
shown on page 71. The proforma consolidated income statements for the 2019/20 racing season
exclude the results of any simulcast days and simulcast races during the season after the annual
report approval day on 24 July 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million),
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 17 to 70 were approved by the Board of Stewards
on 24 July 2020.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) New standards, amendments to standards and new interpretations that are
relevant to the Group’s operations and are effective for the current
accounting period:

HKFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to HKAS 19

HK (IFRIC) - Int 23

Employee Benefits

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except for HKFRS 16, the adoption of the above new standards, amendments to standards and
new interpretations did not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
and has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

The new HKFRS 16 “Leases” is mandatory for the Group’s financial statements for annual periods
commencing on or after 1 July 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting policies (notes 2.2
and 2.10). HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases”. It sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The new standard introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. In accordance with the
simplified transitional approach, the Group has not restated comparative figures to the consolidated
financial statements. As a result, the comparative information continues to follow the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Amendments to HKAS 19 require a company to use updated assumptions to determine current
service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a change is made to a
plan. Until now, HKAS 19 did not specify how to determine these expenses for period after changes
are made to a plan. By requiring the use of updated assumptions, the amendments are expected to
provide useful information to users of financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 supports the requirements in HKAS12 Income Taxes by specifying how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Annual Improvements include changes from the 2015-2017 cycle of the annual improvements
project. These affect four standards.

(b) Amendments to standards that are relevant to the Group’s operations but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

The following amendments to standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or
Its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

The Group is still assessing what the impact of the amendments to standards will be in the period
of initial application. It is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments to standards will
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.2 Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities and right-of-use assets in relation
to leases (with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value) which
were previously classified as ‘operating lease commitment’ under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases.
Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 July 2019.

The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before the date of initial application.

In applying HKFRS 16, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard: (a) applying a single discount rate to portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (b) accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12
months as at 1 July 2019 as short-term leases; (c) excluding initial direct cost for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and (d) using hindsight in determining the
lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 July 2019 was
1.6%.

The difference between the operating lease commitment as at 30 June 2019 and the lease liabilities
recognised as at 1 July 2019 upon adoption of HKFRS 16 arose mainly from the fact that, upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, (a) the operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 were discounted
using the lessee’s weighted average incremental borrowing rate; and (b) the liabilities corresponding
to the operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 increased as a result of different treatments
of lease contracts in relation to the renewal options.

As a result of adoption, the amount of right-of-use assets recognised on 1 July 2019 was HK$$405
million. Together with the leasehold land under finance leases in Hong Kong of HK$1,258 million
(note 10), the prepaid land use right under operating leases of HK$1,068 million (note 11) and the
prepaid rent of HK$242 million (note 17) reclassified to the right-of-use assets on 1 July 2019, the
total amount of right-of-use assets on 1 July 2019 amounted to HK$2,973 million (note 10). The
lease liabilities and non-current other payables recognised on 1 July 2019 were HK$381 million
(note 27.2) and HK$24 million respectively.



2 ESEEE) 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.3 RIHEH 2.3 Amounts wagered
BARBRIANRIAES BN MEFIREMER  The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered as the amounts wagered by local
EASERMMNIERIREALE - customers and amounts of non-local bets commingled with the Club’s pools.
2020
BEEEE BIREE

BZ6A30HILFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 2% RE
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
RibEEEIRF BEE Amounts wagered by local customers 97,714 92,598 5,161 195,473
EABEXMMNEARIRTRLE Amounts of non-local bets commingled

with the Club’s pools 23,276 - - 23,276

120,990 92,598 5,161 218,749
2019
BEEEY BIREE

BZE6HA30HILFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football #25% R
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
it EEE R AEE Amounts wagered by local customers 106,100 114,074 8,465 228,639
EABEXMMNER IR TR Amounts of non-local bets commingled

with the Club’s pools 18,902 - - 18,902

125,002 114,074 8,465 247,541

24 BERESFVA 2.4 Betting and lottery revenue

EES VBN BEERRSZHEENFRERE  The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities as revenue,
B HIMERA - KESEAERNUABERIRIIATE  which is the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery
HMEREREMMBSREBZFTERMEL - KHEEEE  prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and betting and lottery revenue
ROTHFEREERESWANYEIR  FRME4 is shown in note 4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.5 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2020,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Club on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets.

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures as unanimous consent is required from all parties to the
agreements for relevant activities. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. In the
Club’s statement of financial position, during the year, equity method of accounting is used, which
is consistent with the accounting policy of the Group.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.6 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from
betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club or
for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial
investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed
appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency
Fund investments and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised
surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint venture: HKJC Investment
Trust Fund (“Investment Trust”)) are held for non-trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, except for funds awaiting investment, deposits and investments in
the Investment Trust. The surplus derived from Contingency Fund investments is reinvested and the
deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting policy for the financial assets of
the Contingency Fund investments is stated in note 2.8.

2.7 Investments and derivatives

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the Investment Trust) are held for non-trading
purposes and are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for funds awaiting
investment and deposits in the Investment Trust. The surplus derived from these investments is
reinvested and the deficit absorbed within these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial
assets of the investments and derivatives is stated in note 2.8.

2.8 Financial assets

(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. The financial assets include
Contingency Fund investments and other investments and derivatives.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For the debt instruments, the objective of the Group’s business model is not to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows, and not both hold the financial assets to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets. All
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign
exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the
implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as current as they are
expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Financial assets (cont.)

(a) Classification (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For those financial assets that the Group holds to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates, they are classified
as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled or with maturities within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current assets.

The Group’s assets in this category include trade and other receivables, funds awaiting investment,
deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed at banks for a fixed term of
more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day - the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial assets that
are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including dividend income and
interest income, are recognised in income statement. This information is shown under surplus/
deficit from investments and derivatives or surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments.

For those that do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values will be
determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using valuation
techniques.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For this category, impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS 9
on the reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Group considers that there is no significant financing component.
Impairment is assessed based on the lifetime ECL.

Other financial assets including funds awaiting investment, deposits, short-term deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Group considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash flows, and
are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the 12-month ECL.

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Group considers the credit risk of a
financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any contractual cash flows
from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more. When a financial asset is unlikely
to be recovered, it is considered as credit impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent period,
asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk
since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off. Such
assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the
amount of the expense in the income statement.

The Group measures ECL by using historical loss of the respective financial assets and considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available, including the following
indicators: (a) counterparty’s external credit rating and its expected change; (b) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes
in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment
pattern of debtors.

The Group considers the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and the 12-month ECL for the other
financial assets as minimal.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance leases
are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance lease over the lease term
over the lease term

25 to 40 years

Right-of-use assets
Buildings

Plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in
progress until they are ready for use in the
manner as intended by management. On
completion, the project costs are transferred to

the appropriate property, plant and equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.26).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

The Club clarified the funding model between the entities within the Group, and has restated
property, plant and equipment and amounts due to its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2019 in the Club’s
standalone statement of financial position in note 32.

2.10 Leases

Leases of land and buildings in which Group acts as lessee are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable
and variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

The right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of initial measurement of lease
liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs and restoration costs.

Lease payments are allocated between the principal and interest cost. The interest cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period based on the remaining balance of lease liability for each
period.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.10 Leases (cont.)

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Group. Extension
options or periods after termination options are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended or not terminated.

2.11 Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease

Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Leasehold land and land use rights under
operating lease are amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their lease terms.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.26).

2.12 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment
properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are
depreciated on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives at the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition and development of the item. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of three to ten years. No amortisation is provided on projects in
progress until they are ready for use in the manner as intended by management. On completion, the
project costs are transferred to computer software.

2.14 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation
on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred income taxation.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.17 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period. The differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.18 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

2.19 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.20 Receipts in advance

Receipt in advance represented the contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period. A
contract liability is recognised when the cash that is prepaid by members on membership
subscriptions, entrance and qualification fees, horse imports and pre-sales amount exceeds the
performance obligations fulfilled, including the rendering of the betting or relevant services.

2.21 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net of betting
dividends and rebates and is recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been
rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised at the time when the
relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election of
members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised at the
time when the event is held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services and sale of souvenir items is recognised at the
time when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant goods have been sold.

Revenue from sale of horses is recognised when the title is transferred.

Revenue from stable and livery service charges and risk management service fee is recognised over
the time when the relevant service has been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised at the time when the
relevant service has been rendered.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon retirement
with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of the Scheme
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) is calculated annually by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields of government
securities which have terms to maturity approximating terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs in the
consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.24 Donation

Donation is charged to income statement and recognised as a liability when the donation has been
offered to and accepted by the donee and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the legal and/or constructive obligation established.

Donations that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the present value of expected
future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.25 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.26 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation
and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or
using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation/amortisation of
property, plant and equipment/intangible assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage
experience. Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight-line method at rates
sufficient to write off their cost to the residual value over their estimated useful lives (notes 2.9 and
2.13).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuations of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors including long-term salary
increase rate provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 24(d). In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Group considers the market yields of government securities which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. Changes to the principal
actuarial assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in future
periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the income tax and deferred tax provision. Final tax outcome
may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group recognises liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT.)

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Management judgement is required in the area of impairment of non-financial assets, particularly in
assessing whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using
estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
significantly affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.

4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and football net of
the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the
Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and payment
to the Lotteries Fund.

2020
BEEY BIREE

BZ6A30HILLFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 5 #azs
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
R R R 4K Amounts wagered by local customers 97,714 92,598 5,161 195,473
BEELE  BNMRESRES Betting dividends, rebates and

lottery prizes (81,123) (80,052) (2,787) (163,962)
EEREFBA Betting and lottery revenue 16,591 12,546 2,374 31,511
BERRESEEH Betting and lottery duty (12,071) (6,273) (1,290) (19,634)
FRFIMEEHAE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (88) - - (88)
BEES Lotteries Fund - - (774) (774)
@R A Net margin and commission 4,432 6,273 310 11,015

2019
EEEY BIREE

HZ6H30BLFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football % FEG)
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
iR IRT AR Amounts wagered by local customers 106,100 114,074 8,465 228,639
BEEE  BEMkESRES Betting dividends, rebates and

lottery prizes (88,298) (98,733) 4,571)  (191,602)
BERESRA Betting and lottery revenue 17,802 15,341 3,894 37,037
BEBRESELH Betting and lottery duty (12,981) 7,671) (2,116) (22,768)
{20 Hiith B2 55 ML HE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (89) - - (89)
#EES Lotteries Fund - - (1,270) (1,270)
#HARFES Net margin and commission 4,732 7,670 508 12,910

T BFEER(REEFE) MERBARBERER
5% > 2019/20 FER2018/19FENHEXEEER
BH75% - BREERUERLRANS0%TE M
NEFRSBEREBAIOEIREAN25%TE -

Betting duty on local horse races (on racing season basis) is charged on a progressive sliding scale
on the betting revenue, reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2019/20 and 2018/19. Betting duty
on football betting is charged at the rate of 50% on the betting revenue, while lottery duty on the
Mark Six is charged at 25% on the amount wagered.
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5 HttlA 5 OTHER REVENUE
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
=f= Membership fees 966 912
EEXHhEEEITNBRERTITE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling partners 945 791
EERESREKE Stable and livery service charges 808 706
R E Charges for catering services 608 879
ESERNE Racing related income 155 183
HE BB FIE Sale of horses 82 116
EREE RIS E Risk management service fee 34 88
vl e Royalty income 28 43
HELZRAEBRIE Sale of souvenir items 20 30
Hith Others 267 344
3,913 4,092
6 RERK 6 OPERATING COSTS
BHEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
BIRA (KEE9) Staff costs (note 9) 5,447 5,115
Y - RIERBMITE (FIEE10) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 10) 1,817 1,747
BERS Prize money 1,328 1,253
L/ EY N Supplies and utilities 783 751
HERA Cost of sales 617 689
HEREER Repairs and maintenance 598 582
THREFEERNES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings - 182
mLEEEN (MFE13) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13) 275 140
AERE S UINEF FENIBR R R Donations and contributions to parties other than the Trust 98 137
EHEBNRE T 1 b RS (BIEE11) Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases (note 11) - 28
BEE S Auditor’s remuneration 9 9
REMERE (MiFE12) Depreciation of investment properties (note 12) 1 1
HES Stewards’ remuneration - -
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7 BE 7 TAXATION

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019

NEAFTISHR Current income tax

- 5B - Hong Kong 323 574

- BB - outside Hong Kong 50 40

- BEFERE - adjustments in respect of prior years - (5)

IEIEFTSHL (KiEE18) Deferred income taxation (note 18)

-5 - Hong Kong 78 21

- BB - outside Hong Kong 3 112
454 742

BERNEHIRERNFEMATAERBEFR16.5%
(20194 : 16.5%) BLRETH o BB LUINERBLUER T
EENAEH  CREBLEEANBRELERS -

EEBHABSHFELHERNE  REEBRE
BB EOBEEENT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that would

arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong was as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
HRFIEAI 2R Surplus before taxation 599 2,820
B E16.5% (2019%F : 16.5%) 5T & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) 99 465
HBER T EAEHHENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries 8 5
BERHUR G RS Tax effect of non-taxable income (111) (383)
FAIB R HH RS E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 437 521
BIEFERE Adjustments in respect of prior years - (5)
Hits Others 21 139
HIEXZH Taxation charge 454 742

8 1/
REFERESHRE  REEERERERNE
0 BHERERS -

8 DONATIONS

Donations to the Trust represent donations of the Group to the Trust for charitable purposes.

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
BEFEEESHRERE Present value of donations to the Trust 2,568 4,333
HIRENTE Present value impact (16) (33)
BRTFERESNTE Donations to the Trust 2,552 4,300
9 BIRKAK 9 STAFF COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
e R EARR A Salaries and other costs 5,124 4,798
REMEHE Defined contribution plan
RIRE A Pension costs 92 81
MBS R Contributions to MPF scheme 121 115
RERHGE — BRIKESEAE (HizF24) The Scheme — pension costs (note 24) 110 121
5,447 5,115
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BRI M

10 % - RENRSIM 10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
REERLY
HELH
Leasehold RER EETH
land under B2 IRRER GAEEE
finance gy Plantand  Projectsin Right-of-use #azs
BEET in HK$ million leases Buildings  equipment progress Assets Total
2019 7B1HRAME » Cost at 1 July 2019,
miERHIR as previously stated 2,268 6,265 20,436 2,080 - 31,049

RNE B HRELERIZE165%  Adoption of HKFRS 16 (2,268) - - - 3,983 1,715
KB As restated - 6,265 20,436 2,080 3,983 32,764
7E Additions - 39 434 1,471 48 1,992
i Transfers - 43 267 (310) - -
Bk Adjustment - - 1) 1) - 2
HERH Disposals and write-offs - 1) (209) - - (210)
B HIAERE Currency translation differences - 27) (132 - (50) (209)
20206 A30H A ANME Cost at 30 June 2020 - 6,319 20,795 3,240 3,981 34,335
2019F7RA1ARBINERFME  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 1 July 2019 (1,010) (3,622) (14,065) (1) - (18,698)
RANEBIEHMEERE16%  Adoption of HKFRS 16 1,010 - - - (1,010) -
KE| As restated - (3,622) (14,065) (1) (1,010) (18,698)
REERE Depreciation for the year - (158) (1,453) - (206) (1,817)
REERE Impairment for the year - - () - - o)
FE Adjustment - - - 1 - 1
HERTH Disposals and write-offs - 1 208 - - 209
EMLRELSE Currency translation differences - 1 26 - 1 28
2020F6A30A 2EINERMMEA Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 30 June 2020 - (3,778) (15,285) - (1,215) (20,278)
20206 30 H BREFE Net book value at 30 June 2020 - 2,541 5,510 3,240 2,766 14,057
2018F7H1HEAE Cost at 1 July 2018 2,310 5,529 17,194 4,435 - 29,468
BE Additions 48 58 791 1,297 - 2,194
R Transfers (90) 700 2,891 (3,603) - (102)
HERTH Disposals and write-offs - (1) (341) - - (342)
E¥HBRERS Currency translation differences - 21) (99) (49) - (169)
20196 A30H K ANME Cost at 30 June 2019 2,268 6,265 20,436 2,080 - 31,049
2018F7H1HERBINERREAE  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 1 July 2018 (1,065) (3,466) (12,856) ) - (17,388)
KEERE Depreciation for the year (25) (156) (1,566) - - (1,747)
R Transfers 80 - - - - 80
HERFTH Disposals and write-offs - - 337 - - 337
EMHIRELR Currency translation differences - - 20 - - 20
20196 A30H E2R/INEREE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 30 June 2019 (1,010) (3,622) (14,065) ) - (18,698)
201966 A30H BREFE Net book value at 30 June 2019 1,258 2,643 6,371 2,079 - 12,351
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11 ERMAOEE Tt + b R

11 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

UNDER OPERATING LEASES

BB in HK$ million 2019
7RB1BRAE Cost at 1 July 1,358
EMLRELE Currency translation differences (52)
6H30H RAE Cost at 30 June 1,306
7A18 2&5#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (220)
NEEHEH Amortisation for the year (28)
B HIRER Currency translation differences 10
6300 RTE# N Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (238)
6B 30H IREFE Net book value at 30 June 1,068
2019 7B 1EWERERE  CEFHSEBAFERE  The net book value on 1 July 2019 is reclassified to right-of-use assets (note 2.2).
BE(MF2.2)ET »

12 REWYE 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BHEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7A1ERAE Cost at 1 July 124 22
R Transfers - 102
6H30H BAE Cost at 30 June 124 124
7TR1RAEEITE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (103) (22)
EEETE Depreciation for the year () (1)
R Transfers - (80)
6300 2&EINE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (104) (103)
6 A30A IREFE Net book value at 30 June 20 21

BREYWECDN2020F6 A30H %2019 6 H30H -
HBYNAEREEEEMTERTERATETE
FEE - TEREWEHIUNRES - REHRHK - KB
BEYEN DA FEESSES,700E BT (201945 : 98
2,5008&T) °

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2020 and 2019 by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. The investment properties are located in Hong Kong.
The fair value of the investment properties was HK$837 million (2019: HK$925 million) at the end of

the reporting period.
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BRI M

12 REWE(E)
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT.)

The following table analyses the investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation method.
Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements as at 30 June

2020 2019

BEARARH BEARH

BEmA2Y BEWAZH

Significant Significant

unobservable unobservable

inputs inputs

BEET in HK$ million # 5l Level 3 #% 5l Level 3
ANEEETE Fair value measurements

REYE Investment properties

- x= (&%) - Residential (Hong Kong) - 59

- B (§8) - Commercial (Hong Kong) 837 866

837 925

REMENDFEE  EREUVFELEYEECET
MXBHINEREE  UEBLRLEFLGERE o It
o FEIMEME VEREESHEAENAE
LB NFABSERMENTEEMERRE
femeEEEN A FLLE -

RBBHDEREANTABRAAZE  REFAR
VB HERTARELERZAFENETHEIRTS
EL

SENBRRREHERNBHRBERELELEE
A BRAFEEFERINEARES -

FARANMGERDLEZS -

B Z20205F6 A30H1EK 201956 A 30 B EMAF
B ZELFEESERN 2 ELRREWEEE -
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The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method
whereby comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties have been
made. Comparable properties with similar character, location, size, etc., are analysed and carefully
weighted against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the properties in order to arrive at
the fair comparison of values.

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking account of
location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

There were no transfers of investment properties among the three fair value hierarchy levels for the
years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EETH
BB I#EH
Computer Projects in #zE
BEET in HK$ million software progress Total
2019 7A1HEAE Cost at 1 July 2019 919 1,256 2,175
e Additions 179 659 838
B Transfers 839 (839) -
202056 A30H K AME Cost at 30 June 2020 1,937 1,076 3,013
201947 A1 B Ri&# Y Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2019 (192) - (192)
REE Amortisation for the year (275) - (275)
20206 A30H 2E#isH Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2020 (467) - (467)
202056 B30 BREIFE Net book value at 30 June 2020 1,470 1,076 2,546
2018F7H1HEAE Cost at 1 July 2018 575 921 1,496
e Additions 130 549 679
i Transfers 214 (214) -
201956 A30A A& Cost at 30 June 2019 919 1,256 2,175
20187810 Ri&E#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2018 (52) - (52)
REEHHE Amortisation for the year (140) - (140)
201996 A30H ZE# K Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2019 (192) - (192)
20196 A30H IRENFE Net book value at 30 June 2019 727 1,256 1,983
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14 SERERE 14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
R2020F 6 B30 A EE A AIFBEWNT ¢ Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2020 are as follows:
EEBRAKE #ERA

BREHE BB/ FMRIER FEEK Authorised and SEAR
Name of entity Place of business/country of incorporation  Principal activities paid up capital Measurement
TRPBEREEEREMERAT PEARLNE REEREBH - TS ARHE R
China Sports Lottery HKJC The People’s Republic of China R EMEARE 2fBZ20E T Equity

Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd* Provision of computer technology, Renminbi (‘RMB”)

(“BJ CJV”) technical training and business 200.2 million
information consultancy

HKJC Investment Trust Fund HEHS REREREKES TEA R

(“Investment Trust”) The Cayman Islands Investment in equities and n/a Equity

debt securities

20206 A30HKE2019F6 8308 ' &£@3iEAd  Asat 30 June 2020 and 2019, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was 90%. The Group
RHERYEERNERATNEEEEZRHI0% o« shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2020 and 2019.

R2020F R 2019F » KEMGLERTIERBREEER

MBERDRNEER40% ©

HA6HA30H  £E - EERHEEWEEEE Investment  The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in the

TrustEERFENERBESLLWT ¢ Investment Trust as of 30 June were as follows:
2020 2019
BEESE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 43.7% 45.8%
ERBEEERERETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 54.2% 51.8%
EEESEETRINERNGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 21% 2.4%
100.0% 100.0%
BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
7H1H At 1 July 27,310 28,496
xE Injection 2,331 2,315
e Redemption (4,681) (4,430)
Pt s=F) Share of profits 388 1,514
ERTEBESERESRES Transfer to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust - (573)
EERARE Transfer from investments 118 -
ERRERAESRE Transfer from Contingency Fund investments 726 -
EMHRELSE Currency translation differences (11) (12)
6H30H At 30 June 26,181 27,310
* FEAENA * Unofficial English name



14 SERQARE(E)
SEATR6 A0 ANHBENFENT |

14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures as of 30 June was as follows:

2020
T RPEEEEREMERARA #A%E
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
£BEREN EBEEW £BEFEN
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
BEET in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Iz Income 257 103 1,165 473 1,422 576
S Expenses (229) (92) (212) (94) (441) (186)
e Depreciation 9) 4 - - ) 4
FIE Wz Interest income 9 4 - - 9 4
BEZH Taxation expense (5) @ - - (5) ()]
MR E R Surplus after taxation 23 9 953 379 976 388
2HRRELE Total comprehensive income 23 9 953 379 976 388
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - REREW Property, plant and equipment 28 18 - - 28 18
B ERE Intangible assets 5 3 - - 5 3
ELERIEEE Deferred tax assets 4 2 - - 4 2
RAFEEERE Fair value through profit or loss
@Y RN E E
BE Equities
EEBLET Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,465 605 1,465 605
v =2 k) Listed overseas - - 24,363 10,065 24,363 10,065
BEBES Debt securities
iyl Listed - - 20,078 9,078 20,078 9,078
LM Unlisted - - 16,243 7,481 16,243 7,481
fTHESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 211 97 211 97
RENEE Current assets
B 5 R HMEWRRIE Trade and other receivables 129 82 - - 129 82
HittREEE Other current asset 3 2 - - 3 2
PTHESBMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 87 39 87 39
pSEERER Short-term deposits 45 28 - - 45 28
BeRkBESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 314 200 - - 314 200
RBEERE Total current assets 491 312 87 39 578 351
RBEE Current liabilities
B RHEMER Trade and other payables and
BRI TE WS receipts in advance (63) (40) 2,711) (1,263) (2,774) (1,303)
THEERmIA Derivative financial instruments - - (172) (79) (172 (79)
REEKEEAE Total current financial liabilities
(TBERESREM (excluding trade and other
T ERR AN ZEE) payables and provisions) - - (172) (79) (172) (79)
FREBERE Non-current liabilities
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (295) (137) (295) (137)

Investment Trust KR EE S > B#E190158,2008
HBIT (20194 | 22518500 BB T )NEBERAESRE -

Included in Investment Trust investments, HK$19,082 million (2019: HK$ 22,505 million) represented
Contingency Fund investments.
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BRIk M RE
14 SEQNRREE) 14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)
2019
TEHERE EERMERAT #zE
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
SEEEN SEEEN EEEEN
ERER B tEs B R
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Wi Income 285 114 3,699 1,600 3,984 1,714
H Expenses (236) 94) (224) (102) (460) (196)
e Depreciation (14) ®) - - (14) ®)
B Y Interest income 8 3 - - 8 3
BIRZH Taxation expense @) ™ - - @) )
PRELERER Surplus after taxation 39 16 3,475 1,498 3,514 1,514
2HINRELRE Total comprehensive income 39 16 3,475 1,498 3,514 1,514
FRBEE Non-current assets
W - REREN Property, plant and equipment 32 21 - - 32 21
‘B ERE Intangible assets - -
EEBEEE Deferred tax assets - _
RAVEEZEBRE Fair value through profit or loss
myI RN EE
BRE Equities
EEBLm Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,981 885 1,981 885
Cei=2 i) Listed overseas - - 28,249 12,623 28,249 12,623
BERES Debt securities
EEHNLET Listed overseas - - 18,665 8,729 18,665 8,729
L Unlisted - - 11,894 5,616 11,894 5,616
PTHESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - 71 33 71 33
nEEE Current assets
B REMENFIR Trade and other receivables 161 104 - - 161 104
HittREEE Other current asset 2 1 - - 2 1
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - 126 59 126 59
pSEIEEE Short-term deposits 193 125 - - 193 125
RekRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 123 80 - - 123 80
RBEELE Total current assets 479 310 126 59 605 369
REEE Current liabilities
B REMEN Trade and other payables and
BRRFITE IR receipts in advance (65) (42) (1,578) (757) (1,643) (799)
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (179) (84) (179) (84)
RBUHEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TEREESREM (excluding trade and other
FETERF AN 2EE) payables and provisions) - - (179) (84) (179) (84)
FRBEME Non-current liabilities
PTESmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (197) (92) (197) (92)
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&% DT Investment Trust FFIFERBE S » RAEME
FHEBANE5.89%(20194F 1 5.78%) °
Investment Trust TS ERFEF W INEFL I HRAIA
3E(2019F 1 45) o

14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rates of 5.89% (2019: 5.78%) for the
joint venture under the Investment Trust. Their weighted average maturities were 3 years (2019:

4 years) under the Investment Trust.

2020 2019
BTREUTIHEMEINE ! Underlying investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
E3 United States Dollars(“*USD”) 87% 83%
HEE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 2% 4%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKD”) 3% 3%
(/&3 Euro (“EUR”) 1% 2%
HitE# Other currencies 7% 8%
100% 100%
15 EREERE 15 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
BEEHES Debt securities
1w LE® Listed overseas - 715
SERE Alternative investments
kEm Unlisted 10,245 11,200
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 72 14
FEZ Deposits 1,048 936
11,365 12,865

EEFMEEESSRERNMEEYIERINERE
0.65% (20194 : 2.59%) - KEFEFFEAREFRE
WESNWEEEEREAFEEES  MEEMEE
BHRERERWMEFIHHR A 38 A (20194 © 482
B) e

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 0.65% for the
Group (2019: 2.59%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the debt securities and deposits
were 38 days for the Group (2019: 482 days).

BEET
BRESREUTIIEHITE

in HK$ million 2020 2019

Contingency Fund investments were denominated
in the following currencies:

E usSb 98% 98%
Bz EUR 2% 2%
100% 100%
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BRIk M RE
16 RERITES®MTIA 16 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
FRBEE Non-current assets
EES — LW Debt securities — listed 429 758
SEKRE —FLH Alternative investments — unlisted 2,301 1,554
HEFRENES Funds awaiting investment - 2
EEN Deposits 87 9
2,817 2,323
RBEE Current liabilities
fTEEmI A Derivative financial instruments
- REISNEEY - Foreign exchange forward contracts 3) (1)
- =5 - Swaps - @)
(3) (8)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
fTEemI A Derivative financial instruments
- & - Swaps - (77

EEMEEEESREANMEFEEERFERSE  The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 2.26% for the
2.26% (20194 : 2.50%) « ZHRMEFBEMESH  Group (2019: 2.59%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
FEEEEEENTLEENRSE MEBFMSEKESK  approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the debt securities and deposits

R INFEFI9HIPR 5560 A (20194 1 640H) © were 560 days for the Group (2019: 640 days).
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
RERTESMTAUTIERTE ! Investments and derivatives were denominated
in the following currencies:
EH usD 100% 97%
BT HKD - 3%
100% 100%
17 REIFESRKIE 17 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

RBBENREBZECEFENEBEREMILETERE  Long-term prepayments mainly included input value added tax to be deducted and prepayments of
SEHMAERATAMN LR YWEBANES » LEFKIE  rental for the land and property of Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are
REBLHRYENGEH UEAEHUESEEE - amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. On 1 July 2019, the prepaid rent
R2019F7A18  BHESCEHIERALAE  was reclassified to right-of-use assets (note 2.2).

BiE(MisE2.2)ET
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18 ELFEHEE/(AE)

FRYEFHEER —BHIBENIKHEERONELRS

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year without taking into

MEE/(BE)EBWT ! consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:
EERK IERITE
BRI A HIHE K%
Employee Pre- Accelerated
retirement  operating depreciation Hith R
BEBT In HK$ million benefit cost expenses allowances Others Total
201957818 At 1 July 2019 94 - (667) 5) (578)
k=R Charged to income
statement (25) - (54) (2 (81)
TAHMmEERE Credited to other
comprehensive income 13 - - - 13
20206 H30H At 30 June 2020 82 - (721) (7) (646)
20187 A1H At 1 July 2018 93 124 637) ©24) (444)
A/ (8) kEk Credited/(charged) to
income statement 8 (124) (80) 13 (133)
A/ (8) Ett2mikaE Credited/(charged) to other
comprehensive income 7) - - 6 1)
2019568300 At 30 June 2019 94 - (667) ®) (578)

19 ESREMEBWFIEEHE {1
REEE
19.1 ESREMEWFIE

EEREMEWRIEFEG1% (20195 : 88%) L8
T E  HBUHEMEBTE - B REMERTE

MEREEEEAAFEEMES -

19.2 HttRBEE

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER

CURRENT ASSETS

19.1 Trade and other receivables

61% of the trade and other receivables were denominated in HKD (2019: 88%), the rest of the
balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables

approximated their fair values.

19.2 Other current assets

BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
A Inventories 313 295
AR Prepayments 159 190

472 485
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20 EHIERERERAEEEY

20.1 BHIER
EEFBEHERNMNELEHERENEZE1.73%
(20194 : 2.37%) - SEFMBEHERNIRAEER
HATEERSE  mEMNEFHHRA200AH (2019
£ :122R0) °

20 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

20.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 1.73% for the Group
(2019: 2.37%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their
weighted average maturities were 200 days for the Group (2019: 122 days).

2020 2019
EHERUTIEEINE Short-term deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:

ES7 usD 54% 4%
BT HKD 36% 90%
AR RMB 10% 5%
Hih g Other currencies - 1%

100% 100%

202 HERBEESEEY
EEFMEAHEA=ZEAUNTNERNMELYER
FEEH1.16% (20194 : 2.67%) - EEEFHRHERE
BEEEANFEERESE  MEMEFHHREES51H
(20194 : 73H) °

20.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than three months
were 1.16% for the Group (2019: 2.67%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their fair
values and their weighted average maturities were 51 days for the Group (2019: 73 days).

2020 2019
ZEABIEAUTHERUTIEEITE Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
BT HKD 75% 30%
ESH usb 21% 48%
AR RMB 4% 22%
100% 100%

BZE20206A30RL  KENETHEARERN
WARNRITFOBARERBRESEYREIR
2,60088T (2019 : 381,700 ) * LAR
BITE  WXPEIEEHRE
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$426 million (2019:
HK$317 million) denominated in RMB which were held by certain subsidiaries with bank accounts
operating in the Mainland where exchange controls apply.



21 WHAEM
BEFAEREINZHFNNENF417% EH4.22%
(20194 : N F1.45% E24.26% ) 2 ERIFI & -

21 SHORT-TERM LOANS

Unsecured loans were subject to floating interest rate between 4.17% and 4.22% per annum (2019:
between 1.45% and 4.26% per annum).

2020 2019
EHERUTIIESTE : Short-term loans were denominated
in the following currencies:
AR RMB 100% 40%
T HKD - 60%
100% 100%

FANERANELZHAE100EBT(20195F : 2008
BT ©

22 EZRHEMEMRK

EoREMENERREE  @RETESEEEER
HHERFR171E5,0008 %8 T (2019 F : 30/E8 ) -
EERBBRERHARENEAR  LBELSBES I
(MiEE30.2) ; R (b)EE 2418 2,500 88 THRER R
F1E# (20195 : 23185,70088T) - BERFEXR
HEEERERREEEYRENERANERREN
FriEEEESYE B3 REMENSRRMESTRE
HEREEERAQAFEERES -SENES REME
FTERFRFFESTFIE S - H88% (20194 : 96% ) LB
TIE  HepUHMEEITE -

23 FEWRIE

HZE2019F6 A30H 1R 201856 430 B ILHIFELR
RE - 2BIBE4E3,20088 TR 415520088 T
BBRFEC S ANEBE2020F6 A30 B LK% 20195
6HA30RLEFENEBRA -

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$1 million (2019: HK$2 million).

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables included: (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust
amounting to HK$1,750 million (2019: HK$3,000 million), which will gradually be settled within six
months after the end of reporting period (note 30.2); and (b) customer account deposits for the
Group of HK$2,425 million (2019: HK$2,357 million). The customer account deposits were offset by
an equivalent amount of customer funds held which were included in cash and cash equivalents
and short-term deposits. The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables and accruals
approximated their fair value. 88% of the trade and other payables and accruals were denominated
in HKD for the Group (2019: 96%), the rest of the balances were denominated in other currencies.

23 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

HK$432 million and HK$452 million recorded in the receipts in advance as at 30 June 2019 and 30
June 2018 were recognised as revenue during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019
respectively.
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24 REFNEE

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BHEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
HihBEREEREMERIRRCERNESR Other liabilities represented pension liabilities of the Group’s
RERAGEERAKRESEENT : Scheme recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position which were determined as follows:
STEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,367) (2,398)
BIWERRSEE Present value of obligation 2,739 2,834
FEMBRRERAVIERSEETFE Net pension liabilities in the consolidated statement of

financial position 372 436
RERAGHEFABREENREHEROT : Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit

obligation was as follows:
7B1H At 1 July 2,834 2,959
HIBR{E S HFRE R IR BE AR AR AN Current service cost net of employee contributions 104 112
B R A Interest cost 37 59
BEHEE: Remeasurement:
- REECRESHIIBNEE (KE)/ BiE - Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience 9 20
- DB BREScIHRNEE (k) / BE — Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions 94 30
BREZFHNER Actual benefits paid (339) (346)
6A30RAWENRESRE Present value of obligation at 30 June 2,739 2,834
FREEEATFEEEBHWOT ¢ The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of

the year was as follows:
7HA1H At 1 July 2,398 2,530
FE W = Interest income 31 50
BHEE Remeasurement:
- FFEIEENERSNITRE — Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate 20 92
ERESN Employer contributions 257 72
2 HEF) Benefits paid (339) (346)
BRI EERGNTHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - -
6H30EMETEIEELATER Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,367 2,398
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
EWRBERFEEIORELT ¢ The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:
AR LA Current service cost 104 112
RERMNEEFENFREAR Net interest cost on net defined benefit liabilities 6 9
BIfBIEERGNTHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - -

110 121

52




24 RERAETE(E)

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
EEEWRERBERANEFESENT Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income were as follows:
HEECREBIBNEE (KF)/ BE Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience 9 20
HSELEB I BNEE (kE)/ BB Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions 94 30
HAEENEERE (&) /B8 Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities arising during period 103 50
STEIEENERSAITRE Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate (20) (92)
E2HWRREANETTTELE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income 83 (42)
BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
TERBEREZNREBFIEA (FE9) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 9) 110 121
E2HEWRREANENTTEZE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income 83 42)
RERAE Defined benefit income 193 79

(a) SREEF=HEIAYFE R R A58/ e i

REBANFIURENERFE - RUHERK - 5
W BRABBENREFHAERSE  AHEMR
—EBWENE - RERAETERRNTABNE
B - RERAFERE-—BEILTZHRY - AR
(B SR BIRAD) WREEM - TCRFMLES
FE(HR) BRI NRETRRAEABHREAE - T
SRZEAERAEMNE—fEE -

RERAETEANFEGETRONERER  EETHA
REGBANFTENEE(NE) » URIEREEF B
BEWEE  BERZREINER Bt FBai
ZERIZE195%(2011) EABRFEMNEE LREEE (B
BEKHRERBZES)REBEE4EFENREES
ER YL BEARREENE - REEANEH
VELEBEIRE(EMERQATIEE  Z2TE
BEARAEEFNTEMNETA -

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum benefits based on a multiple of a
member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or leaving
service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees. The Scheme was established under a
trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQO”),
and is an exempted scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption) Regulation.
The Club is the sole employer participating in the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the surplus of
the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by the Scheme’s
actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum
funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme. The Scheme is
administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited which acts as the trustee to the
Scheme.
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24 RERAETE(E)
(a) REFFIH B B RATBRBAIL ()
SERRERANABMAAZINEIERBRNOT :

i)y RERK

EREMBEY  AEBAFAHVEENQTTEEKS
2 M UREBNEEFHE/EEFETENR
ERANFABMBURREANE - ERECB|REZH
RERR  ASSUBRRES -

RERANFIEERENBEFEZHRR I ENE
METREAS  BERE ELESRRE ¥
HEE URZREE  c ZRENEERFIREESD
i BHD MR ERBFGFERENHBRE

(i) F=m= B

REBANFERMALEEEIRBERAESTSEHE
REH  UFREHE  BAEFEHEXRTE  RATE
Rt BRI EAESAEEM -

(i) Fr&mE

HRAEEMNTEANENEF BN - FAURERF
SRPREEENSRREBRNFEHE - BFHFEM
BRENAS  REBFFEIMAESESAEEM -

(b) FIEE RSB F 22 9B E

WKL 24(a) Fril - HREBEFERE1955(2011)
FOARFENEELREE S (AR EREREE
EE)RBFUSRFANKEESER  9ITEAR
REBATE > FrUBEEEHREANEERNZ -

(c) REFEFEEENER

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

The Scheme typically exposes the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of the Scheme’s assets and therefore
improve the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit liability/asset,
whilst poor or negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme’s assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income securities and
cash, hedge funds, and multi-assets covering major geographical locations around the world. The
diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce the concentration
of risk associated with the Scheme’s investments.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market yields of government securities.
A decrease in the bond yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk

The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the Scheme’s
benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 24(a), determination of economic benefit available is not required because the
asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements of HK
(IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) Scheme asset information

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
STEEEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows:
BE Equities 769 32% 877 36%
ERESRRE Fixed income securities and cash 757 31% 697 29%
HHhEE Hedge funds 587 25% 473 20%
ZREE Multi-assets 276 12% 371 15%
2,389 100% 2,418 100%

RERAFEREXRKMUEEIR  SEHHTFTEE

ERARE ©
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The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club on a
regular basis.



24 RERAETE(E)
(0) EXBEBRRUBED I

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

BEABERBRROT @ The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2020 2019
i ES Discount rate 0.3% 1.4%
REPFHEEBREE Long-term salary increase rate 3.5% 4.0%

MR2020%F6 300 » BENBEELH/TH0.25% * 1
HihfiE T2 REHWESTENERT  REBAN
B ARIESENAFEE  B$20RREL/EMN1.5%
}%1.6% (20195 : 5 BIE1.5% K 1.6%) °

M2020%F6 4308 ERHFS EH/TH0.25% -
EHMFETEREYUESTENERT AEEA
HEFAESENATEE eI B EMN/ B>
1.6% 5% 1.6% (20194 : D BIE1.6% K% 1.6%) °

() BEZHRBRATHML

BANABRSERME (RRMITHASRKERGE
THERBITHRAS)ABRM - REFIHRE - MEH
HERDBREERFSUEENBTAOLFTE - BEHMH
RASRR (BRI B BRE - WS RAFT
LBEMFLESMEMERE -

() FTHEH

EEFE 2021 FHHZRANB2,5008 7T (2020 F
6,800 ET) ©

(9) REBEF BT ABEEREIER

REBANBRAREEEE202056 A30 BN
REFIGHRBEF(2019F : 65F) - TRIIFIRKE
RANBERRAERNE AAFIBINETE
MRBE(EREGEH A EHEERBRHFSELNR
) E-PRRRAERATEAERESENIRE
e

At 30 June 2020, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.5% and 1.6% respectively
(2019: 1.5% and 1.6% respectively).

At 30 June 2020, if long-term salary had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.6% and 1.6% respectively
(2019: 1.6% and 1.6% respectively).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of the
Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage of basic
salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are determined with
reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the
ORSO requirements.

(f) Expected contributions

The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$25 million for the year 2021 (2020: HK$68
million).

(9) Maturity profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2020 was 6 years (2019: 6 years). To
further illustrate the maturity profile of the DBO, the following table sets out the expected benefit
payments (including benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary) from the
Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions.
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25 f##E

25 RESERVES

RiERH%E [E S
Accumulated Exchange R
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
2019%7A1H At 1 July 2019 17,362 (101) 17,261
BB B BERER Net surplus after taxation 145 - 145
ERaERES Transfer from Contingency Fund 4,923 - 4,923
E¥EBRERS Currency translation differences - (98) (98)
BB ENERAEANEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits
obligations, net of tax (70) - (70)
20206 H30R At 30 June 2020 22,360 (199) 22,161
201857410 At 1 July 2018 18,432 ) 18,428
MRBLE I FEERER Net surplus after taxation 2,078 - 2,078
ERTERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (3,833) - (3,833)
ERRRREES Transfer from Development Fund 650 - 650
EMEBRERS Currency translation differences - 97) 97)
MR ZNERAEAEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits
obligations, net of tax 35 - 35
20196 H30H At 30 June 2019 17,362 (101) 17,261

BEABADNET R FEASEEABELEE
BREFAENSD10% BAEERKRLAES  BE
ZABMENEREINEMEARNL0% B - EERER
AESKEHERMER  TRAUEBRAEE - 1B
MEARIERER -

RN2020F 68300 - AEBBLEER6,8008E T
(20194 : 6,500 8 T) °

26 HRES

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from Mainland entities as reported in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the Mainland to the statutory reserve
fund until the balance of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated losses, to
increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 2020, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$68 million (2019: HK$65 million).

26 CONTINGENCY FUND

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7HA1H At 1 July 35,370 31,537
EiE (F)/ 8RB Transfer (to)/from Reserve (4,923) 3,833
6H30H At 30 June 30,447 35,370

56




27 FmERETREBRMETE

27.1 HIGBAR N BSREEEFRIE
EWFEREHER

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

27.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash

generated from operations

BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
MBRBIE AT B R Surplus before taxation 599 2,820
it & & A AER Share of profits of joint ventures (388) (1,514)
RATEEZBERVIRNTEEEFRE / (HR) Net gains/(losses) on financial assets at FVTPL 529 (215)
2 Yz Interest income (156) (180)
FEXH Interest expense 11 4
HEREYHENRE Gain on disposal of investment properties (57) -
HEME - RIBRE|MNEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 4
Y% - RIERBMINE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,817 1,747
REMETE Depreciation of investment properties 1 1
m &R Amortisation of intangible assets 275 140
W - RIERBMRE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1 -
EEENAE it 1 it 55 FAREH 8 Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases - 28

EEESEE Movement in working capital

FE (Em / md (Increase)/decrease in inventories (18) 14

BHREMBERRERL / (5m) Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 103 (1)

FENFRIERD / (38h0) Decrease/(increase) in prepayments 3 (5)

B 5 REMENIRIURND Decrease in trade and other payables (488) (8)

TR IR R Decrease in receipts in advance (56) 1)
REBBARERD Decrease in long-term prepayments 30 48
REBHFERD Decrease in defined benefit scheme (147) -
HhEERR CRlZ) / 30 (Decrease)/increase in other payables (778) 49
EETBMEENRS Cash generated from operations 1,282 2,911
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27 ZRBRERERME(E)

27.2 MEEHELENEEYHR

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

27.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

fTESmIA
FHIE K Derivative HEEE
Short-term financial Lease R
BEET in HK$ million loans instruments liabilities Total
M2019%781H As of 1 July 2019 84 85 - 169
BB B EREERE165E Adoption of HKFRS 16 - - 381 381
gE:5 As restated 84 85 381 550
REeRE Cash flows
BERETERA Inflow from financing activities 150 - - 150
BREEERE Outflow from financing activities (200) (169) (114) (483)
FREEEH Non-cash changes
FRFT ALY New leases entered during
the year - - 27 27
HESEBEMNE Interest on lease liabilities - - 7 7
IME R IR E Foreign exchange movement () - (1) 2
AFEEED Fair value changes - 87 - 87
720206 830H As of 30 June 2020 33 3 300 336
M2018%F7H1H As of 1 July 2018 133 (111) - 22
ReERE Cash flows
BEREEER Y Outflow from financing activities (46) ) - (55)
FELEH Non-cash changes
NS iR B Foreign exchange movement 3) - - ®3)
NEEEED Fair value changes - 205 - 205
7201956 830H As of 30 June 2019 84 85 - 169

28 EBAREYE

REBHR CATLENERFHEBRNELAIES
167,700 88T (2019 : 16183,900 8 T) -

RAEBMEREEQE 16328 - BEFTTEUEHN
EEBNRE  M2019F6 A30BMARAXTN
BIEHESHEFES3ES5,400B8T -

29 BTRHKERGE
EEABESRYT —HATRAFEAR-HEAE
HRE B o MIEF B RE (BER AT BMRG) =
i YHBIEEIASTE ) EEFELE—1F
SERETEGMAERITE - LWIETIRE CGasit
NEEFERDD) EM > YEMRBUMNREHER
S
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28 COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period amounted
to HK$1,677 million (2019: HK$1,639 million).

Before adoption of HKFRS 16, as at 30 June 2019, the total future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$354 million.

29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members of both
schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The Group also
participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.



30 HEBEEALTZRS
HRESEERRETRARBETIEIEESETA U
FEESZEMMNARSERIEERAT(EA@M])
MEESYYRBEERATN(ESXYRENDESR
RE - FIULESHEETES  ZE@M - ESXYRE
LEZEHEWBEATDRECEMERATIER
H HNESEREEAEESEEAMEESERL
TR FTUEEEZARtERE -

RTEEGEUBRRAMBIBREEN  EEES
EARIREBAEATCETHRZNT :

30.1 EEEH

Fr EERBRHTERXERY  AEXKESRER
EEEM1/89,5008ET(2019F 1 1/87,5008
BIT) e

30.2 EFFEAEESHWIRR

AZIBR > B FEITESHNFRIER45189,8008
BT (20194 : 62126,60088 ) » BEEAREBEE T
ERUEEKE BRETBERE  (aBAETESELS
ERARMETK17/E5,00088 T (20195F : 3058
T BEREERERPRENMEARNURESES X
F(MzE22) s R(O)HEETESEBIBTAANLEE
ERH—%291E5,90088 T (20194 : 32/%6,100
BRETNGE FAEEZEBNE U LEBYEZH -
RBHETESNESNE  FRARESRETES
INHFAAXCEEERNNRBER  RYHEEE
Xt EEAFEREESHERZS HP13E
8,900 E B 7T (20194 : 21158,000E B T)HNBE
RAFI2EARER  REFNERRBERE  mMEE
REAIBEREERS - 2019FF 758,500 88 TH
FERACEBEBREANI -

30.3 TEEEEFHMH
ERBESEHEZREE YHEEZESHYE
E-EBREEREEENERBRIRFHRETHES
WER  YEEETEESHER -EEZES8E
EEEENEF UREZRET A THBBHM
AEBHRREENEE  FENIEEEENEES
BREBZES EEZESNREEFETHRASR
NUBITREE(2019F : fy) - FBRAFRIERE
ZEg WD -

EEZYRBKER  EFALEENME - MMARNE

NHFASYETHEEEEEFENENEERS -
ZHRENFEEERERE -

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) and its wholly owned subsidiary Tai Kwun
Culture and Arts Company Limited, as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust and
the Directors of KSCGC and CPS. The Club is also related to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine
Welfare Research Foundation Limited as the Club is the sole member of this company.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the joint ventures and related parties,
except for those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements:

30.1 Management expenses

During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$195 million (2019: HK$175
million) to the Trust for the provision of administrative and support services.

30.2 Payable to the Trust

At the end of the reporting period, the amount payable to the Trust was HK$4,598 million (2019:
HK$6,266 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly included (a) the
remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust amounting to HK$1,750 million (2019:
HK$3,000 million), which will gradually be settled within six months after the end of the reporting
period (note 22); and (b) HK$2,959 million (2019: HK$3,261 million) for the donation from the Trust
to West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA?”) for the construction of the Hong Kong
Palace Museum, which will be settled based on payment by the Trust to WKCDA on a back-to-back
basis according to the mutual agreement with the Trust. Out of the payable to the Trust, HK$1,389
million (2019: HK$2,180 million) was classified as a non-current liability as such amount was not
repayable within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was classified as a current
liability. In 2019, HK$785 million of annual donation was settled by means of transfer of investments.

30.3 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and its
funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The Board
of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen by the
Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong, key
management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, and nine Executive Directors (2019: nine), are detailed on “Board of
Management” section of the report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.
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30 HABEALTZRS (&

30.3 FEEEEEM(E)
EEEEEERETANEMS B=EBS :

(a) EXE%
BEAMSEERERGS ERREMZHNEMRZE o

(b) BRI IR E
EEMERBEARRNEBRENBERR -

(c) B1E1EF

BABANEEENRAES HAFRBRMKETEHK
MRS - BT HELRERBE BETHEY
BERNARAH  EXARERBRAHEHRND
NS BRI R IR o

ERZEEEREFANFHOT

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)

30.3 Key management compensation (cont.)

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation

Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation

This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BHEEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
e Basic compensation 68 68
HERIBA BB Performance-related compensation 44 40
BRINTER Retirement benefits 18 14
130 122
HENAR BT - The remuneration fell in the following bands:
A Number of individuals 2020 2019
S Bl Remuneration bands

2,000,001 % 7T 3,000,000 % 7T
4,000,001 % 7L 25,000,000 % T
7,000,001 /&7t £8,000,000 7 T
8,000,001 % 7T 29,000,000 % 7T
9,000,001 7T £10,000,000 % 7T
10,000,001 % 7T & 11,000,000& 7T
11,000,001 7 Tt 12,000,000 /& 7T
12,000,001 7% 7T 213,000,000 & 5T
13,000,001 7% 7T 14,000,000 & 7T
14,000,001 /# t £15,000,000 /& 7T
27,000,001 & £28,000,000 7 7T
30,000,001 7 7T £31,000,000 % 7T

KRILETFEEESEAY
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HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000

-
|

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 3
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 2
HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 - 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 2 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 1 1
HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 3 2
HK$12,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 1 -
HK$13,000,001 to HK$14,000,000 - 1
HK$14,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 1 -
HK$27,000,001 to HK$28,000,000 - 1
HK$30,000,001 to HK$31,000,000 1 -

11 12
Individuals who ceased to be members

of the Board of Management 1
10 10
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

31.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and
credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk
exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Investment Office of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Investment Office of the Club under investment policies and
risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment constraints
and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions and guidelines are set
according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD is
pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The majority of
RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operational requirements
in the Mainland. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in
equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major currencies
had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2020 2019

FRRHE FRRHE

BEARER BEAR &R

21 / CRi) 21/ CAd)

EEBIERT Increase/  EE¥IRT Increase/

BOLLWIIEE  (decrease)on  EDLLMIIEE  (decrease) on

s /@55 post-tax g / 1855 post-tax

If currency surplus and If currency surplus and

strengthened/ equity for  strengthened/ equity for

BEBT in HK$ million weakened by the year  weakened by the year
E# EUR 5% 20/(20) 5% 10/(10)
R GBP 5% 8/(8) 5% 4/(4)
AR RMB 5% 7/(7) 5% 17/(17)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(@) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to market
price risk as the value of its equity investments and alternative investments will decline if market
prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective financial instruments had been 5%
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$1,161 million (2019: HK$1,313 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of
its financial instruments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can be
further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial asset will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax surplus and equity for the year would have been HK$215 million lower (2019:
HK$179 million).

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s Mainland operations is
managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Price risk is
mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities.
Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a
spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to fair
value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.



31 BEREEGE) 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.1 BB EREE(E) 31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) REVE &R (E) (b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

SER6AI0AMFEFTEMBEBRIRFHEAELE  The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group as at
WITE B EE  WIRBAVIHEE2MAERBERE 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The
BRITMEEDH - TRAFBENTESANARITERIER  amounts disclosed in the table below were the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

b=

2020 2019
318A 318A 3fEA 38 A
RUT HUEE1F HUT HUEE1F
Upto >3 month 1 E 1z Upto >3 months 10 E “zE
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total
FITEEEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
FEHAER Short-term loans 33 - - 33 84 - - 84
Z 5 Rk HEMEMSIRK Trade and other payables 10,030 262 1,508 11,800 8,888 1,935 2,237 13,060
HEaE Lease liabilities 26 79 209 314 - - - -
RFHEEELEN Net-settled derivative
TEKEE financial liabilities 12 - 137 149 24 6 169 199
10,101 341 1,854 12,296 8,996 1,941 2,406 13,343

A2020E6 B30 EEMISENREREIIE  As at 30 June 2020, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
AHNEESEEEHELEATIES0008H T (2019  contracts held by the Group was HK$7,760 million (2019: HK$6,428 million). The table below
F:64182,8008BT) c TREEEMN20205F 67  analyses the Group’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2020 and 2019
30HKR2019F6 A30BMATFARMMESHNELR  that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining
DA EESNBIRBELZE  WIRESTSHNZEIE  contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table were contractual undiscounted cash
BESEBERAR - TRAABEMNFEASSLYARIT  flows, which were different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated
BR&RE  HEGUBMRRERMINIKRAEE (BT  statements of financial position.

B)RE
2020 2019
3M@A 3MEA 3fEA 3fEA
HUT  HUEE1F HUT  HUEE1F
Upto >3 month 1M E HEE Upto >3 months 16 HEE
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to 1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total
RENEEH Foreign exchange
forward contracts
T Outflows (7,442) (237) (81) (7,760) (5,993) (422) (13) (6,428)
A Inflows 7,396 239 81 7,716 5,961 419 13 6,393
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing to
perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets measured at amortised costs (such
as trade and other receivables, deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment)
fall due, or when alternative investments and contractual cash flows of debt securities carried at
FVTPL fall due.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment are only placed
with financial institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to the credit risk represents the carrying
amounts of such financial assets recognised in the consolidated statements of financial position
less the amount of cash on hand as defined in note 2.8.

Management considered the lifetime expected loss amount with respect to these receivables as
minimal as at 30 June 2020 and 2019. The Group made no write-offs or provision for these
receivables during the year.

31.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to

- provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and

- support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its consolidated statement
of financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of
donations through the Trust.

31.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by utilising the
following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most significant
input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following table present the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that
were measured at fair value as at 30 June. See note 12 for disclosures of
fair value measurement of the investment properties.

2020 2019
AN A2 513 Bz BN & A2 H A3 #HEm
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE /(88 Assets/(liabilities)
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments
BEES Debt securities - - - - 715 - - 715
SERE Alternative investments - - 10,245 10,245 - - 11,200 11,200
RERTEERTA Investments and derivatives
BEES Debt securities 429 - - 429 758 - - 758
SERE Alternative investments - - 2,301 2,301 - - 1,554 1,554
PTHEERMTA Derivative financial instruments - ) - (&) - (85) - (85)
429 (3) 12,546 12,972 1,473 (85) 12,754 14,142

EENBRERERERNEARBEREBLLEEE
B BRAFEEFERANEARES -
HZE2020F6 A30 R 1% 2019%6 B30 B LLMEF
B SEE=ELAFEEFERR 2B |mEE -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among the three fair value hierarchy levels classifications for the Group for
the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Group’s balance of the assets and liabilities

measured at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7B1H At 1 July 12,754 10,884
EWERERN (B58) / WA Total (losses)/gains recognised in income statement (329) 500
BA Purchases 2,575 2,834
HE Sales (2,454) (1,464)
6H30H At 30 June 12,546 12,754
FERFFARSERIFIERER Total (losses)/gains for the year included in income statement
PTESMIARBN (BB)/ WEE%E and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives (329) 500
FAREBRPARFENEEREETAREE Total (losses)/gains for the year included in income statement
WHERERSTESMT ARRHN (Bi8)/ WHHB%E for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives (496) 393

(c) B2020F6 H30H KR 20196 H30H » it &
AR B 2 B9 - TEE FFE A 1 BB TG R A
ST :

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements

within Level 2 as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

kil fH{ERIT EXBAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BREE /88
Financial assets/liabilities
BHIESH FRBEERE ARRER
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
=5 FRBESRE ABRER - RERiEHE
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates, interest rates and
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as

ABEHWERBEEIERMT follows:
Epid) fH{ERTS BREZEBERGASHY T (nfEF)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs ~ Range (weighted average)
BEERE/ Af
Financial assets/liabilities
BiERERE EEFE" TEA TE M
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
REREEERE EEFE" i F EA
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HHESRE EEFEE" TEMA TE A
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE EEFE" TEA TEA
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
MEEERE EEFE" TEMA TE A
Private credit investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

CEERPIAERSNRELFEERHBETE
B UERENEENRESESKEMREINE
HNESHERCERRENEARATERZTEH
WEBEREMEE  SERXBFEREEFERZ
ERENDTEE-

(e) R2020%6 530 K 201946 530 At FEFE
BIBEEREERNFEBIIK -

*

The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Group has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair
value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2020 and 2019, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried
at fair value.

67



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI M

32 FEUBRARRREBED

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB

BFEMBMRRE Statement of financial position of the Club
BEBET in HK$ million Fi=E Note 2020 2019
(E31)
(restated)
FRBEE Non-current assets
W - REREEM Property, plant and equipment 8,764 8,252
REYHE Investment properties 20 21
‘| EE Intangible assets 2,303 1,780
HEBARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,011 1,011
BERNTRE Investments in a joint venture 25,885 27,012
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments 11,365 12,865
BRERITESRTIEA Investments and derivatives 2,814 2,319
REIFERTIE Long-term prepayment 7 7
52,169 53,267
RENVEE Current assets
m B A B FERE R Loans to subsidiaries 1,675 1,681
B 5 R HMERFRIE Trade and other receivables 254 387
HitREEE Other current assets 352 350
BB AR RIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,421 4,311
EHITERR Short-term deposits 1,196 6,090
HERBESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,461 1,736
13,359 14,555
REBE Current liabilities
B 5 R HMEMIR Trade and other payables (7,569) (8,322)
FEUFRIE Receipts in advance (144) (140)
B FHEARNRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (7,621) (8,386)
HEas Lease liabilities (83) -
THREHAE Current income tax liabilities (2) (823)
PTEEmIA Derivatives 3) (1)
(15,422) (17,172)
REBEFE Net current liabilities (2,063) (2,617)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities (152) -
EIEFRERIAE Deferred income tax liabilities (585) (527)
RERFEE Defined benefit scheme (372) (436)
FEURFRIR Receipts in advance (744) (759)
HAb IR Other payables (1,518) (2,234)
(3,371) (3,956)
46,735 46,694
1] Reserves 32 (a) 16,288 11,324
ERES Contingency Fund 32 (b) 30,447 35,370
EEBE Total equity 46,735 46,694
= Philip N L Chen
PR E 4% Michael T H Lee
FFE Stewards
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(a) BFERERE

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB (CONT.)

(a) Reserve movement of the Club

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7R1H At 1 July 11,324 13,129
MRBLE I FEERER Net surplus after taxation 111 1,993
BRa/ (F)ERES Transfer from/(to) Contingency Fund 4,923 (3,833)
R RNBRBREFEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation,

net of tax (70) 35
6H30H At 30 June 16,288 11,324

(b) FEFEAELZE

(b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club

BHEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7H1H At 1 July 35,370 31,537
=/ (F)/ 8f#E Transfer (to)/from Reserve (4,923) 3,833
6H30H At 30 June 30,447 35,370

33 AHEHBRER

2019 A BIRFERBRHELETENEREF 5
SHERERBARERFASABEESER - BIMNRE
EMEFRIBBEESIZE  MAMTINES
BEMZERBIA SEXBOERREEBRFRE
RRFBERZEMTURAE - SEKEEETERE
FRRE UAENEEIBHERAHESHEMRRR

33 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to affect the Club’s operations. Attendance limits were
implemented at racecourses until the end of the season in line with Government requirements.
Services provided at Off-Course Betting Branches and by Telebet operations continue to be
impacted, as do other Club operations and support functions. Membership operations have likewise
been adjusted in line with Government requirements and as the situation requires. The Club will
continue to pay close attention to the development of COVID-19, and will evaluate and proactively
manage its impact on the Club’s financial position and results.
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SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2020:

B /8 2 =]
M2020F6A30H  r FEMNETEWEBLATELRE !
EERENERE

Effective percentage
held by the Club

BRTRMZRAE/ ZMEX
FEXEK Issued and fully paid up share BHiE i
Principal activities capital / registered capital Directly  Indirectly

EREEESBYEARLR REBFHELEY BB 100
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000
BEEERRELERLA R RIREREYR BB T 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000
EREERSEROF RERATREER 100& %8 T 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000
EEEESEEEHRAMRAT SEEBESSNEERERIE 10078 7T 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited manages Members’ social and HK$100

recreational facilities
EREES (82) ERAT R B TRGERI BINERA 205t 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Managers) Limited acts as administrator for the staff HK$20

retirement benefits scheme
REREARAH SEEERBENER 1,000&#87T 100
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages The Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000
EEBEEBAR (FE) BRQR HEEBEBERNEERE 5EE T 100
HKJC Business Ventures (China) Limited holds the equity interests of the Group’s HK$500,000,000

business ventures in China
BBESE () BRLAA RESBEFSRTMEEENRBEAR - 100

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited

TtREREEERERAF
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited*

EREBFERMERERAH
Beijing HKJC Technology Development Limited*

ENEEEEEFIRERAH

Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training Limited*

R BB EERMBERERATF
Shenzhen HKJC Technology Development Limited*

MEG=VES S
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BHELREESESMAERARNKRE
acts as nominee for selected projects and
holds investments in Beijing Hong Kong
Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited*,
on behalf of The Hong Kong Jockey Club
SEEEE BN HERERE
manages Members’ social and
recreational facilities
TRALE PR R AT YRR B 25 % FE R IR TS
provides computer hardware and
software technology development and
consulting services
TR B ] AR S U ARER e
constructs and operates horse training
facilities in Conghua
TR I AT A 2 BR A YRR B 3 I R R RS
provides computer hardware and
software technology development and
consulting services

* Unofficial English name

6,5008 % 7T
US$65,000,000

1,0008 % 7T
US$10,000,000

i —

ARH22{82,0008 T
RMB2,220,000,000

3008%7T
US$3,000,000

100

100

100

100



PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR RACING SEASON

BEZSEHEANER

BEBT in HK$ million 2020* 2019
ESH#A Number of race meetings 87 88
IR R R 4 KE Amounts wagered by local customers 195,779 228,535
EASSUMNIER IR F4A5E Amounts of non-local bets commingled with the Club’s pools 23,588 18,823
ROFHEE Total amounts wagered 219,367 247,358
EEREFBA Betting and lottery revenue 31,574 37,037
BB R RSN Betting and lottery duty (19,676) (22,770)
FRT It B S M Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (95) (85)
BEES Lotteries Fund (774) (1,270)
AR RAE Net margin and commission 11,029 12,912
Helg A Other revenue 3,937 4,141
HEM KR Gain on sale of properties 57 -
15,023 17,053
& AN Operating costs (11,835) (11,800)
BRTFEREESNTE Donations to the Trust (2,568) (4,333)
HREBRETESTEEANSE R Operating surplus after donations to the Trust 620 920
FRAE WG Interest income from deposits 156 180
RERITESRTIARRE Deficit from investments and derivatives (300) (306)
BERESKREN (F8)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from Contingency Fund investments (229) 521
e A Finance costs (11) @)
236 1,311
Frih & & A mER Share of profits of joint ventures 388 1,514
MBRTBIE AT B R Surplus before taxation 624 2,825
HIE Taxation (456) (742)
MREIB IR Net surplus after taxation 168 2,083

* A2 HE22HME -

* Refer to note 1 on page 22.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

EBRBE

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING

BE AND BETTING OPERATIONS SUMMARY
BEET in HK$ million 2020* 2019 2018* 2017~ 2016*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 87 88 88 88 83
iR EGREEE Amount wagered by local customers

on horse races 98,020 105,996 107,705 110,951 102,665
T BEFEEEEREN Horse race betting dividends and

rebates on local bets (81,366) (88,194) (89,815) (92,999)  (86,026)
I ith B S R A Horse race betting revenue on

local bets 16,654 17,802 17,890 17,952 16,639
i B EEEH Horse race betting duty on local bets ~ (12,118)  (12,983)  (13,056)  (13,105)  (12,134)
A IE TR T IME S HE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong on local bets (95) (85) (77) (70) 47)
7 ih B S IE R AR Horse race betting net margin on

local bets 4,446 4,734 4,757 4,777 4,458
BT Amount wagered on football 92,598 114,074 103,084 92,692 86,795
REEEYS Football betting dividends (80,052) (98,733) (88,965 (80,217)  (74,892)
BHREEWRA Football betting revenue 12,546 15,341 14,119 12,475 11,903
EIHREEE Football betting duty 6,273)  (7.671)  (7,.0600  (6,238)  (5,951)
BIRIEE AT Football betting net margin 6,273 7,670 7,059 6,237 5,952
REIOTHBEE Amount wagered on lottery 5,161 8,465 8,113 8,014 8,548
BB Lottery prizes 2,787)  (4571)  (4381)  (4,327)  (4,616)
RHEWA Lottery revenue 2,374 3,894 3,732 3,687 3,932
#HEBEB Lottery duty (1,2000 (2,116)  (2,028)  (2,004)  (2,137)
REHES Lotteries Fund (774) (1,270) (1,217) (1,202) (1,282)
#EMAE Lottery commission 310 508 487 481 513
HFWRA GIREEYERR) Other net revenue

(excluding gain on sale of properties) 2,588 2,574 2,332 1,814 1,612
e Total operating income 13,617 15,486 14,635 13,309 12,535
HEBLEERAR Direct operating costs (8,631) (8,692) (7,439) (6,889) (6,571)
BB Miscellaneous donations (28) (50) (78) (44) (29)
e - BEREBEEXH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (1,762) (1,615) (1,612) (1,580) (1,493)
BISE R A Total operating costs (10421) (10,357)  (9,129)  (8,513)  (8,093)
RERER Operating surplus 3,196 5,129 5,506 4,796 4,442
BB Taxation (401) (590) (633) (558) (538)
HRFIERMNEE R Operating surplus after taxation 2,795 4,539 4,873 4,238 3,904
BASSELONEAIRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred to

the Snowball Pool 88 77 60 67 108

PREFEFEHNRBERR R BRBETES  HE
MERE  REDBNERTEAEESRBRESH

P R o
C BEMBAN -
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The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust,
gain on sale of properties, investment returns and transfer to Contingency Fund and Development

Fund.

* Financial data is for racing seasons.



ERESEREESRREER
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BEBET

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING
AND BETTING OPERATIONS SUMMARY (CONT.)

in HK$ million 2020* 2019* 2018* 2017 2016*

BB ERROIAE
o EARSEONESEYENBIOTAE

b EEE B SRR

BEREESESERBAE

Total amount wagered on horse races 121,608 124,819 124,282 117,456 106,142

Less: Amounts of non-local bets
commingled with the Club’s pools

on horse races (23,588) (18,823) (16,577) (6,505) (3,477)

Amount wagered by local customers
on horse races 98,020 105,996 107,705 110,951 102,665

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP

OPERATIONS SUMMARY
BEBT in HK$ million 2020* 2019 2018 2017 2016*
Wi Income
BEEE Membership subscriptions 335 310 302 292 282
BEABENRSEERE Members’ entrance and
qualification fees 179 156 124 111 114
BEEKEB Catering deficit (54) (32) (48) (52) (41)
HihFBERER (B5R)/ & Other non-catering (loss)/income (22) 20 32 43 45
438 454 410 394 400
SEEHEETHXH Direct membership
administration costs (586) (321) (309) (331) (309)
EREEXH Depreciation and expensed
project costs (34) (45) (54) (64) (66)
(620) (366) (363) (395) (375)
K& (BR)/ Bt Operating (deficit)/surplus (182) 88 47 1) 25

* BEMBEN -

* Financial data is for racing seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

AT HE

=S RACING
2020* 2019 2018* 2017~ 2016*

EFHAHE Race meetings
HEXRE Day meetings 48 47 46 46 48
BERE Night meetings 39 41 42 42 35
HRE Total number of meetings 87 88 88 88 83
B BEHH Races on turf 730 714 701 704 701
2 RRWEEFSH Races on all-weather track 98 98 106 102 83
HBIZE Total number of races 828 812 807 806 784
B Horses
B HBEHARE Total runners 10,227 9,765 9,794 10,003 9,840
B SEEETHE Horses winning 1 race 315 305 311 314 302
BEMEESETHAE Horses winning 2 races 137 152 131 144 134
BHEIEESHETHA Horses winning 3 races 50 38 51 38 47
BHE=SA LEEETHE Horses winning over 3 races 21 20 19 21 17
BHEEETHE Horses with winnings 523 515 512 517 500
AEBHBESERANESTHE Horses not winning - placed 436 441 431 399 419
REBEHAESTREAVESTHE Horses not winning — unplaced 439 373 357 359 387
AREHEFTHE Horses not raced 352 376 331 321 305
FEUrEg Total horse population 1,750 1,705 1,631 1,596 1,611
BREFTHE Retirements 522 467 469 447 444
E E% 33 Prize money
REMBEE (BEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,337 1,252 1,190 1,140 1,064
BEESFHIRSE (TERT) Average prize money per race (HK$’000) 1,614 1,542 1,474 1,415 1,357
BEEFHES (FBx) Average prize money per horse (HK$’000) 764 734 729 714 660
FRERSREETEBETAKEIL Percentage of horses winning prize money

in the year 59% 60% 62% 62% 61%
FRERSREFLLEEFTAZEASL Percentage of individual runners winning

prize money in the year 74% 7% 7% 7% 75%
FARDEFAESERRESREFETEETHAEHE S Percentage of horses recovering basic

costs or more in the year 34% 37% 38% 37% 37%
EFEHFHAZAZ (F) Average attendance per meeting (‘000)
B Happy Valley 7.4 19.0 18.4 18.1 18.1
H Sha Tin 10.5 29.6 28.8 29.6 29.3
EERIE (BBBT) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
B Standard bets 105,077 107,952 107,528 101,517 91,204
R Exotic bets 15548 15909 15,781 15,163 14,149
RS Fixed odds bets 983 958 973 776 789
#zE Total 121,608 124,819 124,282 117,456 106,142
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* Racing statistical data is for racing seasons.



% FINANCIAL
BEBT in HK$ million 2020* 2019* 2018* 2017* 2016*
BEBBABIR Duty and taxation to

Hong Kong SAR Government
EEELH Horse Race betting duty 12,113 12,983 13,056 13,105 12,134
BIREEH Football betting duty 6,273 7,671 7,060 6,238 5,951
REBER Lottery duty 1,290 2,116 2,028 2,004 2,137
FEH Profits tax 340 588 578 491 408

20,016 23,358 22,722 21,838 20,630

RAB ' BRBEBAES Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 1 2 2 2 2

" RGFIEH 1993 F 4 A1 BRH - SEREKES
REFSSEANEGBRMNREBORERBEBLH
% RWM+THEE2003F3A31H  HBEAME
2021%3H31H °

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums
equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong
Kong for ten years up to 31 March 20083, subsequently extended to 31 March 2021.

28 MEMBERSHIP
M6H30H as at 30 June 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
EREFEEEAY Number of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Members
2EBES Full Members 15,300 15,196 14,997 14,850 14,736
2BEE(S) Full Members (S) 202 197 194 195 188
EEREMEE Racing and other Members 10,255 9,968 9,610 9,279 8,993
REES Absent Members 1,822 2,677 2,793 2,778 2,734
AFEE Corporate Members 182 184 187 186 189
27,761 28,222 27,781 27,288 26,840
BEHREEEAY Number of Racing Club Members
MHREEE Racing Club Members 1,350 1,295 1,230 1,139 1,071
AEEAH Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 1,020 998 975 958 908
AAEE Corporate Members 102 105 109 109 107
30,233 30,620 30,095 29,494 28,926
fEES GROUP EMPLOYEES
M6H30H as at 30 June 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2H Full-time 7,971 7,258 7,015 6,605 6,469
R Part-time 13,744 14,563 14,403 14,982 15,793

* Racing statistical data is for racing seasons.
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The Trustees have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited financial statements of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) for the year ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Trust was primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and
community projects in Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed.

RESULTS

The results of the Trust for the year are set out in the income statement on page 81. All figures in the
annual report and the audited financial statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated.

FUND

Movements in fund of the Trust during the year are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Trust allocated HK$4,525 million for charitable purposes, as detailed in the
“Charities Trust Donations” section of the report.

TRUSTEES

The Board of Trustees during the year and up to the date of this annual report are the Stewards of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) as listed in the “Board of Stewards” section of the report.

Mr Lester C H Kwok retired as a Trustee and the Deputy Chairman on 10 April 2020 upon his
retirement as Steward of the Club and Mr Lester G Huang was appointed as a Trustee on 10 April
2020 to fill the vacancy left by Mr Lester C H Kwok. Mr Philip N L Chen was elected as the Deputy
Chairman in place of Mr Lester C H Kwok on 10 April 2020.

Dr Anthony W K Chow retired as a Trustee and the Chairman on 22 June 2020 upon his retirement
as Steward of the Club. Mr Philip N L Chen and Mr Michael T H Lee were elected as the Chairman
and Deputy Chairman respectively on 22 June 2020.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Trustees and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Philip N L Chen
Chairman
24 July 2020
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TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE HONG KONG
JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST
(established in Hong Kong)

OPINION

What we have audited

The financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) set out on
pages 81 to 103, which comprise:

o the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020;

o the income statement for the year then ended;

° the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
° the statement of changes in fund for the year then ended;

o the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust
as at 30 June 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Trustees of the Trust is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the consolidated financial statements of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees of the Trust is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal
control as the Board of Trustees determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Trustees is responsible for assessing the Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Trustees either intends to
liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON’T)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Trustees.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 July 2020



INCOME STATEMENT
DT

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million [ft5E Note 2020 2019
REEBEFEREMBELR Donations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club and
(UTHEBIEEEESEM]) WiBX its subsidiaries (the “HKJC Group”) 10.3(b) 2,568 4,333

BERITESRIE (B8)/ Bt (Deficit)/surplus from investments and derivatives (317) 533
FRA 2R Interest income from deposits 81 65
G &% A =RaF Share of profits of a joint venture 4 545 1,887
BARELERER Forfeited dividends and refunds 28 64
R AR Operating costs 10.1 (196) (176)
BBEA Finance costs (111) (109)
RETBBRAEHE R LB EIFEANRER Surplus before allocations to charitable

organisations and community projects 2,598 6,597
i R B A RYIB IR Previous allocations not utilised 119 125
BREAESHERLEFEINRIERE Present value of allocations to charitable

organisations and community projects (4,417) (4,088)
BAESHTFE (58)/ B Net (deficit)/surplus transferred to Fund 8 (1,700) 2,634
BREZEEERLEFEINRERE Present value of allocations to charitable

organisations and community projects (4,417) (4,088)
HIRENTE Present value impact (108) (189)
BiBRESHERTESTEINRIE Allocations to charitable organisations and

community projects (4,525) 4,277)

%86 HE103 ENMFBARTERKRHN—BD -

The notes on pages 86 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EEREER

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019

R (FB1B)/ Bt Net (deficit)/surplus (1,700) 2,634

AEERHE (BR)/ WEHEHE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,700) 2,634
$86EZ103EMNMIBAMBHRERN—I2 o The notes on pages 86 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BRI 2R

7M6H30R at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff&F Note 2020 2019
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEDRNBRE Investments in a joint venture 4 32,123 30,586
BRERITESRBT A Investments and derivatives 5 16,784 16,563
BRREWRFIE Loans and receivables 10.4 1,389 2,180
50,296 49,329
REEE Current assets
BRREWFIE Loans and receivables 10.4 3,244 4,126
EHER Short-term deposits 6 186 1,935
HERBESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,296 818
4,726 6,879
REAE Current liabilities
SRS O Allocations awaiting payment (20,001) (19,578)
TEEMIA Derivatives 5 2 ™
(20,003) (19,579)
REBEFE Net current liabilities (15,367) (12,700)
34,929 36,629
He Fund 8 34,929 36,629
HSETEA Philip N L Chen
PR AR Michael T H Lee
MFE Trustees

86 EE 103 ENMEBAMBHRERN D -

The notes on pages 86 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND

BHEBET in HK$ million 2020 2019
7R1B &8 Balance at 1 July 36,629 33,995
B (B1B)/ Be Net (deficit)/surplus (1,700) 2,634
AEEZM (BHR)/ WEHLE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,700) 2,634
6 A30H & ek Balance at 30 June 34,929 36,629

$86EHZE103 EMMIEZBARTBHRERN -5 -
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The notes on pages 86 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERER

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff&F Note 2020 2019
BT Operating activities
BAREELERER Forfeited dividends and refunds 28 64
ARFREHERILEE Payments to charitable organisations and
community projects (3,896) (2,894)
EREEEEEIER Donations from the HKJC Group 4,236 4,090
KRR Operating costs (196) (177
EEIBMEENTRS Net cash generated from operating activities 172 1,083
RETEE Investing activities
EHBEA=EA U ENEREREL / (38) Decrease/(increase) in short-term deposits
with maturities of more than 3 months 1,749 (1,361)
2 UEEIE Interest received 93 65
HeEARMETE Injection into a joint venture (3,469) (1,520)
By —NGIEE Redemption from a joint venture 3,243 3,568
BERATEEEBERIRNIEERE Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (2,097) (2,725)
HERNPEEERERYRNIEEE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 1,813 779
GREEFRENESEM Increase in deposits and funds awaiting investments (1,014) (291)
HOTE ST ATBCERENRIE Net receipt from derivative financial instruments 7 13
RETBAEEL/ (FA) WERS Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 325 (1,472)
BeRRSSEYFEM/ (D) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 497 (389)
FUReRRSZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 818 1,213
HigEa Exchange losses (19) ®)
FRESRRESSEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,296 818
RERREZENEFIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
FEEATFRR Short-term deposits 1,271 801
BITER Bank balances 25 17
1,296 818

5586 HE 103 HMMIEE A B B3R R 1Y

A
CLPZ N

The notes on pages 86 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Trust is primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and community projects in
Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed. The Trust is established in Hong Kong. The address
of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million), unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 81 to 103 were approved by the Board of Trustees on 24 July
2020.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Trust’s accounting policies. The area involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements is
disclosed in note 3.

(a) New standards, amendments to standards and new interpretations that are
relevant to the Trust’s operations and are effective for the current
accounting period

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments to standards and new interpretations did
not have any significant impact on the financial statements and has not led to any changes in the
Trust’s accounting policies.

Annual Improvements include changes from the 2015-2017 cycle of the annual improvements
project. These affect four standards.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) Amendments to standards that are relevant to the Trust’s operations but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted

The following amendments to standards have been published and are mandatory for the Trust’s
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or its
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture

The Trust is still assessing what the impact of the amendments to standards will be in the period of
initial application. It is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments to standards will
have a significant impact on the Trust’s results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Joint arrangements

The Trust has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Trust has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures as unanimous consent is required from all parties to the
agreements for relevant activities. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Trust’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Trust’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Trust’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Trust does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Trust and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Trust’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Trust.

2.3 Investments and derivatives

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the HKJC Investment Trust Fund (“Investment
Trust”), are held for non-trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, except for funds awaiting investment, deposits and investments in the Investment Trust. The
accounting policy for the financial assets of the investments and derivatives are stated in note 2.4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.4 Financial assets

(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Trust classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or (i) financial assets at amortised cost. These financial assets include investments and
derivatives.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For debt instruments, the objective of the Trust’s business model is not to hold the assets to collect
the contractual cash flows, and not both hold the financial assets to collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets. All
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets.

The Trust uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign
exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the
implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as current as they are
expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For those financial assets that the Trust holds to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates, they are classified
as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled or with maturities within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current assets.

The Trust’s assets in this category include loans and receivables, funds awaiting investment,
deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed at banks for a fixed term of
more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day — the date on which the Trust
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.4 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement (cont.)

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Trust measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial assets that
are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including dividend income and
interest income, are recognised in the income statement. This information is shown under net gains
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

For those that do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values will be
determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using valuation
techniques.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.
(c) Impairment of financial assets

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For this category, impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS
9 on the reporting date.

The financial assets include loans and receivables, funds awaiting investment, deposits, short-term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Trust
considers these counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows, and are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month ECL.

The Trust assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Trust considers the credit risk of a
financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any contractual cash flows
from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more. When a financial asset is unlikely
to be recovered, it is considered as credit impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent period,
asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk
since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off. Such
assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the
amount of the expense in the income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.4 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (cont.)

The Trust measures ECL by using historical loss of the respective financial assets and considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available, including the following
indicators: (a) counterparty’s external credit rating and its expected change; (b) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes
in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment
pattern of debtors.

The Trust considers the 12-month ECL for the financial assets as minimal.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Trust are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Trust
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Trust’s functional currency
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The differences
arising from translation are recognised in the income statement.

2.6 Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.7 Donations

Donation income is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive the payment is
established.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Allocations to charitable organisations and community
projects

Allocations to charitable organisations and community projects is charged to income statement and

recognised as liability when the grant has been offered to and accepted by the grantee and it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the legal and/or constructive

obligation established.

Allocations awaiting payment that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the
present value of expected future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.9 Forfeited dividends and refunds

In accordance with The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s Rules, certain dividends and refunds which are
not claimed within the specified period are deemed to be donated for charitable purposes. These
amounts are paid directly to the Trust.

2.10 Related party

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Trust if the
Trust has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over
the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Trust and the party
are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to exercise significant judgements in
the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates and assumptions.
The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and uncertainties and for
which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or using different
assumptions.

3.1 Recognition of allocations to charitable organisations
and community projects

The Trust requires significant judgement to determine when allocations to charitable organisations
and community projects are recognised as liability. In making this judgement, the Trust performs
due diligence in the grant application review process, including assessing the grantees’ ability and
willingness to honour the grant conditions, and evaluating the likelihood of an outflow of resources
to settle the obligations.

91



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRIk M RE

4 EBERTFNERE 4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE
R2020F6 B30 A EE A AIFHEWNT ¢ Details of the joint venture as of 30 June 2020 are as follows:

EREH FFM AR S B R FEHXK EERAREBERA FEAN

Name of entity Country of incorporation  Principal activities Authorised and paid up capital Measurement method
HKJC Investment Trust Fund BIZE S REREREBKES FEA =

(“Investment Trust”) The Cayman Islands investment in equities and n/a Equity

debt securities

MN6A30H  EXTESRHEBEBERE Investment  The effective percentages directly held by the Trust and its related entities in the Investment Trust

TrustEERFENER B LWT ¢ as of 30 June were as follows:
2020 2019
EEESEREETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 54.2% 51.8%
ARESSE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 43.7% 45.8%
EBEEEETEMEFGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 21% 2.4%
100.0% 100.0%
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7H1H At 1 July 30,586 30,174
xE Injection 3,469 1,520
e Redemption (3,243) (3,568)
Pt s R Share of profits 545 1,887
ERARE Transfer from investments 766 -
ERREREES Transfer from The Hong Kong Jockey Club - 573
6H30H At 30 June 32,123 30,586
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4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT.)

A summary of financial information of the joint venture as of 30 June was as follows:

2020 2019
EEEEER ERESEE
NER RS WERER
Trust’s effective Trust’s effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest
Wi Income 1,165 657 3,699 2,003
*H Expenses 212) (112) (224) (116)
MREIB R Surplus after taxation 953 545 3,475 1,887
THENEEEE Total comprehensive income 953 545 3,475 1,887
FRBEE Non-current assets
RAFEEEBERSENTEEE Fair value through profit or loss
BE Equities
EEBLH Listed in Hong Kong 1,465 818 1,981 1,039
/NS Listed overseas 24,363 13,610 28,249 14,821
BRES Debt securities
s+l Listed 20,078 10,696 18,665 9,564
Lt Unlisted 16,243 8,617 11,894 6,054
THESRTIA Derivative financial instruments 211 111 71 36
RBEE Current assets
THESRIA Derivative financial instruments 87 47 126 65
mEEERE Total current assets 87 47 126 65
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 REMEMIRR Trade and other payables (2,711) (1,431) (1,578) (801)
THESmMIA Derivative financial instruments (172) (91) (179) 91)
RBHEEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TEEE S R EMEMRRMERS) (excluding trade and other
payables and provisions) (172) (91) (179) 91)
b= Non-current liabilities
THESRMIA Derivative financial instruments (295) (153) (197) (101)
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BRI M

4 BEQRNREE) 4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT.)

&% AT Investment Trust TS EHE S » BRAMME  The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 5.89% (2019: 5.78%) for the
FHEBEANE5.89% (20194 : 5.78% ) °  joint venture under the Investment Trust. Their weighted average maturities were 3 years (2019:
Investment Trust FTIiSEMHEHEFNMETIHRAIL 4 years) under Investment Trust.

3FE(2019F 1 4%F) o

2020 2019
BTREUTIHEMEINE ! Underlying investments were denominated in
the following currencies:
X United States Dollars (“USD”) 87% 83%
T Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 2% 4%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKD”) 3% 3%
E# Euro (“EUR”) 1% 2%
Hih g Other currencies 7% 8%
100% 100%
5 RERTEE@MIA 5 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES
BEBT In HK$ million 2020 2019
FRBEE Non-current assets
BERES — LH Debt securities - listed - 753
FERE —FLtm Alternative investments — unlisted 14,784 14,825
HEFRENES Funds awaiting investment 102 8
eE N Deposits 1,898 977
16,784 16,563
REBAEE Current liabilities
PTHESBMIA Derivative financial instruments
- BRENEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts 2 (1)

BREERFRNMETLYERAZES0.50%(2019  The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rate of 0.50% (2019:
F:260%) BFREREFRENESHIRAMBAENEHE 2.60%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment approximated their
NEEERLE  MEBESFRERWMEFHERE]  fair values. The weighted average maturities of the debt securities and deposits were 39 days (2019:
A39H (20194 : 493H) 493 days).

2020 2019
RERITESRIABUTHERITE Investments and derivatives were denominated in
the following currencies:
ES usD 99% 99%
BE#E EUR 1% 1%
100% 100%
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6.1 EHER
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6 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS
6.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 2.62% (2019: 2.35%). The
carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average

maturities were 359 days (2019: 165 days).

2020 2019

EHERUTIIESNE Short-term deposits were denominated in the following currencies:
EH uUsD 100% 12%
T HKD - 88%
100% 100%

6.2 BERAEEEY
HHARZEALTHERONEFIERAES
0.72% (20194 : 2.55%) - FRAREBERA QN F
fEER%E  TEMETHHMREH 48 B (20194 © 69
A) e

6.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rate on deposits with maturities of less than three months
was 0.72% (2019: 2.55%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their fair values and

their weighted average maturities were 48 days (2019: 69 days).

2020 2019
HEBEA=ZEABRUTHERATIEEITE - Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
BT HKD 84% 55%
E7T usb 16% 45%
100% 100%

7 EEFATHIER

M FEE 2 A D SR B R S
2 EHRLH B 1288 2% - EREHESHHY
HEAGRUSHERDAR - AT - BRERESE
RREHWEBEEME - HERROEH AR T
ERSHMMARL SN 12188 « EEEE - 167
30 B B EATROBTEIRA TSI X i -

7 ALLOCATIONS AWAITING PAYMENT

The Trust classifies the allocations awaiting payment as current liabilities as the Trust does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the allocations for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. However, due to the inherent nature of the projects for which allocations have been made
by the Trust, the period in which these allocations are expected to be paid may be greater than
12 months after the reporting period. Based on the estimates of management, as at 30 June, the

allocations awaiting payment are expected to be paid:

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
R—%FR Within one year 6,278 4,770
RE_ZE=FR In the second to third year inclusive 9,412 9,405
NE=F% After the third year 4,801 5,806
20,491 19,981
HEFE AR RRENTE Present value impact on allocations awaiting payment (400) (403)
R TR RNIRE Present value of allocations awaiting payment 20,091 19,578

BRNBEENRBRTFENZSEBENEEME - X
AR P TR B AR -

The actual timing of the payments is dependent upon the progress of the individual projects and

may differ from the expected schedule presented above.
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8 EH# 8 FUND

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7H1H At 1 July 36,629 33,995
HE (F)/ BlER Transfer (to)/from income statement (1,700) 2,634
6A30H At 30 June 34,929 36,629
9 ®IE 9 TAXATION

SHESEHRANTEREH B\ EHBIE
A o

10 BRBEALTZXRS

ERECHEEESE(FEHRETEMBELFY
BRE @A RNERESEXATERETISSEER
RE  URBEFSEEAMNARSBAREERLT
(MEENDNEFSEXNREERIAV(FEXPR
BENESRRE  FINEEESEZEAN  FEXW
REREZEHEEMB AR REXEMERAIFY
FRE -HNEEREEESERIEAMRESSR
RABIE—RE » FIAETESHZARBERE -

BRTEEMBHRREMBIKEEN  ERELRE
BEATCETHRZOT

10.1 BERA
KEREAEENESRENTHREIERYE  BEX
THEEER1189,50088 (20194 : 187,500
BHIT)

10.2 B

[EEEME BB

A2HHR  EREESNRBEEANERRERK
HREE—%3,0008 B THFIE(20195 : 3,0008
BL) BEHREREXEEHEAME L ERNLE
&% FEERATHENLEER  BARETEES
EHEREEE ARNENREAEEREE A FEE
& e
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No provision for taxation has been made because the Trust is exempt from Hong Kong profits tax.

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Trust is related to The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries. It is also related
to The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS
Limited (“CPS”) and its wholly owned subsidiary Tai Kwun Culture and Arts Company Limited, as
the Trustees of the Trust are also the Club’s Stewards and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS. The
Trust is also related to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine Welfare Research Foundation Limited
as the Club is the sole member of this company.

The following transactions were carried out by the Trust with related parties, except for those
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements:

10.1 Operating costs

Operating costs included management expenses of HK$195 million (2019: HK$175 million) for
administrative and support services provided by the Club.

10.2 Loans
Loans to KSCGC

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables in current assets was
HK$30 million (2019: HK$30 million) made by the Trust to KSCGC representing the balance of an
interest-free, unsecured loan repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the loans approximated
their fair values.



10 HEBEAT2RF(E)
10.3 B

(a) BIETFREXYREHHE

EREELCEB4E20088T(20194F - 118,800
BEL)TEEXYRE °

(b) KEEBESEFELEHL

FEESAEBESEREESNIBNSR 256,800
BBt (2019%F : 431/83,3008#T) °

c) BRIEFEREEANABREBMARESERAA

2020%F  EREESEBIB1E2,100BEETTEERE
FANARSERRESERAT °

104 BEEEEEESEERIE

REFRPR BELESSEEMERNREELE4I5E
9,800 E BT (20194 : 62156,600EBT)  HER
BHEAWBRAERTEIER SBRETEEE  (@BF
BEEEEBUNEERANGR17{E5,0008%8 T
(2019% : 30f8% ) BEAREEREHRBARE S
BAAUREFRZELSWE ; RO)BEFAAULE
EHERM—%291E5,90088B (20195 : 321
6,100 EBT)NNE  FAERE B E XLEYEE
2A- - RERESNESHE  BEREBRETE
PEARNXCEEERNNRBER  UHEEEY
WMo EtEHEEESEEEBRNFEZH » HP13E
8,900 E B T (20194 : 21188,000& B ) AFAH R
SRRF12MEAREE  BIMERRBERE  MHEE
RIERBERESEE - 2019F 788,500 BB THNE
SN E B BERRE A AU -

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)

10.3 Donations

(a) Donations to CPS
The Trust donated HK$402 million (2019: HK$188 million) to CPS.

(b) Donations from the HKJC Group
The Trust recorded donations of HK$2,568 million (2019: HK$4,333 million) from the HKJC Group.

(c) Donation to KSCGC
In 2020, the Trust donated HK$121 million to KSCGC.

10.4 Receivable from the HKJC Group

At the end of the reporting period, the amount receivable from the HKJC Group was HK$4,598
million (2019: HK$6,266 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly
included: (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations from the HKJC Group to HK$1,750
million (2019: HK$3,000 million), which will gradually be received within six months after the end of
the reporting period; and (b) HK$2,959 million (2019: HK$3,261 million) for the donation to West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA”) for the construction of the Hong Kong Palace
Museum, which will be received based on payment by the Trust to WKCDA on a back-to-back basis
according to the mutual agreement with the Club. Out of the receivable from the HKJC Group,
HK$1,389 million (2019: HK$2,180 million) was classified as a non-current asset as such amount
was not expected to be received within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was
classified as a current asset. In 2019, HK$785 million of annual donation was received by means of
a transfer of investments.
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

11.1 Financial risk factors

The Trust’s investment activities, including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and
credit risk. The Trust’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Trust’s financial
performance. The Trust uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk
exposures.

The Trust’'s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Investment Office of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Investment Office of the Club under investment policies and
risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment constraints
and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions and guidelines are set
according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Trust’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in USD or HKD. The HKD is pegged to
the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The remaining currency
exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major currencies
had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other variables
held constant, the Trust’s surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2020 2019
FRBERK R FRESRER
HEWERTIE #gi/ 0fd) BEBERTIIE 2/ G
pagad:cl )R g Increase/ 7 LLAVIREIEIE Increase/
/EB5H (decrease) on / 55 (decrease) on
If currency surplus and If currency surplus and
strengthened/ equity for strengthened/ equity for
EX-3: 7 in HK$ million weakened by the year weakened by the year
/€3 EUR 5% 22/(22) 5% 12/(12)
T GBP 5% 8/(8) 5% 5/(5)
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(a) Market risk (cont.)

(ii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Trust is exposed to market
price risk as the value of its equity investment and alternative investments will decline if market
prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the statement of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective financial instruments had been 5%
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Trust’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$1,461 million (2019: HK$1,534 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of
its financial instrument.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can be
further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial asset will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust is exposed to both fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks as the Trust has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Trust’s surplus and equity for the year would have been HK$283 million lower (2019: HK$221
million).

The Trust controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD exposure.
Price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by
securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing
across a spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Trust may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to fair
value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Trust maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Trust also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Trust to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Trust as at
30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table below were the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2020 2019
38 A 3fEA 3fEA 38 A
HFUT UEE1E  1FEBLE HET UEE1E  1FBE
Upto >3 months Over e Upto >3 months Over “azg
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
FITEMEEE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
faf 15 S A OB K Allocations awaiting
payment 20,491 - - 20,491 19,981 - - 19,981
LURRREELEN Net-settled derivative
PTHEBBEE financial liabilities 13 1 153 167 25 - 101 126
20,504 1 153 20,658 20,006 - 101 20,107

M2020F6 8300 ERESAHIEENRTERES
NEEHNBRESBREEBEHAFESI1E4,40088 T
(20194 : 70fH900B#ET) - TRHEETEERN
2020 6 B30 ARN2019F6 A30 BN AT AR
NESHIEHDHT > BLEANGREELE  HIRE
BTANIM AL ERIMRAR - TRAKENR
BREANARNBHRSARE  HETESHBERRER
IR EREEE (B HE) RE -

As at 30 June 2020, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Trust was HK$9,144 million (2019: HK$7,009 million). The table below analyses
the Trust’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 that would
be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table were contractual undiscounted cash flows,
which were different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the statement of financial
position.

2020 2019
318 A 318 A 3fE A 3fE A
HUAT  HUEE1FE  1FHUE AT HEE1FE 1FHRE
Upto >3 months Over g Upto >3 months Over R
EX-3:- 7 in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
RHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts
il Outflows 8,745 296 103 9,144 (6,526) (466) (17) (7,009)
TN Inflows 8,694 298 103 9,095 6,490 464 17 6,971
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Trust is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing to
perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets measured at amortised costs (such
as loans and receivable, deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment) fall
due, or when alternative investments and contractual cash flows of debt securities carried at FVTPL
fall due.

The Trust limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment are only placed
with financial institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2020, the Trust’s maximum exposure to the credit risk represents the carrying
amounts of such financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position less the amount
of cash on hand as defined in note 2.4.

Management considered the 12-month expected loss amount with respect to these receivables as
minimal as at 30 June 2020 and 2019. The Trust made no write-offs or provisions for these
receivables during the year.

11.2 Capital risk management

The Trust’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to be a major benefactor of public and community services through charitable
contributions; and support the Trust’s stability and growth.

The Trust monitors its capital which is same as the Fund shown in its statement of financial position
to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of donations.

11.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by utilising the
following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most significant
input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following table present the Trust’s financial assets and liabilities that
were measured at fair value as at 30 June.

2020 2019
ESEEIN #Hl2 513 “xE AN ®A2 ®AI3 #zE
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE /(88 Assets/(liabilities)

RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives

FERE Alternative investments - - 14,784 14,784 - - 14,825 14,825

BEEES Debt securities - - - - 753 - - 753

TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 2 - 2 - (1) - (1)

- (2) 14,784 14,782 753 (1) 14,825 15,577

ERESNBERRANERERNEHSBERELEE
EH BRAQAFEEFERBINEARES -
HZEMN202056 A30H K 201956 4301 » =5t&
SEZEQFEETERD 2 I mEE o

(b) REBERFISHBREAE R FEENEIEZE
ERAEZHEENT :

The Trust’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among the three fair value hierarchy levels for the years ended 30 June
2020 and 2019.

(b) The movements of the Trust’s balance of the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:

BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
7H1H At 1 July 14,825 12,897
SRR (BE8)/ WREE Total (loss)/gains recognised in income statement (321) 503
BA Purchases 2,097 4,662
HE Sales (1,817) (3,237)
6H30H At 30 June 14,784 14,825
FAFFARZRIFIERERITE SR T AR Total (loss)/gains for the year included in income statement and

W (E8)/ W88 presented in surplus from investments and derivatives (321) 503

FARERPRSANEERBET ARER
WHERERITESRMT ARSRH (B51R)/
W4
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements

within Level 2 as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

kit fRERIDS BERBAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BEERE/ Af

Financial assets/liabilities

REIIMESH WRAESRE ATERER

Foreign exchange forward contracts

(d) K2020F6 H30H KR 20196 H30H - it &
AR B 3 B9 T E (B B FF Y B A S L B 2Ry

Discounted cash flow

Observable exchange rates

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as

ASHBEBEEIERMT : follows:
Ehid) fRERKT BEREFEEBAZH B (i)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs  Range (weighted average)
BgEE/Af
Financial assets/liabilities
EhEEESRE EEFE" TEA TEA
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
REREESRE EEFEE" TEH TEMA
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HHhEESRE EEFE" TEA TEA
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE EEFE" TEMA TEMA
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
MEEERE EEFE" TEA TEA
Private credit investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

*CEERBIBRBISHRENFEEFRTHISETE
B HERENEENRESESKEMREINE
HESREREERRENERAEFTEREZEH
tEREEMEE  FEEESRAFMEREEFE
REERENDTEER-

(e) K2020%F 6 530HK 201946 530 HiL#EH
BB EEREENULFEEIEK -

*

The investments classified as Level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Trust has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair
value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2020 and 2019, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried

at fair value.
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS

BETF  BEEESEREGTES Over the past decade, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
BEEHFHITRBALERLE Trust has approved an average of HK$3.7 billion a year in
B BEHERSE] - [#EEI ] charitable and community donations. These donations are
[EERE | R [ ERXL | mMAHE - broadly grouped into four major areas: Community Services;
0019/20 E [ » EEESTEMMISE Education and Training; Medical and Health; and Sports,

ML 4SBT 0 TR 10ERER Recreation and Culture.

#HEER - HEERFINE1052 In 2019/20, the Trust approved a total of HK$4.5 billion in
120H ° donations to 210 charitable and community projects. Details

are provided on pages 105 to 120.

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST CHARITABLE AND COMMUNITY DONATIONS (HK$M)
ERESEREGRESHEAEARRA(ARET)

6,000 7,000 8,000

* Community services Education and training Sports, recreation and culture ¢ Medical and health * For construction of the

HERE HERIEN BE - Bt BHEFAE Hong Kong Palace Museum
XRFEEFBYECEYE

HK$

4 .5 pillion 210

Approved Charitable Donations Charitable and Community Projects
TRELEEMEEEN ZERMEIER
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Wi/ A
ERAESERERTESTERE
%g%ﬂ%‘ﬁﬁﬂ@%%%ﬁi% - RlfRiEETE - B

?’Eg%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂg%gﬁ BHEHAEE - A8

?’Eﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ MESS (et | EFREEE
 BERmFF

?Ef?%%ﬁ'$fffu\laﬁu+§ BHNEY - #H
BEAEZESHRELSEZ  BEZVHBEER
BNBEFEARHEERN AR ZERS

COMMUNI

Organisation/Purpose

Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

To extend the Trust-initiated project CLAP for Youth@JC for five
more years

To extend the Trust-initiated project CoolThink@JC for four
more years

To extend the Trust-initiated project Jockey Club Community
eHealth Care Project for two and a half years

To fund the four-and-a-half-year Trust-initiated project
LevelMind@JC to enhance youth’s overall mental wellness, and
to provide early intervention for youth with early distress signals

445,170

306,520

207,160

180,410

MEBRESREELEE

RUBREE([FEMABRSENES | @219
HEEBREHRBESIE  ERAEMETEHAS
EHMZREFENHZE L

BEEBARBHETEXEERNRTES
2 RERBEEEBEERENT NS
EREENBNBRELEERA LEE

?I_T_Ei]% BHEREEHS

BRI RTRB RSB EIREEIRE

REETEHRERL

COVID-19 Relief Initiatives

To set up the Jockey Club COVID-19 Emergency Fund, which
supported 219 community organisations in implementing 241
initiatives for vulnerable groups hard hit by the outbreak

To fund NGOs to launch the bandwidth support for e-learning at
home scheme to support the e-learning of primary and
secondary pupils of deprived families in Hong Kong and cross-
boundary pupils in Mainland China during school suspension
period

To fund The Hong Kong Council of Social Service to co-ordinate
the Jockey Club Anti-epidemic Packs Donation Project

To fund NGOs to co-ordinate and offer care packs to vulnerable
groups

100,000

42,680

30,000

23,000

BUHBERAAHEBRNEALERFE —
BEESHERE
BYRBEEREESARATAESMEESH
REEETE - RENER

BYEBREAYASHRAAVBMRLLER
T8 RHENER

BHEBRRERLDERADBIRBFELF
MR ERREE - BENAEA

?ﬁﬂb*ﬁf*&géﬁﬁﬂﬁj MAEESLEM
RWEHEHE - BH=EA

Jockey Club Community Sustainability Fund

To support Social Career Limited to develop the COVID-19
online resources platform, Jockey Club Community Channel

To support Inspiring HK Sports Foundation Limited to
implement a sports for development inspiration programme for
nine months

To support Hong Kong Lacrosse Association Limited to
implement the Lax for All programme for local children and
youth for nine months

To support Cricket Hong Kong Limited to implement a
community engagement through cricket programme for ethnic
minorities for nine months

To support Faith in Love Foundation Limited to organise a
summer programme for underprivileged youth for three months

2,630

1,490

1,400

846

173
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS
HECERESEX

wig/ AR

EFSESENES Jockey Club Emergency Relief Fund
RUSBSEYT To provide assistance to:
ARELEAAERE  TERAMBIFE  Twelve families facing financial hardship owing to their main 900
SR HEMEESERSEN+ —EXRE breadwinner dying in or being affected by traffic, construction
or other accidents
EEELERIEEN+ —EARERMEB AL  Eleven families and individuals with special financial needs 435
EARELE SRRt MEEEEREN— One family facing financial hardship due to the sudden death of 43
B E its main breadwinner
AEFEHMBARKEMZHEN—ERE One family affected by fire/natural disasters 13
HEYEENS Haven of Hope Christian Service
By —HREBEFEKE  RRZEEERER To fund the construction of an End-of-Life Complex consisting 535,300
ERHE - BHBHEFLD - BBEHEEIRE  of an End-of-Life Care Block and a Life and Death Education,
H—RY 2 HERE Training and Research Centre, to provide a range of
comprehensive services for end-of-life patients
BB EREHSE The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BETEESoxR| LRBMEHBERMEER To implement the Jockey Club “age at home” Gerontech 72,110
% REANEH Education and Rental Service for four and a half years
EREEHS St James’ Settlement
HITEESa R LRBRRFEHBERHEER To implement the Jockey Club “age at home” Gerontech 42,300
% AHEANE ¥ Education and Rental Service for four and a half years
HEL (THRRELEEHE) Youth Outreach (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community
Projects List)
ETEREFREREXESE > APNF To implement a mental health support programme for at-risk 30,750
youths and their families for four years
EBEEHLZEFS Hong Kong Young Women'’s Christian Association
EIT—EFRECEERRERG  AH=F To implement an integrated enterprise resources planning 28,820
system for three years
EEHEBCERSLIRE Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong
BTESE o] LRMEHERBEER To implement the Jockey Club “age at home” Gerontech 28,240
% RHEAME ¥ Education and Rental Service for four and a half years
EHRBLHHEERAT Hong Kong Student Aid Society Limited
EREMBES AL 2R T THAIME > To implement the RESTORE -~ from Trauma to Empowerment 26,540
BR > 2 H 158 AE=F Project for three years through the refurbishment of its Mark
Memorial Home
ERA+FE Hong Kong Red Cross
BTEEE[ o] LRMEHERBEER To implement the Jockey Club “age at home” Gerontech 24,350

% RENFF

Education and Rental Service for four and a half years
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HEBARAF Social Career Limited

RIBIHRBRBRET—EFFEBERLE To develop a client relationship system common application for 24,120

AEARR  AE=F NGOs and to operate it for three years

ENRERRBRERAT Asian Academy of Family Therapy Limited
RUBEBEEARERBERL 0 WIEHFOHEIT  To set up the first family therapy centre in Hong Kong and carry 22,010

—IE’ﬁEjJi FNFNIRBERRIRFE 5T El > BH  out a three-year programme for capacity building and for

= delivery of clinical services at the new Centre

FEBHERESE New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

AERUBRERENREMRNBEEZEES To implement a healthy ageing project for older adults with 20,890

2 AH=F mental health problems for three years

EBHEKRE The Education University of Hong Kong

I’Eﬁ—lﬁiﬁyﬁ%% BRHEWESERZAEIR  To carry out a three-year project to provide intervention and 20,260

ERALZENFE > BH=F school-based support for dyslexic students with difficulty
learning English

BERLERBHE The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

BEHEFBFEBEIE  #HT—EAY=%1 To implement the three-year parent empowerment project in 20,090

RREATE collaboration with 10 NGOs

BEEAR Caritas — Hong Kong

HITHEEESBIRESTE — #MEIEE ©  To carry out Caritas Jockey Club Project on Marital Relationship 19,980

AH=F Enrichment - Intimacy Channel for three years

BEBPUKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

HTEESREESBINTERE - BH=5F To implement the Jockey Club Elderly Hip Fracture Prevention 19,540
Programme for three years

EEYEEDE Haven of Hope Christian Service

ATENTE RS IEETRBRAE To carry out an enhancement project for the social services 19,460
complex in Sai Kung

FERHEES New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

AEERBUERBNERATREBEZELEN  To carry out low-intensity psychological intervention for working 18,210

A REI=F adults with mental illnesses for three years

EEYERCEHRELERBED Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong

R —(AREREEERSR To develop an integrated service management system 17,340

BB NEHRRE The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong

ETEMRERENRESEE - AB=F To carry out an information technology infrastructure 16,900
enhancement project for three years

EREAERAGERRAT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited

FE—(EEAREAERER » LWEXEXRE To develop an information technology common application to 15,560

R RS

support Home Care Services
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HECERESEX

Wi/ Ag

BEHE

Caritas — Hong Kong

R —EDEE T 0 WHEIT—HHPEALE To set up an active ageing centre and to implement a 14,210
THERBHGE - AH=F community service programme by young-olds for three years
BERIEHRRES The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
EIT-—BAB=FMNEBEFHAFESE To implement the BGCA Jockey Club Parent-Child 13,540
(RSB 7 BBEE > KERTBBELURE Communication Enhancement Service for three years to
MEREBER enhance parent-child communication for harmonious family

relationships
HEE Heep Hong Society
BRI —EAXREEEZEALTMROFELERTF To develop an online resource platform and resources for 12,940
B UEXEEEEERNTE parents and professionals to support children with dyslexia
FERHREES New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association
BORBERYRRRMBNEFEXMEBE  To carry out the Jockey Club Embracing H.O.P.E.S. Project for 12,280
atEl - AH=F parents with mental illness for three years
MEZRBRATR Harmony House Limited
WIT—BAY=F BERIXERINIEM To carry out the Jockey Club Project Smart Kids for children 11,470
HNEREEOHKDEE witnessing domestic violence for three years
RE=PR Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
EMRE=—M[FOHR] — FBESLH%K  To organise the TWGHs “iRun” — The Hong Kong Jockey Club 11,190
BHRMN  RB=F Special Marathon for three years
EEHRERBEH L Christian Family Service Centre
HITEES (R -FBEIREXENSE - B To carry out the Jockey Club Early Intervention and Community 11,130
= Support Project for Parents for three years
BEEKRE The University of Hong Kong
BEFBAEB S HT—ERMMEMNTT To implement a two-year project to promote the emotional 10,920
2 DUERREMBENIEENTED resilience of families in collaboration with NGOs
RE=PR Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
WITRE=ESEEHEMETE - BH=  To carry out the TWGHSs Jockey Club Building LOVE Project for 10,210
F AERREEREXEHBERBATFER three years to enhance couple and parent-child relationships for

families with special needs
BEREFEE Hong Kong Association of Gerontology
HEAT— BT R WIRALERESMBFEE To implement a training programme for service enhancement in 9,950
£ AH=F elderly homes for three years
BERALEFLEE The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong
AEERHRERENREMBNBES F5T To implement a healthy ageing project for older adults with 9,560
2 RE=F mental health problems for three years
EBLEEEE The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong
HERABEAPRIREEAREFREEEMRM To set up and operate a supported apartment for ex-mentally ill 8,300

HENTES - RH=F

persons in Shek Wai Kok Estate for three years
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wig/ AR

HEBAE

The University of Hong Kong

BT —EHERARIIENS  UBMEEKXE To launch a community-based support programme to enhance 8,230
RENBORERE  AH=F the mental well-being of older adults in the Wong Tai Sin District
for three years
BEEBRESHRAR Teach Unlimited Foundation Limited
AT REFET] RREBFBIMNEZMER - B8 To implement “Walk with Youth” Mentorship Programme Phase 7,980
=} Il for three years
EBERARPRERAT Hong Kong Network for the Promotion of Inclusive Society Limited
EEHTE_RRBEERERKRFLXE Tofund the implementation of Phase Il of the Jockey Club Support 7,920
TE AE=F Service for the Children of Disabled Parents for three years
BEREAEREAGEERLT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
EFRRET—BREXEE - AH=F To implement a three-year family support programme in Tung 7,630
Chung
BEAKEEERAT KELY Support Group Limited
ET—ERELFMRMOMHBEBEHRERNAL To pilot an alcohol education and intervention programme for 7,130
BiE > AHI=F young people for three years
HEIFEBHERAFE Social Impact Fellows Limited
ETESEXRBENRE2.0 AH=F To implement the Jockey Club “Bounce Back” Intergeneration 5,910
Programme 2.0 for three years
FERHEERES New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association
HIT—EZEEFRBEFEES G OEEMNST  To pilot a holistic health and wellness enhancement programme 5,640
2 AE=F for ex-mentally ill persons for three years
EEHRERBE SO Christian Family Service Centre
ET—ERRHERAERTHTENREMR To implement a support programme for socially isolated and 4,790
WxxEE > RE=F homebound elderly for three years
EBTIAREROLERAF Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited
HITASETIAMBNEEEETS - B To carry out the “Return to Work” social rehabilitation project 4,780
=% for injured workers for three years
ERBFLERBEE South Kwai Chung Social Service
R —AREMHEZEDOL To set up a community support centre for the elderly 4,680
P EE AR AR Tuen Mun District Women’s Association Limited
WIT—EAEMREMRMEESEE > B  To implement a neighbourhood support project for older people 4,370
=4 in Tuen Mun for three years
BERARAR Soap Cycling Limited
ZRAM=FHNREEEFESE - #ES52 To implement the Youth Development and Community 4,060

FRHEER

Empowerment through Soap Recycling Programme for three
years
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ZEGTEESER

i/ M orga

EREEHS St James’ Settlement

BT —BRBERNEREREMRMNLES  To carry out a community support project for people with mild 3,730

BiE > AHI=F dementia for three years

HEHRERKEH L Christian Family Service Centre

AERHRERENREMBMNBES FST To implement a healthy ageing project for older adults with 3,620

2 BAE=F mental health problems for three years

REHBRIHS Repair Fairy

HIT—EAEBRREMRMRERESTE - & To carry out a home modification project for deprived elderly for 3,120

HAmF two years

RNBELZEERLT Cheung Chau Island Women’s Association Limited

HIT-—EAERMNREEMRMHESEFE - A  To implement a neighbourhood support project for older people 2,930

=% in Cheung Chau for three years

BERRIKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

A—ERRIZATEETIZIIRGTEIFME - B  To conduct capacity building and project evaluation for the 2,520

B3 parent empowerment project for two and a half years

EBIRIBEERAE Hong Kong Neuro-Muscular Disease Association Limited

R —EHEBENARFEEMRARIEH L To set up a service centre for persons with neuro-muscular 1,890
disease

fFEEEE Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association

BEZENP OREHRIE  BMEEREE To renovate and upgrade its centre to enhance services 1,690

RUEEERE provided to people with pneumoconiosis

BRREHRANS Playright Children’s Play Association

FIRGELE To replace a mobile play truck 1,210

EBELFIEZEES Hong Kong Juvenile Care Centre

BB+ N\ERAADBLUREEHIIEMNER To fund the replacement of a 28-seat private light bus to provide 781

PR 7% shuttle and transportation services

THHREESEEEERN=-0=0/=Z0=—FENESBESEE The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant

#HEE BRI from the Trust for 2020/2021

R PRIE Mother’s Choice Limited

BWHEIMERZ ERE To fund its Pregnant Girls Services 3,330

EE® Hong Chi Association

BUMHESEFEILUEMERE A T HERS To fund its Enhancing Employability of People with Intellectual 3,300
Disabilities through Social Enterprise Projects

ERAYERHES The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council

BYWHERERRREE To fund its Family Mediation Service Project 3,279

it = The Salvation Army

BOWHEIER KRB REXERE To fund its Family-friendly Community-based Project 3,270
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FRMERAA Adventure-Ship Limited

BEEE EEFEBHAE To fund its Nautical Adventure Life Education Project 3,247

BERBELSHE Hong Kong Playground Association

BYWHFEEE |58 To fund its Unusual Academy 3,120

AR ERR AR Make a Difference Institute Limited

BBHEHESEAITE] 2k To fund its Jockey Club Make A Difference School 2,913

DHEAREEBRERAF The Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired Limited

BYHIRE S RHA T ERE To fund its Early Intervention Programme for Visually Impaired 2,801
Children

M ZRBRAHE Harmony House Limited

BYHE [ BROaT] 5T E To fund its Moving Forward Against Domestic Violence Project 2,792

BEREEE The Society of Rehabilitation & Crime Prevention, Hong Kong

BB HAMETE To fund its Project OASIS 2,658

BERREENE Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong

B H H T E 8 To fund its Inclusive Arts Project 2,645

ESSEER Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing

BOHMEMEEENBEEEIIREESE To fund its caregiver training and community support for 2,591

AR 75 dementia care

EBEEEEE Hong Kong Sea Cadet Corps

BEIEZLIK  BABTLEMBAERSEE  To fund its core cadet training programme that builds youth’s 2,587

7 EE © cadet knowledge and leadership skills.

BEERSE The Society for the Aid & Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers

BB HEHREEHER REEE5TE To fund its peer counsellor and internship schemes 2,507

EWBERERATE Suicide Prevention Services Limited

BYWHE EaiT] IMNERRERE To fund its Outreach Befriending Service for Suicidal Elderly 2,410

EBATFE Hong Kong Red Cross

BYHA+FEFEMRIIRERETE To fund its Red Cross Youth Leaders & Trainers Development 2,404
Project

EBEABEE The Hong Kong Society for the Blind

BHEEBBEATREERT L To fund its Family Resource Centre for the Visually Impaired 2,389

EREREARAE The Hong Kong Society for the Aged

BYHEHHERE D — RIGRERETS To fund its Elder-Friendly Employment Practice Project 2,334

EEYERCRELERED Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong

BYHZRRER — EERTEE To fund its Kwai Chung Care Network — Art Connection Project 2,300

IRREBEREIEGS Association for Engineering & Medical Volunteer Services

BYHEHERMZEIRIK To fund its Information Technology Solutions for Rehabilitation 2,098

Project
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ZEGTEESER

s/ Fg Organisz

BERRPAGES Hong Kong Blind Union

BYH &EES5 2 | 58 To fund its E-Learning For All Project 2,096

RS Heep Hong Society

BWHBERERZERIIZERE To fund its Outside School Support for Students with Special 2,034
Education Needs and their Families Project

BEEAR The Friends of Scouting

BBWHA R ]JBEX — BHEERTHE To fund its Know the Future — Non-engaged Youth Counselling 2,004
Scheme

BRBERERRE Parents’ Association of Pre-School Handicapped Children

BOHERE R - 2R To fund its HOPE - Parents’ Networking Project 1,945

BERAREEAS The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association

BRH[BELARREER | BRARGE To fund its Intergenerational Responsible Citizenship Project 1,760

Byl TREATS

BOHEHRERSVFHARMBE KERTE To fund its Social Inclusion Project for Children and Youth in 1,700
Hong Kong

ERREEMNE Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

BB HE R Z A% K 5T E To fund its The Bridge to Competence Project 1,679

ERAEEREHESL Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre

B EBENT ERAETE To fund its Human Re-engineering Project for Building a Better 1,678
Community

e The Comfort Care Concern Group

BYWHEFERBEE To fund its Comfort Care and Support for the Bereaved Project 1,667

FFIEEREREEHRAR Against Child Abuse Limited

BBH £ 2EM | RERHTE To fund its Healthy Start — Home Visiting Project 1,527

EBNEETESEERAT The Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong Limited

BEHKEE4ATE To fund its Second Chance Project 1,462

KEE Fu Hong Society

BOWEKERE — BERERE To fund its Casa Famiglia — Family Care Home Service 1,427

EBRBANERLERE The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong

BYHR L BRHBATE To fund its Suicide Prevention Education Project 1,420

HEEHARERE DO Christian Family Service Centre

BYHBE - BRRE{TTE To fund its Walk with YOU - Family Cohesion Project 1,389

EBEREERBET International Social Service (Hong Kong Branch)

BYWH [ANRT — ERERE] 53 To fund its Support Project for Families with Young Kids 1,354
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China Coast Community Limited

China Coast Community Limited

BYHZGREHSRERNR R EETE To fund its subsidy package for Comprehensive Social Security 1,313
Allowance recipients

ZREEEERLT Hans Andersen Club Limited

BYWHE BAETERR]FE To fund its Sunshine Community in Tai O Project 1,309

ERELASRAGESERAT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited

BN RS 11 To fund its ARISE Ill Project 1,084

ERRERES Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children

BHHIE - -BIRELEFEV To fund its Whole Learning Project (Phase V) 1,260

EBERGAENS The Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association

BHHEE& ] £Z — BERXEXER®E To fund its “SHARE Project” — a comprehensive support service 1,105
for families of children with Down Syndrome

BeE Sik Sik Yuen

BOE 40 - REAHKRIFE To fund its Cherish Our Life: Enhancing Psychological Well- 1,092
being of Elders project

EEE e Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association

BhEMEEREE L BERRKE To fund its community rehabilitation service for pneumoconiosis 1,062
patients and their family members

EREEL Chung Sing Benevolent Society

BEHBEHEE | K52 EE To fund its Elderly Lifelong Learning Project 942

ERRETEESS The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong

BYHEAEHHEE To fund its Community Level Sexuality Education Programme 884

EESRNMESETESLD Jockey Club Cheung Chau Don Bosco Youth Centre

BOHEBSFREIZHERSIETE To fund its Adventure Based Counselling Programme for Youth 820
in Hong Kong

EEABRENES Street Sleepers’ Shelter Society Trustees Incorporated

BYWHEFTEBEZR To fund its Wanchai Homeless People Shelter 710

Nt LS RIE) Sub-total (Community Services) 2,687,846
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ZERRETER

BB REI

B/ F
ERESEEERT

2T EHE

EDUCA

|
113

Organisation/P

Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

498 52020/2182024/252 F BN AEE  To extend The Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarships - 128,380
Eiﬂ IBEBEEYRES — AREEELHE]  Undergraduate Scholarship scheme for another five cohorts
from the academic year 2020/21 to 2024/25
BEBREKE The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
BB R EKERBENFARESEILIEE  To fund part of the construction cost of the new undergraduate 203,710
IREA residence at the Clear Water Bay campus
BERBKE The University of Hong Kong
BN RETINNNEES KESDEELTIE  To fund part of the construction cost of four residential towers 154,080
&M in Wong Chuk Hang
BEBARE The University of Hong Kong
BB S EHNES MBI EETIREEH To fund part of the construction cost of a residential block in 31,220
Mui Fong Street
ERMSER The Hong Kong Sea School
TEARBEERA(IRE To modernise its student dormitory 26,170
BB ERERA R Yew Chung College of Early Childhood Education Limited
B TRESTEMEE R | H2EE » £4 To fund “Spark STEM Interest in Kindergarten” pilot project for 21,940
HEETARHELE REZHE - KRS ZE - thirty-eight months, carrying out content development, family
sHEIFHE MG FANIE - AH=1/{EA engagement, results dissemination, evaluation and central
coordination.
BB Vocational Training Council
BB [ WA 25 STEM B8 3 5 i | EKEEIE B f£41 To fund “Spark STEM Interest in Kindergarten” pilot project for 7,080
HMEETEEXEREREBEVEZAE B thirty-eight months, carrying out professional development and
=+N\@EAR establishing a learning community.
EFSRECRBEEMRAT The Jockey Club Scholars Alumni Association Limited
BHEESRELEESRRAEMELENRST To cover the operation and programmes of the Jockey Club 1,380
2l Scholars Alumni Association for the next five years
THRBESEXEER=-0=0/=0=—5ENEEESEET  The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant
HEE B BB from the Trust for 2020/2021
EEIERER Agency for Volunteer Service
BEHEAETHETE To fund its Volunteer Talent Bank 2,015
BIRR AL R R B R A A AFS Intercultural Exchanges Limited
BBV HE AFS BB AL 3T © Bt &l To fund its AFS Intercultural Exchanges Sending Programme 1,944
EBRRIFES Hong Kong Parent Education Association
BBHLERE | REHATE To fund its “Family Embrace” Parent Education Programme 1,433
EERAEE A Life Education Activity Programme
BB EAFHRH A RIE To fund its Special Needs Programme 661
BOOMERALTHS Direction Association for the Handicapped
BYBEEmRAmE « KAREOVATE To fund its Hopeful Life Project 593
Nat (BB RIEA) Sub-total (Education and Training) 580,606

114



BEes

Wi/ g

MEDICAL AND

N
1

Organisation/Purpose

ERPEEBHEFS Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong
AHARETHOEERSIREURNBEER To upgrade its headquarters into a green building and achieve 69,530
Bt BEAM Plus certification
EREEAE The Scout Association of Hong Kong
EEYES LR OETRETLR  WHIT  To carry out improvement works at its sea activity centre in Pak 35,450
A =FHFRREE Sha Wan and launch new environmental programmes for three
years
ERMFrEERFEPLREMEES (TR Lions Kidney Educational Centre and Research Foundation
EEEBEE) (HKSAR Chief Executive’s Community Projects List)
%%u#j(iﬁaﬁ,ﬁ%nplwgﬁzé{lklhﬁm To renovate and equip its Tai Po Haemodialysis Centre 18,190
B4
REERES Children’s Cancer Foundation
EITREOEHSEENE  AH=F To fund a paediatric psychosocial care project for children for 14,320
three years
ERHERRBBERLTE Community Leap Limited
EMRYEBRRREATE - AP=F To organise a food recycling and environmental education 14,150
programme for three years
EEHRERBE SO Christian Family Service Centre
EAERET —HRBE WS - UEEFF  To launch a mobile recycling programme in Kowloon East to 10,050
EWMNERER - AHEMENEAR promote clean recycling and the reuse of resources for two
years and four months
FEEREESHRAT Make-A-Wish Foundation of Hong Kong Limited
EEBREBRETAEREEMRERSE - B Toimplement the therapeutic and wish-granting project at Hong 9,960
BH—+\@A Kong Children’s Hospital for twenty-eight months
ERRARFESEERAT Hong Kong Arthritis & Rheumatism Foundation Limited
HITEPRBREEETIIRRARMKRFEARE  To implement a rehabilitation programme for arthritis sufferers 7,930
AstEl AE=F and public education on rheumatic diseases for three years
HEHRBRAT The Green Earth Limited
ENESSR/IETHRERTE  B=5F To fund the implementation of the Jockey Club “Event Go 6,450
Green” Programme for three years
BEXLERAT Rough C Limited
EREEgEHBEE | HEHETE > BH To fund the Jockey Club “Farm to Care” Community Farming 6,110
M Programme for two and a half years
EBAVRESBRAT Hong Kong Prostate Foundation Limited
HT—ERHMRRFERAVIIREFENESSE  To implement the Jockey Club “Prostate Health Care” Project 5,510

[EEE - A1 | 518 BHE=F

on early detection and prevention of prostate diseases for three
years
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REENESERAT Children Chiropractic Foundation Limited

SR UHTESSEALERESTE > To fund the renovation of the centre and implement the Jockey 3,690

AE=F Club Healthy Spine Community Project for three years

BERORRE Hong Kong Haemophilia Society

ANMRFEEEHRTEREERAGERXLE > B To support a self-management multi-modal programme for 2,690

=% haemophilia patients for three years

THHEBESIEITEENR=-0=0/=Z0=—EENEBEEE  The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant

HEE B BB from the Trust for 2020/2021

EEHHE TR ERE United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service

BEHTERERETE To fund its Community Geriatric Health Maintenance 3,228
Programme

EHINBRBEEREPLESERAT Maggie Keswick Jencks Cancer Caring Centre Foundation
Limited

BEE [ LU0 EO | BE X BT E To fund its Emotional & Psychosocial Cancer Support 2,646
Programme

EREQAEEEERAPL Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre

BEHEPERSREEIIRBETE To fund its Chinese Herbs Employment Training and Education 1,616
Programme

BEREIANBEDLERAT Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited

BHHEEOHEBERREN L TEERE To fund its Working Together to Enhance Health and Safety 540
Culture and Workplace Improvement Programme

NEt (BEFE) Sub-total (Medical and Health) 212,060
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B/ F
ERESERERTESIENE

SPOR

Organisatiol

Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

BYHBEEEEERBREETE — 8%  To fund the Central Police Station Compound Conservation & 200,000
BIEBREENEARATHER (F—HFIE) Revitalisation Project — capital expenditure budget for the
recovery of the Married Inspectors’ Quarters (1st tranche)
FRE2020/ 21 FEREAREE SEFEE To cover the 2020/21 Tai Kwun public programmes budget 107,300
X352020/21 FEREMFTEERE To cover the 2020/21 Tai Kwun operating budget 51,000
X 352019/205F E R EERE/IMNNE ER X To meet additional operating expenses of Tai Kwun in 2019/20 43,500
HITH—HESS/E4E£F XS BHNUE  To support a new phase of the Trust-initiated project Learn-to- 121,370
=@A Swim@JC for four years and three months
EFSZAMNAREEARREERAT The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
B ERILG R ESHERR RKERRS To fund the replacement of the irrigation and storm water 121,000
drainage systems in the North and South courses
EEAEBES (TRRELSEYHE) Our Hong Kong Foundation (HKSAR Chief Executive’s
Community Projects List)
BE [ &8 GE] 53 To fund the “Hong Kong Chronicles” Project 66,870
ERENTHEERAR Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited
BE2020FE BB EMET R EBEFEE2022% To fund the 2020 Hong Kong Arts Festival and The Hong Kong 30,550
HISEE Jockey Club Series 2022
EBEFHE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
EMELFRARREE RE=F To organise a youth sports development programme for three 27,580
years
EHREESEERAT Music Children Foundation Limited
AEERERREMRNBEESIELRER  To organise the Jockey Club Music Children Fruit Programme 26,300
FErE AE=F for underprivileged children and families for three years
TEEBRERESERAR Physical Fitness Association of Hong Kong, China Limited
ENBEFEIRYABELEEE > BH=F¥ To organise the Jockey Club Home-School Physical Fitness 19,990
Academy for Kindergarteners for three and a half years
BEHERERE Leisure and Cultural Services Department
18 852020/21 EE%%@IEIE@% » 251 To fund two major exhibitions in Hong Kong in 2020/21: “Dining 19,960
M — SREEMRLR ]I M—EHEREX  with the Emperor — Culinary Culture of the Qing Court” and an
BHEBFLEMEBFSEMMNEE - LUK B exhibition jointly presented by LCSD and the Gallerie degli
BEA  BRBEARTEAF I HAETE Uffizi, as well as the education programme of “Honouring
Tradition and Heritage — Min Chiu Society at Sixty”.
B A REMTER Tuen Mun Public Riding School
HENE 202021 EENEEFERE To support its net operating deficit in 2020/21 19,440
EERBEERAMRAT Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited
ETEAESSHHSIIGE  ABNF To run The Hong Kong Jockey Club Coach Education 15,010

Programme for four years
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Wi/ Ag

HREIEAR AR

Chung Ying Theatre Company (HK) Limited

EWNMEL BRI ESBEAEB - A8 To organise an oral history theatre project to promote 14,320
mM-+1& A intergenerational harmony for forty months
AR E B ERR A A Make a Difference Institute Limited
EN—FEL£ETRAEMUEESEEHEBAE  To organise a collaborative arts project for social inclusion for 12,000
2 BH=1ME7 thirty months
HREESHRAF Kitchee Foundation Limited
EEFEREPLERRERBUIEER To construct protective measures against adverse weather in 11,260
AR the Jockey Club Kitchee Centre
ERAEFREHE Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association
BB [ EREEEE ] MBI TRERMEEIIE To fund the revamping of the Heritage of Mei Ho House and its 10,980
&8 AHI=F related outreach programmes for three years
EREAEREAGEERLAT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
#12020-2023F ENEFE[E-ENIBEF  To organise the Jockey Club Arts Dynamics Youth Development 10,150
BREETE Project 2020-2023
EBELAEREAGEERAT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
ENEFS(S-HL | SFRREE - BY  To organise the Jockey Club “Loving Sports” Youth Development 10,070
=4 Programme for three years
BEPIKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
ENESS([FEEEZ|SFEIEHAE >  To organise the Jockey Club “Handmade Wellbeing” Youth 9,680
AREB=+H@ER Craft Education Programme for thirty-nine months
EBISLEERAE Association Culturelle France — Hong Kong Limited
2021 FAE T B 1780 To organise Le French May 2021 9,480
EREREEHEESEARAT Hong Kong Rugby Union Community Foundation Limited
EREBRETHHBEFRE  RE=F To organise a youth development programme through rugby for 8,680
three years
58 2PN RERIT R Lei Yue Mun Public Riding School
BNE 202021 F EVE EFE 18 To support its net operating deficit in 2020/21 8,060
DHREAREERBR AT The Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired Limited
AREEESERTYTE > B¥iI=1++tM@AB . To organise a music programme for students with visual 7,120
BIEOKERNBTLER FTLRME impairment for thirty-seven months, and to upgrade the music
rooms and music equipment of the Ebenezer School
BERLEKE Leisure and Cultural Services Department
021 FERIEFAREEHAE To organise six educational initiatives at the Hong Kong Flower 6,910
Show 2021
TATEEL B Class 7A Drama Group Limited
BB AP/ NEEMBRNEBETELUEEEE X To organise a learning classical Chinese and Chinese virtues 6,780

EXRPEERERE  BH=T~EAR

through drama programme for primary and secondary school
students for twenty-six months
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BEMADQRRITER Pokfulam Public Riding School

BN H 202021 FEWE B FHE To support its net operating deficit in 2020/21 6,310

BEBRPAABES Hong Kong Blind Union

BENDEEALMENESE[FEEIEAE  To organise Jockey Club Sports Programmes with Audio- 5,990

RMEERTE - RHA=F description Service for the visually impaired for three years

KEASLREFRLF Spicy Fish Cultural Production Limited

ENETE[£OH I OEEEREMAIES  To organise the Jockey Club “Speak, Life” Creative Writing and 5,120

2 Am+—@EA Arts Education Project for forty-one months

1a Group Limited 1a Group Limited

BMARBMRNVEREMTEE REE  To organise a contemporary art literacy and appreciation programme 4,920

fit) » HRE=+t@EA (visual arts) for the general public for thirty-seven months

REMH XL HEBEERPOERAT The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited

ER-—EAP="FWIEWELEEHREF To organise a three-year educational programme covering four 4,550

B REMNEEBIIEMELEE intangible cultural heritage items in Hong Kong

EROAERHBEERAF Audio Description Association (Hong Kong) Limited

ENHBEALMBENESE—[EIEEHO  To organise the Jockey Club “On-The-Move” Audio Description 2,010

mEBerEl - REME Programme for the visually impaired for two years

MG RENE Tai Hang Residents’ Welfare Association

EMNPUBRITHORIREANERSE - B8  To organise the Tai Hang Fire Dragon Dance during the Mid- 1,930

= autumn Festival for three years

EBARMAELEREES Hong Kong Cheung Chau Bun Festival Committee

EMRMAFERE - BH=F To organise the Cheung Chau Jiao Festival for three years 1,510

ERRXNREGER DS Joint Association of Traditional Dragon Boats in Tai O, HK

ENAXRGTFEAERIE  AH=F To organise the Dragon Boat Water Parade of Tai O for three 1,420
years

THHEESEETEEN=0=Z0/Z0=—45ENEBESEE The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant

HEE B EIRR from the Trust for 2020/2021

ERSFEMNnE Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation

BOHEHEEEMEBEMEE To fund its stART up — Community Art Project 3,112

MZEIER AR The Nonsensemakers Limited

BOWHESSREREEBERE B E To fund its Jockey Club Hand in Hand Capable Theatre 2,928
IncluDrama Project

RELEHEERPOLERAA The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited

BEHE AR ] HELBERTE To fund its “Village Enclave” Cultural Heritage Scheme 2,169
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HECERESEX

&8 (FBx)
g/ Ag Organisation/Purpose Amount (HK$’000)
XALHEBRA R Hulu Culture Limited
BEE (Bt - BELE | 518 To fund its Heritage X Arts X Design Walk Plus Project 2,102
ERREEMPLERAR Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited
BOHHESSRSAIEEE To fund the Jockey Club Black Box Theatre Subsidy Scheme 1,904
ERRHRRES Special Olympics Hong Kong
BOHERSHARE RS To fund its Special Olympics Golf Developmental Project 1,547
EREFIREHE Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association
BYWHEEE BB GEETE To fund its Mei Ho House Hong Kong Spirit Learning Project 1,113
Nt (BB - B&R L) Sub-total (Sports, Recreation and Culture) 1,043,995
et Total 4,524,507
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